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To our shareholders

In 2018, we reported a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$586.09 million, a 200% increase
compared with that of 2017. Such significant increase
in loss was largely attributable to (i) a HK$203.69
million increase in loss on change in fair value of
Hong Kong listed equities held by us, (ii) a HK$233.63
million written-off of property, plant and equipment,
and (iii) a HK$38.92 million allowance for credit losses
on our receivables made in accordance with the new
impairment model of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
which has no effect on our cashflow.

Our sale of financial assets business did not perform
well in 2018. It was attributable to a sharp drop in
valuations in 2018, particularly in small and medium
cap stocks, which caused a 220% increase in loss on
change in fair value of the Hong Kong listed equities
held by us. In 2019, we will closely monitor the
factors, such as economic factors, investor sentiment,
and fundamentals of investees, and their future
prospects, and proactively adjust our portfolio in order
to improve our performance.

Our money lending business performed well in 2018
and achieved a 36% increase in interest income
on loans. This significant growth was beyond our
expectation. Such significant growth was mainly due
to an unexpected increase in our money lending
services in the second half of 2018. As our money
lending business is our major income source, we
remain cautious in assessing customers’ ability to
repay and approving loans to our customers in order
to reduce our credit risk. Despite our customers have
a good repayment history and none of our customer
defaults in repayment, we have to make an allowance
for credit losses of HK$17.55 million on our loan
receivables in accordance with the new impairment
model of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The
customer base of our money lending business is still
dominated by high-net-worth individuals. To diversify
our credit risk, we will make more effort to develop
Hong Kong listed companies segment as listed
companies have generally a higher creditworthiness.
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products business has bee great effc
developing overseas retail chain stores and wholesale
market. In the first half of 2018, we have established
business relationships with two wholesalers and one
retail chain store in Europe. In the second half, we
participated in various trade fairs and exhibitions in
Europe and Hong Kong for searching new customers.
We are currently approaching several prospective
customers in Europe and the United States, and
product samples have just been provided to the
prospective customers for evaluation. Our sales team
is following up the evaluation of product samples with
the prospective customers. With the increased sales
and marketing efforts made by our sales team, we
believe that the performance of our sale of jewelry
products business will improve gradually in the
coming years. In the meantime, we closely monitor the
business conditions in the jewelry industry and adjust
our strategy, if need.
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The segment results of our property investment
business deteriorated in 2018. Such deterioration
was mainly attributable to (i) the recognition of
the HK$233.62 million written-off of “construction
in progress” classified under “property, plant and
equipment”, (ii) the recognition a HK$21.29 million
allowance for credit losses on other receivables
from Mainland China’s debtors, (iii) the absence of
contribution from the investment properties located
in Guangzhou, Mainland China (the “Guangzhou
Property”) in the second half of 2018 following its
disposal in June 2018, and (iv) a HK$5.51 million
decrease in gain arising on change in fair value of
investment properties. In June 2018, we disposed of
the Guangzhou Property through the sale of our entire
equity interest in Best Volume Investments Limited.
Although the disposal resulted in a loss of HK$10.99
million, we considered that the disposal allowed us to
strengthen our financial resources as the Guangzhou
Property had failed to generate positive cashflow
to us since the date of its acquisition, where the
payment of operating expenses and finance costs
and bank loan repayment exceeded the receipt of
rental income. After a thorough study, we demolished
seven hotel villas erected on the first phase of our
580 Chinese acre land in Beijing, Mainland China (the
“Subject Land”) in order to make way for developing
a new business, namely cultural business, in the
third quarter of 2018. The demolition of the seven
hotel villas caused a HK$233.62 million written-
off of construction in progress to us. However, the
development of the new business is temporarily
suspended pending for the outcome of our discussion
on a co-operative arrangement with a Mainland China
wedding planner as both the new business and the
co-operation arrangement require the first phase
area of the Subject Land for operation. The co-
operative arrangement with Mainland China wedding
planner is relating to the provision of the open garden
square and the buildings erected on the Subject
Land as venue for wedding ceremony. As demand for
wedding planning in Mainland China is on the rise,
we believe that the co-operative arrangement not
only provides a new source of income to the Group,
but also increase the occupancy rate of hotel to be
erected on the second and third phases of Subject
Land. The discussion is at a preliminary stage and
no terms have been reached. The second and third
phases of the Subject Land will be developed into
a complex with a five-star hotel, high-end serviced
apartments, restaurants, exhibition and conference
halls, recreational facilities, and supporting facilities
with a total gross floor area of 71,000 square
metres. Applications have been made to the relevant
governmental authorities for amending the previously
approved development plan for the second and third
phases of the Subject Land.
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financial crisis, ONC

lost some of its vigor in 2018. We believe that the
economic outlook for 2019 remains uncertain as
the global economy is facing a lot of challenges,
including the unresolved trade tension between the
United States and Mainland China, the slowdown
in Mainland China’s economy, the extended Brexit
uncertainty, and the ongoing political uncertainty in
Europe. Moving into 2019, we continue to solidify
our fundamentals by refining our business operations
and developing our existing businesses in a cautious
manner.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Given that the Group had not been able to secure
quality films at reasonable price for distribution,
the Group ceased its film distribution business by
disposing of the entire issued share capital of Riche
Video Limited (“Riche Video”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company engaged in distribution
of video products and holding of film rights, on 17
February 2017 in order to concentrate its resources on
existing businesses. Accordingly, the results of Riche
Video were presented separately as discontinued
operation for financial reporting purposes.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to HK$586,090,000, a 200% increase from
HK$195,545,000 for the previous year. The
deterioration in the results is discussed in “Results
of continuing operations” and “Operations Review”
below.

Results of continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded revenue of HK$188,037,000, a 248%
increase from HK$53,989,000 for the previous year.
This significant increase was mainly attributable to
the recognition of the revenue of HK$6,698,000 for
the Group’s sale of financial assets business in the
year ended 31 December 2018, whereas a loss of
HK$103,657,000 was recorded in the previous year. Of
the total revenue, HK$96,274,000 was generated from
money lending, HK$36,286,000 was generated from
property investment, HK$48,779,000 was generated
from sale of jewelry products, and HK$6,698,000 was
generated from sale of financial assets.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
continuing operations amounted to HK$588,725,000,
a 201% increase from HK$195,617,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Gross profit for sale of jewelry products increased
by 10% from HK$4,551,000 in the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$5,027,000 in the year ended
31 December 2018. Gross profit margin for sale of
jewelry products decreased from 11% in the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 10% in the year ended
31 December 2018. The increase in gross profit
was mainly attributable to the increase in sale. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to
the increase in moulding and production costs in
producing product samples for business development.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

Gross profit for property investment decreased
by 34% from HK$24,931,000 in the year ended
31 December 2017 to HK$16,560,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2018. Gross profit margin for
property investment decreased from 56% in the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 46% in the year ended
31 December 2018. The decrease in gross profit
and gross profit margin was mainly attributable to
the disposal of the Group’s investment properties
located at No. 33 Nonglinxia Road, Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou, Mainland China (the “Guangzhou
Property”) on 22 June 2018.

Other gains and losses represent items of income and
expenses, which are material and/or extraordinary in
nature. Net loss of other gains and losses increased
by 603% from HK$74,634,000 in the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$524,816,000 in the year ended
31 December 2018. Major items of other gains and
losses recorded by the Group during the year are as
follows:

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its investment properties in Hong Kong
at fair value based on a valuation prepared by an
independent qualified valuer and recognised a
gain of HK$14,500,000 arising on change in fair
value of investment properties.

(b) Upon completion of the acquisition of
1,020,000,000 shares in Global Mastermind
Holdings Limited (“Global Mastermind”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability and the issued shares
of which are listed on GEM operated by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”) under stock code: 8063, the Group
measured the 217,750,000 shares in Global
Mastermind already held by it at market price for
transferring these shares from “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)”
to “interests in associates” in applying equity
method to account for its investment in Global
Mastermind. As a result, the Group recognised
a gain of HK$554,000 arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its Hong Kong listed equities classified
as financial assets at FVTPL at fair value based
on the closing prices as quoted on the Exchange
and recognised a loss of HK$296,765,000 arising
on change in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

(c) In the second half of 2018, seven hotel villas
erected on the first phase of the Subject Land
(as defined below) were demolished in order to
make way for developing a new business and a
HK$233,621,000 written-off of “construction in
progress” classified under “property, plant and
equipment” was recognised. In addition, fixed
assets with a carrying amount of HK$11,000 were
written off in the second half of 2018.

(d) On 22 June 2018, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital of Best Volume
Investments Limited (“Best Volume”) at
a consideration of HK$405,000,000 and
recognised a loss on disposal of HK$10,993,000.
The principal asset of Best Volume and its
subsidiaries is the Guangzhou Property.

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent
staff costs of sales team, overseas travelling
expenses, exhibition expenses, freight charges, and
commission incurred by the Group’s sale of jewelry
products business. Selling and distribution expenses
increased by 39% from HK$3,842,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$5,350,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2018. This increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in overseas travelling
expenses and exhibition expenses for developing
European and the United States markets.

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$162,812,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018, a 62% increase
from HK$100,573,000 for the previous year. This
increase was mainly attributable to (i) a HK$7,030,000
increase in depreciation expense due to the full year
effect of depreciation on the acquisition of certain
office units in Hong Kong for own use in September
2017, (ii) a HK$1,755,000 increase in overseas
travelling expenses, (iii) a HK$13,383,000 increase in
staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) due to
an increase in directors’ emoluments and increased
operating activities in Beijing, Mainland China, and (iv)
the recognition of an allowance for credit losses of
HK$38,921,000 on the Group’s receivables, which was
made in accordance with the new impairment model
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and had no effect
on the Group’s cashflow.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

Share of results of associates amounted to
HK$8,909,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing (i) the share of profit of HK$17,410,000
from Elite Prosperous Investment Limited (“Elite
Prosperous”), a 49% owned associate of the
Company, and (ii) a gain on bargaining purchase
of HK$3,407,000 arising from the acquisition of
1,020,000,000 shares in Global Mastermind as
discussed in “Investments in associates” under
“Operations Review” below, which were partly offset
by (i) the share of loss of HK$11,907,000 from Global
Mastermind and (ii) the share of loss of HK$1,000
from China Hong Kong Money Limited, a 30% owned
associate of the Company.

Finance costs increased by 83% from HK$23,627,000
in the year ended 31 December 2017 to
HK$43,276,000 in the year ended 31 December 2018.
Such increase was mainly due to the full year effect of
imputed interest on the Company’s HK$300,000,000
8% secured notes due 2020 (the “Secured Notes”) as
the Secured Notes were issued on 25 August 2017.

Income tax credit increased from HK$9,052,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$11,091,000
in the year ended 31 December 2018. This increase
was mainly due to (i) the recognition of a deferred tax
credit of HK$8,216,000 arising from the allowance for
credit losses made on the Group’s receivables, and (ii)
the absence of a deferred tax credit arising from loss
on change in fair value of the Guangzhou Property in
the year ended 31 December 2018, where the deferred
tax credit arising from loss on change in fair value of
the Guangzhou Property amounted to HK$5,896,000
in the year ended 31 December 2017.

Results of discontinued operation

Loss from discontinued operation for the year ended
31 December 2017 amounted to HK$3,000, which
represents the results of Riche Video for the period
from 1 January 2017 to 17 February 2017, being the
date on which Riche Video ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company.
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(—RBAARDAEBIONER2BENT) ZE
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T - F 3 H1 300,000,000 7T 8% FEIREiE
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FrERiEamE8E=_E—tFE+=-A=1+—8
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F+-A=+—RHIEFE=Z11,091,0008
JC o IBEBHMN () RAEBEWFIEERE
EFEREEE 2EERIEIKS% 8,216,000 8
TR(VBE-ZFZ-—N\NF+-A=+—HLHF
EXEEMNNELAFEESHEEELE ZIELER
HER  MBE—ZE—-—tF+=-A=+—H1
FE ENYELAFEEHEEEEZELR
1EIK % 55,896,000 3 It ©

ERIEEERR 2RE

BE_ZT—tHF+-_A=1+—-HLFE" E“\
ISR 2 BB R 3,000/ - HERE
BYR_FE—tF-RB-HE-ZT—tFZ )EJ
TLtH(NEXELFTBRAETLANBELARE
RMEZEE -
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—EEER
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FINANCIAL R

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, and borrowings. Equity attributable
to owners of the Company decreased from
HK$3,266,389,000 at 31 December 2017 to
HK$2,655,704,000 at 31 December 2018.

At 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$140,628,000 (2017:
HK$225,010,000).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$706,812,000 (2017:
HK$950,852,000) representing:

(@) the carrying amount of the Secured Notes of
HK$299,611,000, which are interest bearing at
8.00% per annum, secured by a share charge
over 100% issued shares in China Jiuhao
Health Industry Group Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the principal
assets of which are (i) the rights to construct and
operate the club facilities of a membership golf
club and resort (the “Club”) in Beijing, Mainland
China, and (ii) the rights to develop and operate
a piece of 580 Chinese acre land (the “Subject
Land”) adjacent to the Club and the rights to
manage the properties erected on the Subject
Land, and maturing on 25 August 2020;

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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RBEERUBER

FR - AEEEBRLEHMBES AQTHEE
ANERRRZRERSEEERHTES - A0 T
BEEAEGESZSHA-Z—tF+=-A=+—8H
2.3,266,389,000 B TR ZE_E—NEFE+ =
A=1+—H=2,655,704,0008 J °

RZB-NF+ZA=+—-08  AEEzRE
REEZEEYWH 140,628,000 T (=ZF—+t
fF 1 225,010,000 7T) °

RZZB-NF+ZB=+—H ' FKEEZX
BEEFE706,812,0008 T (=T —tF:
950,852,000 7t) * B :

(a) BRTE E £299,611,00058 T 2 E R E
% LERZEB8.00%:TE » WLALQT
—BEEMBARTRHEIEREEXSE
EERAGR(EETEEEANERRE
ENURTEAMILLE-—BEEHSEX
BEREEE (] 2SFRIE2E
A RFBRRELMMBE T — 17
b 580 A 2 i R ([ B b |) 2 #EF|
DUREBIFEtmm to@WESRERN)
100% EBITRO2BRHERELER
BERZEZFEENA=ZT+HBEIH ;



FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

(b)

the banking facilities in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$157,201,000 granted by a
bank, comprising (i) an instalment loan of
HK$122,152,000, which is interest bearing at
1.00% per annum over one-month HIBOR or
3.00% per annum below the prime rate quoted
by the bank, whichever is lower, secured by a
first legal charge over the Group’s properties
located at Unit Nos. 1201, 1202, 1203, 1209,
1210, 1211 & 1212 and the corridor on 12th
Floor, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Shun
Tak Property”), guaranteed by the Company and
two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
and maturing on 18 September 2037; (ii) an
advance of HK$20,000,000 under a revolving
term loan, which is interest bearing at HIBOR
plus 2.00% per annum, secured by the first legal
charge over the Shun Tak Property, guaranteed
by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and maturing on 22 April 2019;
and (iii) various advances in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$15,049,000 under the
account payable financing facilities, which is
interest bearing at 2.00% per annum over HIBOR,
secured by the first legal charge over the Shun
Tak Property, guaranteed by the Company and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
maturing in January, February, March, April, and
May 2019;

a loan of HK$200,000,000 granted by a finance
company, which is interest bearing at 8.00%
per annum, secured by (i) seven post-dated
cheques drawn in favour of the finance company
for payment of the principal and the interests
stipulated under the loan agreement, and (i) a
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
the Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company, and maturing on 30
May 2019; and

a cash advance of HK$50,000,000 made by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai to the Group for financing its short-
term funding needs. The cash advance is non-
interest bearing, unsecured, and repayable on
demand.

The decrease in the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was mainly attributable to the release of the Renminbi
bank loan with an outstanding principal amount of
RMB166,201,000 (equivalent to HK$198,826,000) at 31
December 2017 through the disposal of Best Volume
in June 2018.

$ot 75 [ B (4%
RBESRUBER(E)

(b)

H-—RBEBETRHEZzZAS EEAE
157,201,000/ T 2 R 1TRLE » EHE (i)
S EIE R 122,152,0008 7T > L — @A
FHBBTRAEREMERNZE1.00%HZ%
RITAHBEEFNRBRFERNZE3.00% 5t
BUREEAE)  UAEENURES
TFREEH168-2005EE A LAE 1218
1201 > 1202 ~ 1203 ~ 1209 * 1210 »
1211 R12125R BN RER2WE(E
BYE D) 2E—EERTERE AA
NARAATWMEZTERNBLATERR
RZZBE=Z+FAA+NBEE; (i) EH
fBE & FE T & 520,000,000 T
BREBETEEREMNMERNER2.00%
SR UEEYEE—EERE/ER
B BAEAQAIRALAT-—HEEHMBELD
AERER-ZE-NFNE=-+Z=HE
B RiVENREVEREBETALHE
85 15,049,000 B T 22 EER » BE
BRTRIZEFEMFERNER2.00% 8
DEEYEE—EAERTEERRT A
AABRARABD—BEZEN B D AER
ER=ZB-HhhE-B-ZA-ZA- M@
BEREAZI ;

B — & 8 7 2 7% H — % 200,000,000
BRLT2ER  REFES.00%TE » KU
VAITERBZEETASEAMEMI
ZUELAREBRBEAZERBZER (i) L
KANREEEITERITESTHES
EZEAERERFEER=ZZ—-LEHR
BA=+RHZ#H &

HEHELERAEREHESEEF
450,000,000 8 IR EBHR - ZWEH
RERE - EBKE > BIREREE -

AEBZAEEERRODEEHAREBR =
E—-NEXALEEBest VolumefBBRHR_-F
—tE+ A=t —HEREELRESEAAR
#£ 166,201,000 JT (#8254 198,826,000 % T.)
ZARBIRITER -

KEHE IR EBRAT
—E\EER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to owners of the Company was 27%
(2017: 29%).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$783,497,000 (2017:
HK$834,571,000) and 2.19 (2017: 1.84) respectively.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was
no change in the Company’s capital structure.

Material acquisition

On 29 June 2018, the Group acquired 1,020,000,000
shares in Global Mastermind at a consideration
of HK$153,000,000. The acquisition constituted a
discloseable transaction of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and was only subject
to the announcement requirement of the Listing
Rules. Prior to the acquisition, the Group already
held 217,750,000 shares in Global Mastermind, which
were accounted for as financial assets at FVTPL for
financial reporting purposes. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Group holds 1,237,750,000 shares
in Global Mastermind and is interested in 29.04% of
the issued share capital of Global Mastermind. As
such, Global Mastermind is treated as an associate in
accordance with HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures for financial reporting purposes.

Material disposal

On 22 June 2018, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital of Best Volume at the
consideration of HK$405,000,000 and recognised
the loss on disposal of HK$10,993,000. The principal
asset of Best Volume and its subsidiaries is the
Guangzhou Property. The disposal constituted a
major transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and was approved by the shareholders at
the Company’s special general meeting held on 27
February 2018. Upon completion of the disposal, Best
Volume ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW(Contmue
Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2018, the following Group’s assets
were pledged:

(a) the Shun Tak Property with a carrying amount
of HK$402,177,000 (2017: HK$394,330,000), of
which HK$226,577,000 (2017: HK$160,330,000) is
classified under “property, plant and equipment”
and HK$175,600,000 (2017: HK$234,000,000)
is classified under “investment properties”, for
securing the banking facilities granted to the
Group; and

(o) the 100% issued shares in China Jiuhao Health
Industry Group Limited with an unaudited
combined net assets of HK$1,101,487,000 (2017:
HK$1,338,524,000) after adjusting for purchase
price allocation for securing the Secured Notes.

Material commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a total
commitment of HK$25,283,000 (2017: HK$40,292,000)
relating to the development costs of the Subject Land,
which were contracted but not provided for.

Exchange risk and hedging

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to exchange risk
with respect mainly to Renminbi which may affect its
performance. The directors closely monitor statement
of financial position and cash flow exchange risk
exposures and where considered appropriate use
financial instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes were used by the
Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

RIE-—N\FE+ZB=+—H XEEZEHA
THEE :

(@ FEEY¥EZEMHEIMER402,177,000%
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& f1226,577,0008 T(=Z & — £ & :
160,330,000/ 8 ) D EAIWE - BE
R %% 1% 175,600,000 T(Z & —+
% 234,000,000/ B 0 ) D EEIREY
¥ UESEEFAEEZRITRE
)53
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Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2018, the headcount of the Group
was 96 (2017: 87). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$82,959,000 (2017: HK$69,895,000).
The increase in staff costs was mainly attributable to
an increase in directors’ emoluments and the full year
effect of the staff costs resulted from the increased
operating activities in Beijing, Mainland China since
the third quarter of 2017. In addition to basic salaries,
contributions to retirement benefits scheme and
discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options.

Key performance indicators
The Company has defined the following key

performance indicators (“KPIs”) which are closely
aligned with the performance of the Group.

BERMEBER

RZE-NFE+ZBA=+—H  xEEZE
BAHEBEIBA(ZE—LFE 87A)c BHEZ
EZ-N\E+ZA=+—HLEFEZEIXR
(BEESHE)A82,959,0008 T (=2 —+
F 69,895,000 w) c ETRAEMEER
REEWEEMRE-_Z—tEE=ZFEER
REIR I R 2 SR RGNS BN E T A
K2B2EWE - REAFHS - BRBERFHEIH
%ﬂgﬁ@%%ﬂ%  ETRANGEEETERE
B #E o

FRXRBER

ARBCHAATEARERRREE - zx
ER[ER(EEZXRAERD -

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

Notes 2018 2017

Mt “B-N\F “E-tF

Revenue g HK$188,037,000 & 7t HK$53,989,0008

Loss for the year attributable to owners REEANRHAABLER

of the Company HK$586,090,000 % 7t HK$195,545,0008 7T

Equity attributable to owners of the Company A4 A AEEER HK$2,655,704,000 T  HK$3,266,389,000 %
Return on financial assets at FVTPL BRATEGAEERZEREE 1

pACE: (41)% (16)%

Return on loan receivables EWER 2R 2 9% 9%
Return on capital employed in sale of HERBERMRER ZEHK 3

jewelry products (16)% M%

Return on property investment NEREZER 4 3% 5%

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Key performance indicators (Continued)
Notes:

1. Return on financial assets at FVTPL includes gains and
losses arising on change in fair value, gains and losses
on disposal, and dividend income. It is measured as a
percentage against opening fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.

2. Return on loan receivables includes interest income and
bad debt written-off. It is measured as a percentage
against average loan receivables (before allowance for
credit losses and excluding accrued interest receivables).

3. Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry products
represents segment profit or loss from sale of jewelry
products business divided by average capital employed
and is measured as a percentage.

4. Return on property investment includes gains and losses
arising on change in fair value, rental income, and gains
and losses on disposal less amortisation of intangible
assets in respect of the Club, depreciation expenses of the
property, plant and equipment of the Club and operating
lease rentals in respect of the Club. It is measured as
a percentage against opening fair value of investment
properties, opening carrying amounts of intangible assets
in respect of the Club and opening carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the Club.

Commentary on the performance of the Group against
each of the KPIs is set out above and “Operations
Review” below.

These KPIs are reviewed regularly and amended
occasionally to correspond with the changing mix of
the Group’s principal activities.

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Sale of financial assets business

During the year, the Group’s sale of financial assets
business reported a segment loss (before taxation)
of HK$289,126,000, which mainly included (i) a gain
of HK$6,698,000 from trading of Hong Kong listed
equities, (ii) a loss of HK$296,211,000 arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL,
and (iii) the dividend income from Hong Kong listed
equities held by the Group of HK$661,000. The
segment loss was due to a sharp drop in equity
valuations in 2018, particularly in small and medium
cap stocks, which resulted in a 220% increase in
the loss on change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL. Accordingly, return on financial assets at
FVTPL deteriorated from (16)% for the year ended
31 December 2017 to (41)% for the year ended 31
December 2018.

FERBREGE)
i -

1. BRAFPERABSERZEMEEZOHEELF
BEREBELECWEREE HESEIWRSERE
B URKREWA - MEAFEFABERZE
BMEEZBAAVEFERBDL -

2. RBWERZDRSEFSWARIRRME - XF
HEKER(REEBERENRTEERYKE
AREIRERBEAL -

3. HERHERMAERZEREHEREERE
Bz aRRBEERUFIEGMAER » YFH
BB -

4. YERECZEROELAFESDELEZRERE
B HEWARKESHEZREREERNEER
B ENEECBE  R2WE  BERR
B ERIREBEEM2REHERSE - LR
ENEZHBOATE FHEFMBREEZH
MREERSEM2UE  BERREZHAKRE
EFERBDL -

RAEERR 2B EITERBIEEZFREAR L
AR T X[ SR ERE ] o

ZETERBEREEHW L AEER] - B
BAKETHE2B 2T EXKAS -

E 3 e
HETHEEXRK

FR - AEBEHEECREEER S RO ER
(BR#iAT) 289,126,000 T TEGFE(H)E
BEBEHREWE6,698,00058 7T ; (i) B
FEFABRRCEHEEATFEEHEEZ
E518296,211,0008 7t ; R (i)HAEEEFE
ZEBLITREZREWAG661,0008T 5
BEEHR-_Z-\EREXLEEZNEKH
BRE)EEAETR  EHRAFEFAR
nRZEMEENTESBEEILEMN220% °
Hit > BAFEFABERZEHEE 2BR
HEBEEZ-Z—tF+-A=+—HLFEZ
(1) % BHEREBEZE-_FE—N\F+=-A=+—H
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Sale of financial assets business (Continued) HESHEEXEK (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group acquired four Hong Kong listed equities with
the aggregate acquisition costs of HK$34,730,000
and made a trading gain of HK$6,698,000 from

BE-ZE-N\F+-A=+—HBLEEE &
EEBANESEELLTRE BABAKELS
34,730,000 B T R HE=EFBELTRE -
HEREE MR 5 K2 # %5 584,348,000 78

selling three Hong Kong listed equities with the JC 0 T & P18 A 1E 42 58 5 91,046,000 8

aggregate carrying amounts plus transactions costs

of HK$84,348,000 at the aggregate sale proceeds of

HK$91,046,000.

Movements in the carrying amount of Hong Kong
listed equities held by the Group during the years

7T MEEEEWH6,698,0008 7T °

BE-Z-/\ER-ZF-—tHF+-A=1+—H
LFE AAKESAZEBLTREZRE

ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: BEZ2E2EWT :
2018 2017
—E-NEF —ZT—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKRHEE 662,943 544,442
Add: Acquisitions o EA 34,730 304,722
Re-classification from available- EfoBAHEESR
for-sale financial assets EE - 365,000
Gain arising on change in fair EHERPENR 2 ERE
value upon transfer AFHEEZBEEZ
to interests in associates U&= 554 -
Less: Disposals BHE (84,111) (458,695)
Loss arising on change in AT EEHEEZEFE
fair value (296,765) (92,526)
Transfer to interests in BERBE NG 2 EDR
associates (30,049) -
Carrying amount at 31 December RT-ZA=+—HAZKEE 287,302 662,943

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Details of the Hong Kong listed equities held

by the

HESHEERK(E)
R-ZZB-NF+_A=t—-HAHAKEFEZ

Group at 31 December 2018 are as follows: ERLTREZFBOT :
Fair value Gain/(loss)
as compared arising on
to the change in
consolidated Dividend fair value
Number total assets received recognised
of shares Fairvalue  of the Group in the year in the year
held at 31 at 31 at 31 ended 31 ended 31
December December December December December
Notes 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
8E
LVER “E-N\E
R ARER BE t-Azt-8
ZB-N\f i ZE-N\F “E-\§ LEEERR
tZR=1-H ZE-N§ +tZB=t-B tZAZ1-H AVEEY
Name of Hong Kong 52 B=t-H GAEE  LEECUE  FEE2RE/
listed equities EALTRESR it LGEE] ZAVE BEZLE ZRE (E8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr T FEr
Affluent Partners Holdings Ltd. ~ EEBRAERAR
(stock code: 1466) (RARSE - 1466) 1 59,200,000 68,672 1.73% - (4,527)
Brockman Mining Ltd. hRREBEXARAA
(stock code: 159) (RS - 159) 2 40,220,000 7,240 0.18% - 2,695
CBK Holdings Ltd. AXERERAR
(stock code: 8428) (BRAfREE - 8428) 3 21,720,000 4,344 0.11% - 1,390
China Healthcare Enterprise FERBELEEARLT
Group Ltd. (RAPAREE : 1143)
(stock code: 1143) 4 30,000,000 2,040 0.05% - (6,660)
China Healthwise Holdings Ltd. ~ #EIB&RERRERAF
(stock code: 348) (RS : 348) 5 708,396,000 43212 1.09% - (71,792
Frontier Services Group Ltd. FERBEEERAR
(stock code: 500) (R4 : 500) 6 21,340,000 26,462 0.67% - (4,436)
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd. ~ §iE£EERARAT
(stock code: 404) (AR - 404) 7 90,000,000 - - - -
Huayi Tencent Entertainment ERRNREERLT
Company Ltd. (RS - 419)
(stock code: 419) 8 200,000,000 38,800 0.98% - (32,200)
Kingston Financial Group Ltd. ~~ £F|2SREBBRAF
(stock code: 1031) (R : 1031) 9 33,028,000 61,432 1.55% 661 (186,278)
KuangChi Science Ltd. EHNEERAR
(stock code: 439) (RBRS : 430) 10 23,000,000 11,500 0.29% - (45,540)
Lajin Entertainment Network NEARERERAF
Group Ltd. (RS - 8172)
(stock code: 8172) 11 53,500,000 10,539 0.27% - (9,256)
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Ltd.  Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Ltd.
(stock code: 444) (RS - 444) 12 55,000,000 4,785 0.12% - (1,705)
Town Health International BRERERRBARAT
Medical Group Ltd. (RApfR35 : 3886)
(stock code: 3886) 13 70,000,000 6,211 0.16% - (2,889)
Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. ~ EZ4BEEERAT
(stock code: 376) (R4S - 376) 14 444,000 2,065 0.05% - 433
287,302 661 (296,765)
KB FBE R EERAT

—EN\FEH

19



20

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

Sale

of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes:

Affluent Partners Holdings Ltd. (“Affluent Partners”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery products, and (ii) the
operation of strategic investment and financial services
segment, with the objective to include investments in real
estate agency business, real estate investment, and other
potential investment opportunities.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$236,508,000 and HK$217,179,000 at
31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018 respectively. The
group recorded a loss attributable to owners of Affluent
Partners of HK$129,787,000 and HK$14,796,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and the six months ended 30
September 2018 respectively.

As disclosed in its 2018 interim report, with gradual
expansion in real estate investment business, Affluent
Partners’ targets are the United Kingdom and the
countries along “Eurasia”. Affluent Partners anticipates
such investments and its strategic investment and financial
services business will diversify its income streams, and
generate additional investment returns on its available
funds from time to time. Affluent Partners expects that
the real estate investment business will be its growth
driver and will actively make continuous efforts to find
appropriate investment projects in the future. Affluent
Partners will continue enhancing the development of the
mature pearls and jewellery business, actively participating
in various important jewellery & gem fairs around the
world and optimising operation efficiency and productivity
in a bid to stay competitive. With the memorandum of
understanding dated 4 October 2018 relating to the
formation of a joint venture for the acquisition and
development properties across the United Kingdom
especially in the student housing, serviced apartments and
built to rent sectors, the collaboration agreement dated
26 October 2018 relating to setting up one or more REITs,
and the development of its existing strategic investment
and financial services business, Affluent Partners will focus
its investments and operations more in the real estate and
investment and asset management sectors especially in
Europe and Asia.

Brockman Mining Ltd. (“Brockman Mining”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development
and exploration of iron ore mining projects in Australia.

Based on its published financial information, the group had
net assets of HK$584,725,000 and HK$549,486,000 at 30
June 2018 and 31 December 2018 respectively. The group
recorded a profit attributable to owners of Brockman
Mining of HK$108,086,000 for the year ended 30 June
2018 and a loss attributable to owners of Brockman
Mining of HK$12,245,000 for the six months ended 31
December 2018.
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Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

According to its latest interim results announcement,
Brockman Mining entered into a Farm-in Joint Venture
Agreement (the “FJV Agreement”) with Polaris Metals
Pty Ltd. (“Polaris”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Mineral
Resources Limited (“MRL”), on 26 July 2018 for the
development of its flagship Marillana Iron Ore Project
located in Pilbara region of Western Australia. Under
the terms of the FJV Agreement, Polaris will earn a 50%
interest in the Marillana Iron Ore Project and MRL will be
responsible for development of the mine, construction
and operation of the processing plant for an estimated
minimum production rate of 20 million tonnes per annum
of high quality Marillana product. The funding for the mine
development, which is estimated to be a maximum of
A$300 million, will be shared by the joint venture. Under
the terms of the FJV Agreement, MRL will use its best
endeavours to secure debt funding for Brockman Mining’s
A$150 million contribution. The capital cost for the process
plant construction will be borne entirely by MRL, in return
for a service fee to be paid by the joint venture based
on production volumes. MRL has also committed to the
construction and operation of rail and port infrastructure,
which consists of a 320km long light railway connecting
Marillana to a port at South West Creek in the Port
Hedland inner harbour. It is expected that construction
of this railway and port will commence before the end
of 2019 and be operational by the end of 2021. The
processing plant is scheduled to commence operations
concurrently with the railway. The establishment of the
joint venture will unlock the value of the Marillana Iron
Ore Project and may assist in the future development of
its group’s other iron ore assets in the Pilbara Region.
Brockman Mining is looking forward to working with MRL,
an established Australian mining services and processing
company. The proven capability of MRL in constructing
and operating process plants in the Pilbara region will de-
risk the development of the Marillana Iron Ore Project.

CBK Holdings Ltd. (“CBK Holdings”) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of catering services in
Hong Kong.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$81,008,000 and HK$74,296,000
at 31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018 respectively.
The group recorded a loss attributable to owners of CBK
Holdings of HK$9,746,000 and HK$6,712,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and the six months ended 30
September 2018 respectively.
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Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

According to its 2018 interim report, CBK Holdings will
continue with its prudent site selection strategy to expand
its network of hotpot restaurants. CBK Holdings will
also continue to conduct feasibility studies on refining
its existing brands and launching of new brands to meet
growing customer expectations on dining experience. CBK
Holdings is exploring the commercial viability of extending
its business hours. CBK Holdings has introduced such
measure in one of its restaurants, which offers special
discounts for customers who come for “happy hour”
hotpot or “late night” hotpot at the restaurant. Recruiting
and retaining talent for improving on overall operational
efficiency is one of CBK Holdings’ priorities in the
financial year of 2018. Based on its success in the
past, CBK Holdings remains optimistic about its future
development. CBK Holdings intends to cautiously execute
its development plan as set forth in its prospectus dated
27 January 2017 for the purpose of bringing a desirable
return to its shareholders and facilitating the long-term
growth of its business.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Ltd. (“China
Healthcare”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in (i) electronic manufacturing services, (i) marketing and
distribution of communications products, (iii) trading and
selling of medical equipment, and (iv) securities and other
assets investments.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$654,002,000 and HK$586,812,000
at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively. The
group recorded a loss attributable to owners of China
Healthcare of HK$128,428,000 and HK$52,282,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and the six months ended
30 June 2018 respectively.

According to its interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, despite uncertainties
arising from the trade tensions between the United
States of America and Mainland China, the electronic
manufacturing services business of China Healthcare
has thus far been unaffected by the trade disputes, and
it has already received reasonable level of orders from
customers for the upcoming half year of 2018. China
Healthcare will nonetheless monitor market developments
closely, including the fluctuation of Renminbi and the
rise in component costs. In respect of the latter, China
Healthcare has taken necessary action, which, besides
seeking alternative suppliers, China Healthcare will
transfer the cost increase to its clients going forward.
Furthermore, China Healthcare will continue to develop
new products, particularly Wi-Fi and Bluetooth enabled
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Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

smart-home appliances to facilitate long-term development
of its electronic manufacturing services business. With
reference to its securities and other assets investment
operation, China Healthcare remains committed to tapping
the healthcare market of Mainland China, which has been
the fastest growing market among all large emerging
economies, increasing by over four-fold in the ten-year
span of 2006 to 2016, or from RMB1,096.6 billion to
RMB4,634.5 billion respectively. Despite such phenomenal
growth, healthcare spending per capita is only at
approximately 6% of Mainland China’s Gross Domestic
Product. The healthcare market therefore possesses
tremendous room for further growth, and China Healthcare
will make the necessary investments and establish relevant
ties to expedite its development in this burgeoning
segment. While downside risk has increased significantly,
China Healthcare trusts that efforts undertaken to bolster
its key business operations, including those for raising its
competitiveness in the future, will stand China Healthcare
in good stead regardless of what economic scenario
eventually materialised. That being said, China Healthcare
will manage operations with utmost prudence, fully mindful
of the interests of its shareholders.

China Healthwise Holdings Ltd. (“China Healthwise”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in development,
engineering, manufacturing and sale of toys, consumer
electronic products, sales of Chinese health products,
money lending, and investment in financial instruments.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$274,150,000 and HK$405,489,000
at 31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018 respectively.
The group recorded a loss attributable to owners of China
Healthwise of HK$186,103,000 and HK$39,099,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and the six months ended 30
September 2018 respectively.

As disclosed in its 2018/2019 interim report, China
Healthwise will continue the multi-brand and multi-product
strategy and the strict cost control for its childcare
products business for coping with the challenge from
strong competition and the United States and Mainland
China trade war. Despite the encouraging and positive
responses on its new toy products at the New York
and Hong Kong toy fairs in early 2018, further capital
investments for product development, engineering, new
product moulds plus additional marketing and promotion
costs for new products will continuously affect the
profitability of China Healthwise’s OBM toy business.
The recent liquidation of a major toy retail chain stores
in the United States and worldwide has minor impact on
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Notes: (Continued)

the sales of China Healthwise’s OBM toy business as
management has continued to reduce price and margin
plus diverted its markets in North America towards clubs,
supermarkets and internet sales over the last couple
of years. With the right products at competitive prices,
management expects these retail channels to continue
contributing to the sales of its OBM toy business for the
reminder of financial year of 2018/2019. China Healthwise
expects the increasing tourists to Hong Kong to have a
positive future impact on the retail market of Hong Kong
and the performance of its Chinese healthcare products
business. China Healthwise will continue to invest
in the health care business and to develop its retail
business of “Sum Yung” (£ ¥)and dried seafood products
in Hong Kong with an aim to broaden its revenue base.
Despite certain uncertainties in the global economy such
as interest hike and the tightening of the United States
and Mainland China relationship, the demand for China
Healthwise’s money lending business remained strong
during the six months ended 30 September 2018. China
Healthwise will continue to develop its money lending
business cautiously by strengthening its credit policy and
risk control policy. With an aim to achieve the best use of
its resources and improve its overall performance, China
Healthwise has continuously evaluated its investment in
financial instruments.

Frontier Services Group Ltd. (“Frontier Services”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of aviation and logistics services, the provision of online
financial market information, and other direct investments.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$1,191,521,000 at 31 December
2018. The group recorded a loss attributable to owners of
Frontier Services of HK$258,846,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

According to its annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2018, 2018 was a fruitful year
for Frontier Services. Frontier Services has built up a
solid foundation for growth in businesses in 2019 and
onwards by opening up of new presences and markets
along the Belt and Road regions. During the second half
of 2018, Frontier Services had put additional effort in
exploring opportunities on infrastructure business. It is
expected that Frontier Services will take part in one or
two infrastructure projects in 2019 in order to diversify
its business segments. In 2019, Frontier Services plans
to provide infrastructure project solutions encompassing
planning and management, financing, construction and
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Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

logistics, helping its customers to manage the entire
project value chain focusing on transportation corridors,
energy and logistics networks as well as social housing
projects in Africa and South East Asia, echoing China’s
Belt and Road initiative. Frontier Services also intends
to take part in these projects through equity investment.
Infrastructure business segment will be established to
support Frontier Services’ capabilities to take advantage
of these large projects and maximise synergies. Frontier
Services has specifically identified certain countries along
the Belt and Road, namely Laos, Myanmar, Cambodia
and the Democratic of Republic of Congo for its business
development. On business segments, security, logistic
and insurance are still the key drivers for growth.
Frontier Services would like to take advantage of those
infrastructure projects in order to stimulate the growth in
revenue and profitability of these three business streams.
Although the global economy remains highly volatile,
Frontier Services remains positive towards 2019 because a
strong and solid foundation has been formed. At the same
time, Frontier Services will continuously implement various
cost reduction measures to enhance its overall operational
efficiency. Frontier Services has the belief that its focus
on the Belt and Road Initiative and its uniqueness in terms
business modeling and shareholding structure would
still be its competitive strength to support its long-term
strategic growth.

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd. (“Hsin Chong”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in building
construction, civil engineering, electrical and mechanical
installation, and property development and investment.

Based on its published financial information, the group had
net assets of HK$11,704,986,000 and HK$10,876,205,000
at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively.
The group recorded a loss attributable to owners of Hsin
Chong of HK$774,382,000 and HK$704,973,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and the six months ended
30 June 2018 respectively.

According to its 2018 interim report, Hsin Chong’s
financial situation had been restraining its ability to obtain
new projects since the beginning of 2018, which resulted
in a decrease in the turnover of its construction business.
This, in turn, caused a reduction in its cashflow and an
increase in its financing cost. Hsin Chong had pursued
strategic measures, including but not limited to disposal of
its assets and refinancing of its current facilities to restore
its cashflow and liquidity. During such restoration period,
Hsin Chong noticed and foresaw that (i) the operating
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progress of various projects might be affected, (ii) the
short-term financing cost might increase, (iii) new tenders
would be restricted until the cashflow and liquidity of
Hsin Chong restored, and (iv) key staffs turnover might
increase. Hsin Chong was currently in discussions with
Poly Property Group Co., Limited (stock code: 119),
which had expressed an interest in investing in its equity
securities.

Trading in the shares of Hsin Chong has been suspended
since 3 April 2017. The price of Hsin Chong’s shares
closed at HK$0.35 per share on 31 March 2017, being
the last trading day prior to the suspension of trading
of the shares at 9:00 a.m. on 3 April 2017. In view of
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt about Hsin Chong’s ability to continue as
a going concern, the entire fair value of the shares in Hsin
Chong held by the Group of HK$31,500,000 at 31 March
2017 was fully impaired for prudence sake.

On 31 July 2018, Hsin Chong issued an announcement
relating to the transitional arrangements for the
amendments to the delisting framework under the
Listing Rules. According to the announcement, if Hsin
Chong fails to fulfill all the conditions for resumption of
trading of its shares to the satisfaction of the Exchange
and resume trading in its shares by 31 July 2019, the
Listing Department of the Exchange will recommend
the Listing Committee of the Exchange to proceed with
the cancellation of Hsin Chong’s listing. This is subject
to the Exchange’s right to impose a shorter specific
remedial period under Rule 6.10 of the Listing Rules where
appropriate.

On 22 February 2019, Hsin Chong issued an
announcement giving an update on its resumption
progress and current status. As stated in the
announcement, Hsin Chong is in the course of formulating
and yet to finalise a resumption proposal. Hsin Chong
has not paid the amounts outstanding under the USD300
million 8.75% senior notes due 2018 and the USD150
million 8.50% senior notes due 2019. The Bermuda
Court made the orders as sought in the winding up
petition filed by a creditor of Hsin Chong against Hsin
Chong on 17 January 2019, and the new joint provisional
liquidators were appointed on 19 February 2019. The
joint and several receivers and managers of three
subsidiaries were appointed by another creditor of Hsin
Chong on 20 December 2018. The entire issued shares
of Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd., being one of the
three subsidiaries, were transferred to one of the joint
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and several receivers and managers (as nominee and
trustee for the creditor) on 21 January 2019. Hsin Chong
Construction (BVI) Ltd. was placed into liquidation on
24 January 2019 and the joint liquidators of Hsin Chong
Construction (BVI) Ltd. were appointed on 24 January
2019.

On 25 March 2019, Hsin Chong issued an announcement
stating it received a letter from the Exchange on 21 March
2019, in which the Exchange stated they require Hsin
Chong, as an additional resumption guidance, to (i) have
the winding up petitions against Hsin Chong withdrawn or
dismissed and the provisional liquidators discharged; and
(i) publish all outstanding financial results and address
any audit modifications.

Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Ltd. (“Huayi
Tencent”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) entertainment and media business, and (ii) provision of
offline healthcare and wellness services.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$868,792,000 at 31 December 2018.
The group recorded a profit attributable to owners of
Huayi Tencent of HK$73,737,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

According to its annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2018, the future of Chinese film
industry looks bright as the Chinese are now more willing
to spend on films and entertainment. According to a
public research on global entertainment and media outlook
for 2018 to 2022, it is expected that Mainland China will
continue its astonishing pace of cinema construction
between 2018 and 2022, and by 2022 the number of
cinema screens in Mainland China will be nearly double
in number of that the United States currently has. As
the Korean films and television dramas are receiving a
lot of attention and enjoying a broad and stable base of
audience, Huayi Tencent is confident of the performance
of HB Entertainment Co., Ltd., a 31% owned associate of
Huayi Tencent, and Huayi-Warner Contents Fund, a limited
partnership established by Huayi Tencent, Warner Bros.
Korea Inc. et la for investing in film projects, in the long
run. Apart from the collaboration with HB Entertainment
Co., Ltd. and Warner Bros Korea Inc., Huayi Tencent
is also actively working along with Korean producers
and looking for further opportunities and advancements
so as to increase its revenue. As the Chinese film and
entertainment industry is approaching the stage of a more
diversified development, Huayi Tencent is determined
to, through the knowledge and backing of its controlling
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shareholders Huayi Brothers International Limited and
Tencent Holdings Limited, continue its global development
and invest in quality movie projects, as well as to look
for opportunities of collaboration with well-established
and internationally-renowned film studios. In the future,
Huayi Tencent will also keep a close eye on investment
opportunities in the pan-entertainment industry (such as
the gaming, eSports and music), with a view to reinforcing
its deployment in the cultural and entertainment industry.
The healthcare and wellness business is expected to
generate stable revenue for Huayi Tencent in the future.

Kingston Financial Group Ltd. (“Kingston Financial”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
a wide range of financial services which include securities
brokerage, underwriting and placements, margin and
initial public offering financing, corporate finance advisory
services, futures brokerage and asset management
services. The group also provides gaming and hospitality
services in Macau.

Based on its published financial information, the
group had net assets of HK$20,639,360,000 and
HK$20,915,889,000 at 31 March 2018 and 30 September
2018 respectively. The group recorded a profit attributable
to owners of Kingston Financial of HK$1,348,626,000 and
HK$592,157,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the six months ended 30 September 2018 respectively.

As disclosed in its 2018 interim report, the investment
sentiment is expected to recover upon the positive
progress of the development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“GBA”), which will offer
ample opportunities for financial services industry. The
Stock and Bond Connect schemes between the Mainland
China and Hong Kong continues to fuel the growth by
means of increasing number of international and Mainland
Chinese investors trading securities and bonds across
different markets. The expansion of the daily quota
of Stock Connect and the inclusion of A shares in the
MSCI indexes may also enhance the attractiveness of
the Mainland and Hong Kong stock markets. Moreover,
the anticipated lowering of required reserve ratios by the
People’s Bank of China would stimulate positive market
sentiment and bring in positive impact to the financial
markets. Looking forward, Kingston Financial will adopt a
responsive approach, to prudently deploy and implement
expansion plans that are in line with the market situation
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. With its strong
visibility across the region, Kingston Financial is well-
poised to grasp the opportunities arising from the existing
mature Hong Kong market, as well as the emerging capital

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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market in the GBA. With the opening of the Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, Kingston Financial expects the
Macau gaming and tourism market to maintain a positive
development prospect. Kingston Financial will continue to
drive the revenue growth of its hotel and gaming segments
in the region.

KuangChi Science Ltd. (“KuangChi Science”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research and
development and manufacture of innovative products for
future technology businesses, and the provision of other
innovative technology service solutions.

Based on its published financial information, the group had
net assets of HK$2,534,049,000 and HK$1,980,327,000
at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively.
The group recorded a profit attributable to owners of
KuangChi Science of HK$66,051,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 and a loss attributable to owners of
KuangChi Science of HK$162,867,000 for the six months
ended 30 June 2018.

According to its interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, KuangChi Science is
committed to building future smart cities by developing
and integrating different future technologies, including
“future artificial intelligence (Al)” technology and “future
space” technology. In “future Al” technology business,
KuangChi Science has developed the “Super Intelligent
System” in response to the demand for urban security
and management. With the integration of various smart
surveillance devices, it makes the “Super Intelligent
System” possible for active detection, prevention, early
warning and forecasting of crimes. During the six months
ended 30 June 2018, “Super Intelligent System” was
piloted by public security authorities in Shanghai, Mainland
China. It is expected that “Super Intelligent System” will
be fully operational in the third quarter of 2018, helping
Shanghai to become the world’s first all-intelligent security
and defense region. KuangChi Science believes that the
“Super Intelligent System” is in a boundless market with a
focus on comprehensive management. With the successful
application of the “Super Intelligent System” in the area
of security and the accumulation of quality big data,
KuangChi Science will gradually further develop in various
vertical industries including comprehensive management
and security market as well as smart city operation and
services, and promote the “Super Intelligent System” as
the standard smart city infrastructure in the future. In
“future space” technology business, KuangChi Science is
committed to the application of its intergenerational flight
and float platform solutions in commercial use, such as
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urban safety, emergency and environmental protection.
Discussions regarding cooperation on the “SkyX” project,
the development of unmanned aerial vehicle for inspection
of pipelines of energy facilities, are being conducted with
a number of potential clients from South Africa, Mexico,
Argentina, Nigeria, and the United States of America. To
strengthen its core competitiveness, KuangChi Science
brought in 112 experts of high and new technology from
around the world in the six months ended 30 June 2018.

Lajin Entertainment Network Group Ltd. (“Lajin
Entertainment”) and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the business of investment and production
of movie and media contents, and the provision of artist
management services.

Based on its published financial information, the group
had net assets of HK$899,671,000 and HK$794,502,000
at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively.
The group recorded a loss attributable to owners of Lajin
Entertainment of HK$79,853,000 and HK$95,536,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and the six months
ended 30 June 2018 respectively.

As disclosed in Lajin Entertainment’s 2018 interim report,
there are six productions expected to be screened in
late 2018 or 2019. In addition, “Legend of the Galactic
Heroes” (R 53 &% ) and “The Tibet Code” (3 it % 7§)
are big-budget productions and the main focus of Lajin
Entertainment’s investment in the coming two to three
years. Lajin Entertainment will provide full support and
plan to release these productions in and after 2020. For
its artist management, Lajin Entertainment will strive
to secure more commercial advertisement jobs for its
artists and leverage on the facilities available in its
production base in Beijing, Mainland China to provide
them with necessary trainings and shooting/production
environment, enabling these future stars to shine. Lajin
Entertainment has put enormous effort in building its
Huo Miao Original Music Service Platform (“Huo Miao
Platform”). Lajin Entertainment will increase marketing
effort to promote and publicise Huo Miao Platform with an
aim to gain publicity. Lajin Entertainment firmly believes
in the originality of music and such brand new concept
of tailor-made music production would prosper in the
future. Lajin Entertainment will continue to promote its
production base’s competitive edge and strive to secure
joint production agreements to enhance a stable source of
income, as well as to ensure the maximum utilisation of its
facilities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Sincere Watch”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in distribution of
branded luxury watches, timepieces and accessories in
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Korea and Mainland China,
dining business, and property investment.

Based on its published financial information, the group had
net assets of HK$1,068,513,000 and HK$1,111,872,000
at 31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018 respectively.
The group recorded a loss attributable to owners of
Sincere Watch of HK$59,972,000 and HK$65,299,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2018 and six months ended 30
September 2018 respectively.

As disclosed in its 2018 interim report, Sincere Watch
further expanded its property investment business in
Mainland China through the acquisition of an investment
property situated in a prime location in Beijing in April
2018. Apart from their potential for capital growth, the
investment properties held by Sincere Watch are a source
of stable rental income. Sincere Watch will continue its
efforts in exploring appropriate investment opportunities
in order to diversify its source of income. The watch
distribution business of Sincere Watch is facing many
challenges and Sincere Watch will continue to look
for ways to enhance this business by establishing its
distribution network throughout its key markets in Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Korea, and Mainland China and
undertaking a number of brand enhancement activities to
reinforce the brand leadership.

Town Health International Medical Group Ltd. (“Town
Health”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in healthcare business in Hong Kong, which comprises
managed care, medical and dental clinics operation
and provision of beauty and cosmetic medical services,
direct investment in healthcare sector, and investment in
securities and properties. The group also provides hospital
and clinic management services in Mainland China.

Based on its published financial information, the group had
net assets of HK$4,314,480,000 and HK$4,383,399,000
at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively. The
group recorded a loss attributable to owners of Town
Health of HK$107,745,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 and a profit attributable to owners of Town Health of
HK$57,627,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2018.

HESHEERK(E)

Bt (&)

12.

13.

Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Ltd. ([Sincere
Watch ) R EMBARETERENREE - B
88 BERVTENERESESRBRFE -
Rt REM 2 DHER  REEBURMER
D)

RIBECHRHEER  ZEEARZZ—N\F
ZA=t+-BRZE-N\FhA=+HZEEF
B2 5l%1,068,513,0005%8 5t ) 1,111,872,000
BT e ZEEREBEZE-Z-\E=ZA=+—8
tFEERBE-ZZE-NFAA=Z1+THLXHE
B % Bl #% 8 Sincere Watchi#E B A E{L & B
59,972,00078 7t & 65,299,00058 7T °

HME - NFHRHREHAIEE Sincere
WatchZEBR-ZZE—-NEENAKRBHERLtRE
M RENMEE—SERERNTERE 2
EREEK - RABERIBRB NI > Sincere
WatchfiiEREMETABERSKRARIR ©
Sincere Watchi$#EBZ HRREBREKE U
ZuibBEREEWANRR » Sincere Watch 2 i &k
DEHE FERZEIE > Sincere Watch #§#
BEEBRNEE BN 8% EERPEAMEA
VEEHMSIERAERETSEREARBNEE
EHEEMEBEN  SRAEEREEER -

EREREEEEARADN(ERDRANBL
AFEREANEEREXY  BEEREE K
EEBERTEBLN  URBEXRIEE  RET
REBRRERBEZFRWERE - ZEETRAL
RUBRDEERE -

BREHCHR2HEER  ZEER=ZZE—t
F+ZA=+-HRZZE-NEXRA=+
AHzEEFHES B 54,314,480,0008 T &
4,383,399,0008 T - ZEBREBE=-ZT—+
F+ZBA=+-HLEEHEEREBAEM
B 107,745,000 B Tt R RBZ=-Z - N\&F
ANAZTREEANBABRSERES ABEER
57,627,000 & 7T °

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH

31



32

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continuea

Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

As disclosed in its interim results announcement for the six
months ended 30 June 2018, Town Health’s business in
Hong Kong will continue to maintain a stable growth. With
the deepening of healthcare reforms in Mainland China,
there will be increasing demand for high-end healthcare
services in Mainland China. To grasp the blooming
business opportunities, Town Health will leverage its
healthcare management expertise to introduce high quality
and more efficient Hong Kong-style healthcare service
and operation models to Mainland China and strive to
become the leading player in the healthcare industry. The
further development of Nanshi Hospital will expand Town
Health’s income base. In addition, Town Health will focus
on developing its community healthcare. Town Health’s
new comprehensive medical centre is located at the centre
of Nanyang City and equipped with high-end sophisticated
outpatient facilities to serve the needs of high-end
customers. The centre is expected to become the most
prestigious medical centre in that locality. Town Health
expects that its high-end dental business in Mainland
China will continue to grow in the second half of 2018.
Town Health will proactively promote Invisalign orthodontic
services, enhance its brand awareness, and continue
to introduce its dental clinic services and Invisalign
training services to Nanshi Hospital. Town Health will
also actively develop the businesses of Nanyang Xiangrui
Hospital Management Advisory Co. Ltd., a subsidiary
of Town Health, covering marketing, medical equipment
and consumables trading and property management
services, in order to expand the services scope of its
hospital management business. Meanwhile, Town Health
will continue to strengthen its cooperation with China Life
Insurance (Group) Company to develop integrated health
management centres in Mainland China. Town Health
will strive to develop a new collaborative business model
between the insurance and healthcare services sectors.
Focusing on preventive medicines and anti-aging services,
the health management centre will provide comprehensive
and holistic healthcare services to high-end customers of
China Life Insurance (Group) Company.

On 27 November 2017, the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) issued a direction under Section
8(1) of the Securities and Futures (Stock Market Listing)
Rules to suspend the trading in the shares of Town Health
with effect from 9:00 a.m. on that date. Immediate prior to
the suspension, the price of Town Health’s shares closed
at HK$0.69 per share on 24 November 2017.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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On 11 July 2018, Town Health issued an announcement
relating to the transitional arrangements for the
amendments to the delisting framework under the Listing
Rules. According to the announcement, if Town Health
fails to resume trading in its shares by 31 January 2020,
the Listing Department of the Exchange will recommend
the Listing Committee of the Exchange to proceed with
the cancellation of Town Health’s listing. This is subject to
the Exchange’s right to impose a shorter specific remedial
period under Rule 6.10 of the Listing Rules if appropriate.

On 31 January 2019, Town Health issued an
announcement giving an update on its resumption
progress. As stated in the announcement, the forensic
investigation has been completed and reported to the
independent board committee. As a result of recent
communication with the SFC, the independent board
committee has engaged the independent forensic
accountant to conduct further inquiry and investigation
into the matters and make recommendations to the board
of directors accordingly. Town Health will monitor and
assess the progress of such investigation. At this stage,
Town Health is not able to provide a concrete timetable on
the next steps in connection with the resumption.

Based on a valuation report prepared by an independent
professional valuer appointed by the Group, the fair value
of the shares in Town Health held by the Group was
HK$6,211,000 at 31 December 2018.

Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. (“Yunfeng Financial”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of financial services, including securities brokerage,
wealth management and investment, corporate finance
consultancy, ESOP (Employee Stock Ownership Plan)
administration, and investment research.

Based on its published financial information, the group had
net assets of HK$4,139,332,000 and HK$3,947,469,000
at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively. The
group recorded a loss attributable to owners of Yunfeng
Financial of HK$379,054,000 and HK$186,279,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and the six months ended
30 June 2018 respectively.

According to its interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, Yunfeng Financial’s
major sources of revenue includes subscription fees
and management fees for products launched by it,
platform fees for distribution of third-parties products,
administration fee for employee stock ownership plan

HESHEERK(E)

Bt (&)

14,

REZ-NFtA+—RB BERNBEHELTH
BIBMERTBRIEIER MV BIE Z B2 M - RIBZ D
fir - HERAER-Z-FF-A=1T—HAIMR
ERHEE BRI LTHSABIMLETERE
SEERMAIUERER LML ZREF - THER
MT o BXAARRE L HRAE6. 104Kk M
BRENSEMRE -

REZZB-NF-A=1+—H ERTILIMUR
HEBEBRER CRFER - HMZ MR
i EZHRATERN  WEABVESZEEER
HoHMNIHEBESETZER  BUESE
BECERB I FEEMUEEEEREEE
TE-—SEARALE  YRESSRHEE - B
REEERTEERAETZER - RERR B
REZPMERET - TRELBFEE -

REAEEZRE 2B YEXGEMRR 2 MER
HORIZB-NF+ZA=+—R  XEEFRF
BEzERRMD 2R F{ERG6,211,00087T °

ERTREFARAR(TE#ERDRANBL
AEENERHESERE  SERFEL  ¥E
EERRE DERELBARY - ETHRS
EERREWE -

REECHRHEER  ZEER=-Z—t
F+ZA=t+-BRZZE-NFXA=T
AzEEFED A H4,139,332,000/& T &
3,947,469,000 8T - ZEEREZ-_ZT—tF
T A=+ -HLEFERBZE-_Z—-N\HEXA
STHEAREADEEERSHES ABIMLE
8 379,054,000 8 7T & 186,279,00038 JT °

BEHBZ-Z-N\EXA=1tHLEXNEARAZ®H
HEBENM RZE2E—-N\FL¥F Eemz
FERERFEERTERZABEREESE -
PEE=ZFERZFARE - BEIERBREEES

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH

33



34

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Sale of financial assets business (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

management services, brokerage commission income, and
corporate advisory fee income in the first half of 2018.
In addition, Yunfeng Financial generates other operating
income and gains from its own general capital. Yunfeng
Financial is still in the process of building its client base
and scale of asset under management. In the second half
of 2018, Yunfeng Financial will continue to push forward
on the completion of the acquisition of an equity interest
in MassMutual Asia Limited. The uncertainties in the global
economy related to instances such as Sino-US trade
war, and the Brexit are expected to adversely affect the
market. Yunfeng Financial will remain flexible and adjust
its strategy in light of market conditions.

The directors believe that the future performance
of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group
is largely affected by economic factors, investor
sentiment, demand and supply balance of an investee
company’s shares and fundamentals of an investee
company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance
and future prospects. Accordingly, the directors
closely monitor the above factors, particularly the
fundamentals of each individual investee company in
the Group’s equity portfolio, and proactively adjust
the Group’s equity portfolio mix in order to improve
its performance.

Money lending business

During the year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans of HK$96,274,000,
a 36% increase from HK$70,626,000 for the previous
year. This increase was attributable to the increase in
granting of new loans to customers during the year as
compared to the previous year.

The average monthly outstanding balance of loan
receivables (before allowance for credit losses
and accrued interest receivables) increased from
HK$790,754,000 in the year ended 31 December 2017
to HK$1,055,373,000 in the year ended 31 December
2018. During the year, the Group granted new loans in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,072,000,000
to 13 customers. The Group’s customers made
drawings in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$903,267,000 from the existing and new loans and
repaid HK$915,570,000 to the Group.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Money lending business (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
assessed the collectability of the Group’s loan
receivables. Although there was no objective evidence
that the Group would not be able to collect its
loan receivables, an allowance for credit losses on
loan receivables of HK$17,547,000 was recognised
based on a valuation prepared by an independent
professional valuer. Such allowance for credit losses
was made in accordance with the new impairment
model of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and had
no effect on the Group’s cashflow. At 31 December
2018, the Group’s loan receivables together with
accrued interest receivables (before allowance for
credit losses) amounted to HK$1,186,286,000 (2017:
HK$1,200,630,000). Return on loan receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is 9%, which is same
as the previous year.

Sale of jewelry products business

During the year, the Group’s sale of jewelry products
business generated revenue of HK$48,779,000, a
14% increase from HK$42,608,000 for the previous
year, and reported a segment loss (before taxation) of
HK$6,473,000, a 35% deterioration from HK$4,801,000
for the previous year. The deterioration was due to
the Group’s sale of jewelry products business was
still at an early stage in developing overseas retail
chain stores and wholesale market, where sales orders
placed by customers were insufficient and costs were
incurred substantially for business development.

In 2017, the Group refined its business strategy by
targeting overseas retail chain stores and wholesale
market in response to the sluggish market conditions.
During the year, the Group has established business
relationships with two wholesalers and one retail chain
store in Europe through securing sales orders from
them. As it was at an early stage, the sales orders from
these three customers were not sizeable, but increased
gradually. Despite the business relationships with
three customers having been established, the Group
has continued its efforts in expanding its customer
base by participating in various trade fairs in Europe
and Hong Kong. Significant moulding and production
costs were incurred for producing product samples for
business development. These two factors contributed
the increase in loss incurred by the Group’s sale of
jewelry products business. In addition, an allowance
for credit losses on trade receivables of HK$89,000
was recognised based on a valuation prepared by an
independent professional valuer. Return on capital
employed in sale of jewelry products for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is (16)% (2017: (7)%).
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Sale of jewelry products business (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s inventories of
jewelry products, including raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished goods, amounted to
HK$33,222,000 (2017: HK$33,500,000) and the
Group’s sale of jewelry products business had
undelivered sales orders amounting to HK$709,000
(2017: HK$1,000,000).

Property investment business

During the year, the Group’s property investment
business generated rental income of HK$36,286,000,
an 18% decrease from HK$44,412,000 for the
previous year, and recorded a segment loss (before
taxation) of HK$279,788,000, whereas a profit of
HK$10,552,000 was recorded in the previous year.
The deterioration in segment results was due to
(i) a HK$233,621,000 written-off of construction in
progress as discussed below, (ii) the recognition of
an allowance for credit losses of HK$21,285,000 on
the Group’s other receivables from Mainland China
debtors, (iii) a HK$5,513,000 decrease in gain on
change in fair value of investment properties, (iv)
the increase in operating costs resulted from the
increased operating activities in Beijing, Mainland
China, and (v) the absence of contribution from the
Guangzhou Property in the second half of 2018
following its disposal in June 2018. Of the total rental
income, HK$21,263,000 was generated from the
assets of the Club, HK$3,510,000 was generated from
the investment portion of the Shun Tak Property, and
HK$11,513,000 was generated from the Guangzhou
Property. No rental income was generated from the
Subject Land.

The development of the Subject Land was originally
divided into three phases, in which the first phase
involved erecting nine hotel villas, the second phase
involved erecting hotel villas, and the third phase
involved erecting a high-end hotel apartment complex
with restaurants, multifunction room facilities and
hotel apartment units. The first phase development of
the Subject Land was completed. The gross floor area
of the nine hotel villas erected on the first phase of
the Subject Land amounts to 23,000 square metres.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

Property investment business (Continued)

In the third quarter of 2018, the directors decided to
develop a new business, namely cultural business. In
developing the new business, the directors decided to
utilise the entire first phase of the Subject Land. To
make way for developing the new business, seven of
the nine hotel villas erected on the first phase of the
Subject Land with a total gross floor area of 18,000
square metres were demolished for constructing an
open garden square with an area of 60,000 square
metres, whereas the remaining two hotel villas with
a total gross floor area of 5,000 square metres
are to be used as supporting facilities for the new
business. As a result of demolishing the seven hotel
villas, a HK$233,621,000 written-off of “construction
in progress” classified under “property, plant and
equipment” was recognised.

The gross floor area of the demolished seven hotel
villas, being 18,000 square metres, was added into
the second and third phases development of the
Subject Land. The design development stage of the
second and third phases development of the Subject
Land has been completed. The second and third
phases of the Subject Land will be developed into
a complex with a five-star hotel, high-end serviced
apartments, restaurants, exhibition and conference
halls, recreational facilities, such as an indoor pool,
a spacious spa and a fitness centre, and supporting
facilities with a total gross floor area of 71,000
square metres. Applications have been made to the
relevant governmental authorities for amending the
previously approved development plan for the second
and third phases of the Subject Land. Based on a
rough estimation, the total development costs for
the second and third phases of the Subject Land are
RMB904,425,000 (equivalent to HK$1,032,211,000),
which will be financed by the internal resources of the
Group, income generated from the Group’s property
investment operations in Beijing, and external
borrowings.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

Property investment business (Continued)

The Group is currently in discussion with a Mainland
China wedding planner relating to a co-operative
arrangement for the provision of the open garden
square and the buildings erected on the Subject Land
as venue for wedding ceremony. With the growing
number of middle class in Mainland China and
weddings being a serious affair in Chinese culture,
weddings in Mainland China have now become a way
for brides and grooms to impress their friends and
peers. Accordingly, demand for wedding planning
in Mainland China is on the rise. The directors
believe that the co-operative arrangement not only
provides a new source of income to the Group, but
also increases the occupancy rate of hotel. If the
co-operative arrangement is materialised, the open
garden square together with the remaining two
hotel villas erected on the first phase of the Subject
Land will be utilised for holding wedding ceremony.
Accordingly, the development of the new business is
temporarily suspended pending for the outcome of
the discussion. As at the date of this annual report,
the discussion is at a preliminary stage and no terms
have been reached.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed impairment tests for the goodwill arising
from the acquisition of Smart Title Limited and the
intangible assets relating to (i) the rights to construct
and operate the club facilities of the Club, and (ii)
the rights to develop and operate the Subject Land
and the rights to manage the properties erected on
the Subject Land with reference to the two valuation
reports prepared by an independent professional
valuer. As the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit of the Group’s property investment
operations in Beijing exceeded its carrying amount,
no impairment loss of goodwill was required. No
impairment of intangible assets was also required
as the recoverable amounts of intangible assets
exceeded their carrying amounts.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Property investment business (Continued)

In April 2018, the renovation of the Shun Tak Property
was completed. Two and a half office units of the Shun
Tak Property have been leased out and generated
rental income of HK$3,510,000 in the year ended 31
December 2018. It was originally planned that three
office units of the Shun Tak Property were used as the
head office of the Company and the remaining four
office units were leased out for rental income. In July
2018, the Group has changed the plan of the Shun
Tak Property, in which four and a half office units are
used as the head office and the remaining two and
a half office units are leased out for rental income.
Accordingly, one and a half office units of the Shun
Tak Property with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$72,900,000 were transferred from “investment
properties” to “property, plant and equipment” for
financial reporting purposes in July 2018.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
measured the investment property portion of the Shun
Tak Property at fair value. Based on the property
valuation report prepared by the independent qualified
valuer, the fair value of the investment property
portion of the Shun Tak Property increased from
HK$161,100,000 (excluding the investment properties
with an aggregate amount of HK$72,900,000
transferred to “property, plant and equipment” in
July 2018) at 31 December 2017 to HK$175,600,000
at 31 December 2018. Accordingly, a gain of
HK$14,500,000 arising on change in fair value of
investment properties was recognised.

On 22 June 2018, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital of Best Volume at the
consideration of HK$405,000,000 and recognised
the loss on disposal of HK$10,993,000. The principal
asset of Best Volume and its subsidiaries is the
Guangzhou Property. The net proceeds from the
disposal are intended to be used for the development
of the Subject Land. Although the Group records a
loss on the disposal, the directors consider that the
disposal enables the Group to (i) largely reduce its
reliance on obtaining external financing for developing
the Subject Land, which correspondingly reduces
its future finance costs, and (ii) strengthen its cash
position as Best Volume and its subsidiaries have
recorded a net cash outflow since the date of its
acquisition. During the period from 1 January 2018
to 22 June 2018, the Guangzhou Property generated
rental income of HK$11,513,000 and contributed a
profit of HK$4,700,000 to the Group.

KO &)

MRBERE (&)

RZZE-N\ENA  EEYEzPBHIRER
B BEEYECMEEBRAZTENE HA
YHREBZ-Z—N\E+A=+—HLEEEE
4L A 3,510,0008 7T c SEWEZ =1
WOAEBENRATERERQATEREE
mMeTHERAEENMAHEUELERSK
A RZZBE—NFtAH ANEBCHEBEEY
2B MEXPRLAZENAELAREE -
METMEXHAZTENCAHBEUEEHES K
Ao AL MBBHREMS  R=ZE—-N\F+L
B EEYEZ—EERLAEENZREOAE
572,900,000 Bt ERIBREVE EEY
¥ -BMERRE]-

RBERKR  ESCRATEHECENEZ
REVEBDZAFE - E—BBEILSERM
EMFEHEMELERE  EEVEZREY
(MBI FEH=ZE—tE+=ZA=+—
H2161,100,000 8 T(FBER=ZZ—N\F
tREEYE BERREICREVES
$#£ 72,900,000 B L) IEME-_ZE—N\F+=8
=+—H2175,600,00058 7T - At » BRIKR
EYENFESEESE 2 WE 14,500,000 58

JC °

RZBE-NEXRA=Z+=ZH xEBELURE
405,000,000 T i & Best Volume 2 & &f
EETRA TRAHEREE10,993,0005%
Jt o Best Volume R EMIB AR EEEE
BEMNYE HESEZMBRBEFEREAE
TR BEAEERBEETEEEE
B EEERALESESAEE()KERE
DEHAR EEMRENESIIREE 2 KFER
E BAETFEERDERRBEER ; & (i)
MEEREAMRN - [RE A Best Volume R H
MEBARBHEWEAHEREESRHEE-
BE-E-NE—-—B—HRBRZ=-ZZE—-N\EAXA
“t+-HHE ENYEAREEELEESR
A 11,513,000 Tt & & &t & F/ 4,700,000 8
75 o

KEHMREARAT
—E\EER

39



40

OPERATION

Property investment business (Continued)

Return on property investment for the year ended 31
December 2018 is 3% (2017: 5%). The decrease in
return was mainly attributable to the HK$233,621,000
written-off of construction in progress and the
recognition of the allowance for credit losses of
HK$21,285,000 as discussed above.

Investments in associates

On 9 August 2018, the Group disposed of its 49%
equity interest in and the shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,393,000 (before accumulated impairment of
HK$5,913,000) due by Spark Concept Group Limited
(“Spark Concept”) at a consideration of HK$3,000,000
and recorded a gain on disposal of HK$1,520,000.
During the period from 1 January 2018 to 9 August
2018, Spark Concept and its subsidiaries reported
a loss of HK$4,456,000 (year ended 31 December
2017: HK$195,000). The significant increase in loss
was due to the written-off of fixed assets resulted
from the closure of the high-end Japanese restaurant
in Central. As the Group’s share of post-acquisition
losses equalled to its interests in Spark Concept, no
further share of losses was recognised by the Group.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

Elite Prosperous is an investment holding company
and the principal asset of which is the term loan
of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,410,000)
advanced to an unlisted investment holding company
(the “Holding Company”). The principal subsidiaries
of the Holding Company are engaged in (i) agency
payment services, (ii) currency exchange services,
and (iii) provision of online, mobile and cross-border
payment services. During the year, no capitalisation
issue of the preferred shares in the capital of the
Holding Company to Elite Prosperous by way of
conversion of the term loan of US$10,000,000
(equivalent to HK$78,410,000) was taken place as
one of the conditions as set out in the instrument
dated 7 September 2017 relating to the term loan
had not been satisfied. Although the capitalisation
issue has lapsed, Elite Prosperous still has the
rights to participate in the payment and currency
exchange services business by (i) converting the
term loan into such number of preferred shares in
the capital of the Holding Company as determined
by the instrument pursuant to the conversion option
granted under the instrument, or (ii) requiring the
Holding Company to sell 645 preferred shares in
the capital of one of its wholly-owned subsidiary,
which is engaged in provision of online, mobile and
cross-border payment services in Mainland China,
to Elite Prosperous at US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,410,000) pursuant to the purchase option
granted under the instrument. Elite Prosperous has
not yet decided on whether to exercise the conversion
option or the purchase option until the plan to list
the Holding Company or its subsidiaries in a stock
exchange being finalised. At the end of the reporting
period, Elite Prosperous measured the term loan at
fair value. Based on a valuation report prepared by
an independent professional valuer, the fair value of
the term loan increased from HK$77,167,000 at 31
December 2017 to HK$114,553,000 at 31 December
2018 and Elite Prosperous recognised a gain of
HK$35,529,000 arising on change in fair value.
During the year, Elite Prosperous reported a profit
of HK$35,529,000 and the Group shared a profit of
HK$17,410,000 from Elite Prosperous.

R ORE )
REBERRAZRE(E)

Elite Prosperous® — B R EZE R A &
HFXrZEEAn—BIFLmREEZER
(M= A 7 1) 2 £ 10,000,000 3 T (16 2

78,410, 000 7T) > EMEH - ZERAR
EEW‘JE"T REOREBXZGTRS (|
ERRSE: R(i)RESELE - BaRE

TR - RFR > jt,maﬁaﬂii;?@m,ooo,ooo
ET(HHZE 78,410,000 T) 2 EHERY
Elite Prosperous#E TIER A TR AR ZE L
BHzERET RERAHBA-ZT—t
FhAELtHEBRENERZXEMEAEZ2HF
—JERGFEREER BEERLBITEX
3 » Elite Prosperous{JBREZRUTHASH
TRREMELRBEER  (\REZXBER
HreBRELEHERERARNEREE
ERATDBAZELRHDEE ; (i) RIEZ
NEFRLECBEEREE ERZERLAF
LA X 18 10,000,000 % T (48 % 7 78,410,000
#70) @ Elite Prosperous HE&H —2 &K
BAR(RATPEARESREHEELE BBHRE
BYXARE)BRAF 2645 RE LR - RIZER
AAREMBLAEAR—BEESFRZF LT Z
5T 2% E Al Elite Prosperous & KRR E H
BITEERENBERERENES - AREH
7K » Elite Prosperous B AFEFTEZEHRE
Mo BE—FBUEXGEMAE ZEHER
& EZEHERZAYEH-Z—tE+=
B=+—H2Z77,167,000 8 T ME =&
—NFE+=HA=+—H=Z114,553,000 & T -
Elite Prosperous R AFEEBHEE 2 W
35,529,000 T - RE A - Elite Prosperous
2% F) 35,529,000 T+ BHAEE HElite
Prosperous 7 157& #) 17,410,000 /& 7t ©

W )

all
)dH%N'%al 7

\H]IR

KEHE IR EBRAT
—EEER

4



42

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

On 29 June 2018, the Group acquired 1,020,000,000
shares in Global Mastermind. Taking into account of
the 217,750,000 shares in Global Mastermind which
already held by the Group and had been accounted
for as financial assets at FVTPL for financial reporting
purposes, the Group holds 1,237,750,000 shares in
Global Mastermind and is interested in 29.04% of
the issued share capital of Global Mastermind upon
completion of the acquisition. Global Mastermind is
treated as an associate in accordance with HKAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
for financial reporting purposes. Global Mastermind
and its subsidiaries (the “Global Mastermind
Group”) are principally engaged in provision and
operation of travel business, treasury management
business, money lending business, and provision
of securities and asset management services. The
Global Mastermind Group has obtained licenses
from the SFC to carry out businesses in Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6
(advising on corporate finance), and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. Hong Kong is one of the
most vibrant international financial centres in the
world and financial services is one of the four pillars
sectors of Hong Kong. The directors consider that
the investment in Global Mastermind enables the
Group to participate in the financial services sector
in Hong Kong. On completion of the acquisition of
the shares in Global Mastermind, the fair value of net
assets acquired as of the acquisition date exceeded
the fair value of the consideration transferred by
HK$3,407,000. Accordingly, the Group recognised
the gain on bargaining purchase of HK$3,407,000 in
“share of results of associates”. During the period
from 30 June 2018 to 31 December 2018, the Global
Mastermind Group reported a loss of HK$41,002,000
and the Group shared a loss of HK$11,907,000 from
Global Mastermind. Global Mastermind reported an
increase in loss in the second half of 2018, which
was mainly due to (i) the recognition of an allowance
on credit losses for trade and loan receivables in
accordance with the new impairment model of HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments, (ii) the recognition of a net
unrealised loss on securities investment, and (iii)
the recognition of a loss on change in fair value of
investment properties.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The economic growth of Hong Kong is determined by
the performance of the world’s two largest economic:
the United States and Mainland China. The directors
believe that the key risks of 2019 are the outcome
of trade negotiations between the United States
and Mainland China and the slowdown in Mainland
China’s economic growth. As such, the directors
expect the Hong Kong economy and the Hong Kong
equity market remain uncertain and volatile in 2019.
Accordingly, the directors will cautiously monitor Hong
Kong equity market and adjust the Group’s equity
portfolio as and when appropriate in 2019.

In view of the key risks faced by the Hong Kong
economy, the Group shall adopt a more cautious
approach in selecting its customers in order to
mitigate its credit risk. The directors expect the
interest income on loans for 2019 will remain fairly
stable.

Sales and marketing efforts have been taken in
developing overseas retail chain stores and wholesale
market in Europe and the United States, but time is
needed to secure sales orders from customers. The
directors expect that the performance of the Group’s
sale of jewelry products business will gradually
improve in the coming years.

Despite the investment portion of the Shun Tak
Property having been leased out since the second
quarter of 2018, the directors expect that the
performance of the Group’s property investment
business will show a decrease in 2019 as compared
to 2018 due to the absence of contribution from the
Guangzhou Property following its disposal in June
2018.

For the coming years, the directors will continue to
cautiously monitor the business environment and
strengthen the business foundation of the Group by
focusing on its existing businesses. In addition, the
directors will continue to cautiously identify suitable
investment opportunities for the Group to diversify its
businesses and broaden its revenue base.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties

which may impact

the Group’s financial conditions,

results of operations or future performance and how
the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete
and comprehensive statement of all potential risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group, but rather those
risks which the Group currently believes may have a

significant impact
future prospects.

Principal risks

Strategic risk
RE b

Economic risk

S b

Credit risk
EERR

on the Group’s performance and

Description
AE

Strategic risk is the risk that medium and
long-term profitability and/or reputation of
the Group could be adversely impacted
by the failure either to identify or
implement the correct strategy, or to react
appropriately to changes in the business
environment.
REEEAERERDN S ER ERERKS
HEERBELFHEEREMAAEED
HRREBAEIR RBBERTAZE
2R -

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn
in economic conditions could impact the
Group’s performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability to
repay loans and lower asset values.
RERRAENSERR 2 TTRER RS
EBREFENEEERMEBIEREMRE
EEEREMZEREERR

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations.
FERBAMERMIACEFARZHFR
I REBTHENER  AEEAZH
BEBEZRER
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EBZSRARBRTI

LR N AR EE AN R EH R 2 ST R
bl NARE R 2 ERFERAM - ERKER
BEEZS AR R AR B 2RI KRR
SBREARE -

Mitigating actions

AT

Extensive investment management experience
of the Board.

ESENREEBEZEELER -

Regularly review on strategy and performance
of each business unit.

TR B RBEM 2 RERKRE -

Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

RABENBEEET2ESHES -

Regularly review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

EHR AR R AR S ERR o

Fully understand customers and carry out
credit quality assessment on customers before
granting loans.
RELENAZ2ETREFIHEFENTREEE
A

Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.
ERERRUERKTZE A EWRERE -

Limit credit risk exposure by granting loan to
any single customer of not more than 8% of
the consolidated total assets of the Group.
EBONANE-FEFREFTEZREAEBEFREE
REBN 2ERURFIEERR -

Make rental contracts with tenants with an
appropriate credit history.

HEAEEREEAABAT LAY -



PRINCIPAL RISKS
(Continued)

Principal risks

FEmE

Liquidity risk
REE SRR

Price risk

Bk E kR

Exchange risk

RN

People risk

ABEkE

Description

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due.
RBECEBAAEEREBITHRS 28
BEEZER -

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group’s income and
the value of its holdings of equities.

ERER A FEEBRARERERE

BEZREZDz2ER -

Exchange risk is the risk that changes
in foreign exchange rates will affect the
Group’s income and the value of its
holdings of assets.

B 5 [ B 5
BEZNMNEEZZ S R -

AEERARERFEE

People risk is the risk of loss of the
services of any directors, senior
management and other key personnel
which could have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s businesses.

ABRBAENES  sREBAERHM
TEABRLERBTREASEERERE

Mitigating actions

FEE

Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of
financial position.
EREERDESRIBRRE

Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBEERDES LB o

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in
securities listed on stock exchanges.
ERERENRGMLETESRIRBDESER -
Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance
in place, or believed to be available before
committing investment projects.

i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ&&ﬁ%ﬁ

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address
any portfolio issues promptly.
EHEEZRZREAGUNBEREINRELAS
il

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

BESEREUD HERER -

Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use financial
instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward
rate agreements, to hedge this exchange risk.

BEYERMBRRRRBERELRAR Y HEE
RREANBERTEASRIAMERNIMES
£~ SNEHRRE R BRI 4558 ) B L B B

Provide competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to attract
and retain the employees we need.
RUEBBRFIEBRENGEURRAEES
BEOWMEIREEREZAL ©

Ensure that the staff of the Group has the
right working environment to enable them to
do the best job possible and maximise their
satisfaction at work.
BRAEEZETAGEZIERENSETIR
BATREMFIERSITEREERKAL

ABHHI AR AT
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(Continue

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

FERE AB FEER

Legal and Legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a ¢ Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory risk breach of laws and regulations could lead regulatory environment and ensure that

ZEREERR to litigation, investigations or disputes, sufficient resources being made available to

resulting in additional costs being incurred,
civil and/or criminal proceedings and
reputational damage.
ERREERBRABREERER TSI o
A FEIMY  ELEBEIRER - RBER
/BHNERFREBEBEZRAR °
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implement any required changes.
EXERERR SN BRIBRITACERE
DEREMRE2HE -

Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.

BERSREAEFFHMLEXALER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2018, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance practices and standards on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the code of business conduct and ethics applicable
to the directors and employees, and the training and
continuous professional development of directors. The
Board has also reviewed the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry, all directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

ERERE
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The directors also ensure that
the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as its auditors for the year ended 31
December 2018. The statement by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 96 to 106 of the annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other executives, is
delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to four committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, to assist the Board
in discharging its duties and to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s activities.
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BOARD OF DIR

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical information of the directors as at the
date of this report are set out in the Biographical
Details of Directors on pages 93 to 95 of the annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Save and except for (a) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers, and (b) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%, 25%,
and 25% respectively in the issued share capital of
Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, there
is no relationship between the members of the Board.

The Company Secretary of the Company is
responsible to keep minutes of all Board and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
at all times met the requirements Rules 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

For a director to be considered independent, that
director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent. No independent non-
executive director has served the Company for more
than nine years.
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The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

The directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on directors’ training. All
directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
received for the year ended 31 December 2018 to the
Company.

A summary of training received by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Executive directors: HTES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai THERE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIMERE
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy PREZEE 4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REIB) A4
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHITESE :
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELEE
Mr. Ng Heung Yan REMZEE
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEEREE
Note 1:

1: Television programmes or webcasts

2: Courses, seminars or workshops

Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B: Financial reporting and taxation

On 18 December 2018, the Chairman of the Board
held a meeting with the independent non-executive
directors, without the presence of the executive
directors.

EENREENSRAEZEERBREER
E - LAESMNENTRETRE 2BBEM
EEZEEZIK CEBRBR BAXREEFEHRE
= o

EECAMETTAMRIEALSRZESE
AR - 2RESC2HEFEEXRRE - I
BARBARBEERBE-_ZE-NF+=A
=t BUEFEERBI 2 -

BE_Z- ) \F+-_A=+—-RILEFE E=S
BEIEIBEROT

Types of Subject of
training training
b ki) I ERE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hiat 1) (Kiaz2)
1&2 A&B
1&2 A&B
1&2 A&B
1&2 A&B
1&2 A&B
1&2 A&B
1&2 A&B

Liza

1: BREEJIPRER
2 RE HHERITES

Bzt 2 :

Al REERREE

B: MBRERDH
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Jﬁ' o

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH

51



52

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
has taken up the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lei possesses essential leadership skills and has
extensive experience in corporate management and
business development. The Board is of the view that
currently vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long-
term business strategies.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company
and the Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi, and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Remuneration Committee held four meetings to review
and discuss the remuneration structure and packages
of each executive directors and the discretionary
bonuses of the executive directors for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill up
the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they
arise, in light of challenges and opportunities facing
the Company, as well as business development and
requirements of the Company.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy
aiming to ensure the Board has a balance of skKills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee will evaluate,
select and recommend candidate(s) for directorships
to the Board by giving due consideration to selection
criteria including but not limited to:

(a) diversity in aspects including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge and length of service;

(b) commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(¢) qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries the
Company’s business is involved in;

(d) independence;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continuec
Nomination Committee (Continued)
(e) reputation for integrity;

(f) potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board; and

(g) plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend retiring director(s) to the Board for re-
appointment by giving due consideration to the
selection criteria including but not limited to:

(a) the overall contribution and service of the retiring
director(s) to the Company, including but not
limited to the attendance of the meetings of
the Board and/or its committees and general
meetings where applicable, in addition to the
level of participation and performance on the
Board and/or its committees; and

(b) whether the retiring director(s) continue(s) to
satisfy the selection criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend candidate(s) for the position(s) of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
by giving due consideration to the factors including
but not limited to those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and
3.13 of the Listing Rules in addition to the selection
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a director in accordance
with the following procedures and process:

(@) the Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort;

(b) the Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the selection
criteria;
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BOARD COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(c)

the Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to
the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter
make the recommendation to the Board in
relation to the proposed appointment, and
where a non-executive director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate
to be interviewed by the members of the
Board who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

all appointment of directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as director of
the relevant director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as director, as the case
may be) to be filed with the relevant Companies
Registry.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy is the chairman of
the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, and risk management and internal control
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and its performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
Prior to the commencement of an audit, the Audit
Committee meets the Company’s external auditors
to review and discuss the audit plan and key audit
matters of the Group. It also has separate meeting
with the Company’s external auditors at least once a
year with the absence of the management to discuss
any issues arising from the audit and any other
matters the external auditors may wish to raise.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continuea
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed with the external
auditors the audit plan and key audit matters of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Audit Committee reviewed with the external auditors
the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
annual report for 2017, the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2018, and the interim
report for 2018 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the review report on
risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and discussed the findings on the review
report with Infinity Concept Ripple Limited (formerly
known as Infinity Assurance Limited), which is
an independent firm of professional accountants
appointed by the Board to carry out an annual
independent review. The Audit Committee also
discussed with the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems with the executive directors
to ensure the executive directors had performed their
duties to have effective systems for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Audit Committee also discussed
with the management and the external auditors the
accounting policies and practices which might affect
the Group and financial reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 21 March 2019, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2019.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT M

The attendance records of each director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out as below:

RBE-Z-\F+t_A=+—-HLEFER:
FEESNAQBESEEHZHELCHERTIN
T

Meetings Attended/Held
BHRE/BEEE
Annual Special
general general Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit Finance
meeting meeting Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
REES RR%HH
r8 rg B2e HMZEE RAZRE BHZERE  WHZEe
Number of meetings EE 1 1 39 4 1 4 0
Executive directors: UiiEs:
Mr. Lei Hong Wai iy 1n n 35/39 44 1N NATER  NATER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REELE 1 11 /39  NARER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy RiEEts 1N 1N 87/39  NATER  NATER  NATER 010
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan RESLE 111 111 369 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEZ
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FHELE 1n 1n 36/39 404 1n 44 NATER
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELEE 1 1 36/39 44 11 44 NATER
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EERLA 1 1 /39  NATER  NATER 4/4 000
COMPANY SECRETARY YNETE =

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical information of Mr. Chan are set out in the
Biographical Details of Directors on page 94 of the
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fees of HK$1,081,000 and non-audit services fees
of HK$339,000. The non-audit services consist of
taxation services and reviewing the Group’s interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2018 and reporting accountant services in relation to
a notifiable transaction. The Company also engaged
four audit firms to perform audit services and non-
audit services for certain subsidiaries established in
Mainland China and incurred audit services fees of
HK$7,000 and non-audit services fees of HK$14,000.
The non-audit services consist of issuance of capital
verification reports and annual inspection services.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

As with all businesses, the Group is exposed to
risks and uncertainties in pursuit of its strategic
and business objectives. The Board acknowledges
that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for
reviewing their effectiveness.

However, due to inherent limitations of any system
of risk management and internal control, it should
be noted that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
its strategic and business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

In view of each business units being actively managed
by the executive directors, all the executive directors
are responsible for monitoring that appropriate
process and controls are in place to effectively and
efficiently manage risks, so that the strategic and
business objectives of the Group can be met. Principal
risks are identified by assessing the possible effects
on the Group’s reputation, stakeholders, earnings,
capital and liquidity, and the future sustainability of
the Group’s businesses. They are closely monitored
and overseen by the executive directors on a
regular basis. Risk information is communicated to
employees, who have a responsibility to co-operate
with the executive directors’ initiatives and to carry
out their duties avoiding excessive risk.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

(@) A code of business conduct and ethics that
requires all directors and employees of the Group
to maintain the basic standards of ethical and
legal behavior in conducting business.

(b) A risk management process which enables
identification and assessment of risks that could
impact on the achievement of agreed strategic
and business objectives, and ensures that
appropriate mitigating measures and controls are
put in place.

(c) Clearly defined organisational structure, with
defined authority limits and reporting mechanisms
to the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND |
CONTROL (Continued)

(d) A comprehensive set of policies and procedures
relating to operational and financial controls,
including capital expenditure.

() A comprehensive system of financial reporting.

(f/ An annual review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

As the Company does not have an internal
audit function, the Audit Committee engaged
Infinity Concept Ripple Limited to carry out the
annual independent review on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2018. The annual independent review
covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group. The review
report from Infinity Concept Ripple Limited was
presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
and the Board. No material internal control defects
were found. Accordingly, the Board, in conjunction
with the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and effective.

The Board reviewed the need for internal audit
function, but has decided that because of the size of
the Group it cannot be justified at present. The Board
will review this decision annually.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Company has adopted the Policy and Procedures
on Disclosure of Inside Information which contains
the guidelines to the directors and all the relevant
employees of the Group to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SH

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise any
query in relation to the Group’s businesses at
the general meetings. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 1211, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower
168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2268 8236

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

During the year, the Company has adopted a new
dividend policy to replace its existing dividend policy
adopted in January 2000. The Company considers the
new dividend policy creates flexibility on the Board in
declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not
have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The
declaration, payment, and amount of dividends are
subject to the Board’s discretion having regard to the
following factors:

(@) the earnings, financial conditions, capital
requirements and future plans of the Group;

(b) the shareholders’ interests of the Company;
(c) the economic outlook;

(d) the contractual restrictions on the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders;

(e) the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the
payment of dividends by the Company; and

() any other factors the Board may consider
relevant.
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There was no change to - At 2

during the year. The Company’s bye- Iaws is avallable "1§HEU%§$EEAZKG1&%xﬁﬁ2ﬁ%uE °
on the websites of the Company and the Exchange.

This report was approved by the Board on 26 March ABERZZE—-NE=ZA=+"BEES=H
2019 and signed on its behalf by: o WHUATALTREREE
Lei Hong Wai *E
Chairman TR
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SCOPE AND REPORTIN

This report contains information and data on the
environmental, social and governance performance of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.

This report has been prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as set in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Group is principally engaged in sale of financial
assets, property investment, money lending, and
design and sale of jewelry products. The design
and sale of jewelry products business does not
involve manufacturing of jewelry products. The
manufacturing of the jewelry products is outsourced to
subcontractors, who are third parties independent of
the Company and its connected persons (as defined in
the Listing Rules).

ENVIRONMENTAL
Environmental Policy

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to
manage the impact of its business on the environment
both now and in the future. The Group will use its
best endeavours to conduct its operations in a manner
that is environmentally responsible and sustainable.

The Group commits to:

(@) meet or exceed all legal and regulatory
requirements for environmental protection;

(b) maintain awareness within the Group of the
responsibility of the Group and its employees to
ensure protection of the environment;

(c) reuse, recycle and responsibly dispose of all
electronic waste; and

(d) purchase environmental preferable products and
favoring products with reputable certifications or
labels.
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ENVIRONME

Use of Resources, the Environment and Natural
Resources

As the Group is principally engaged in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending,
and design and sale of jewelry products, the Group
requires limited natural resources to operate and
does not produce any hazardous or non-hazardous
wastes. Therefore, the Group has a relatively low
environmental impact.

Emissions

The Group’s direct environmental impact comes from
its office premises, air travel and fuel consumed by
owned motor vehicles. The Group continuously seeks
ways to minimise the Group’s environmental footprint
and improve its energy saving, as well as reducing
emissions.

R BERRAARERZER

HRAASEIEXSHESHMEE WER
& B8 LURRIREEREER  £A5H
RECEBTE2ZRARERABIR - BAEERE
ABEEREE 2R - it - AEEHREFE

29587

FEECEEREZERBERIENE - Ml
ZERREBAEFEFEZM - ARETE
ERFERBAEEZERENRAZHED
B8 BARB D BERA o

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=t+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-NF  ZFtF
CO, emissions in kg

UAFstEz -S| E

Source of greenhouse gas emissions AEREHE R
— electricity (office premises) — BN (MRAEWHE) 65,874 46,451
— air travel — MZEER 82,302 73,820
— fuel consumed by owned motor — BRAREMEREZRE

vehicles 90,775 24,424
Total et 238,951 144,695

The following measures are taken by the Group to
reduce emissions:

(@) Communicating the importance of environmental
issues to the Group’s employees.

(b) Purchasing environmental preferable products
and favoring products with reputable
certifications or labels.

(c) Encouraging the use of public transportation
to reduce the Group’s employees’ local travel
impact.
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment and Remuneration

The Group has a strong commitment to ensure that
all its employees are treated fairly and that the Group
provides equal opportunity both to existing employees
and in its recruitment process. Merit is the primary
basis for employment with the Group. All employees
and applicants for employment should be treated
and evaluated according to their job related skills,
qualifications, abilities and aptitudes only.

The Group is committed to ensure that no employees
or applicants are subjected to unlawful discrimination,
either directly or indirectly, on grounds of a protected
characteristic. This commitment applies to all
aspects of employment, including recruitment and
selection, training, promotion and career development
opportunities, terms and conditions of employment,
grievance handling and the application of disciplinary
procedures, and selection for redundancy.

The Group seeks to consider employees from
a wide range of backgrounds in its recruitment
processes, and the Group does not tolerate any
form of harassment or discrimination of employees
with regards to race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation or religion. Active harassment
and discrimination in the workplace in any form is
unacceptable. The Group regards any actions by an
employee that constitute harassment or discrimination
as serious misconduct.

The Group has developed and implemented a
competitive remuneration structure which is key for
the Group to attract, motivate and retain the best
talent. In addition to basic salaries, the Mandatory
Provident Fund and discretionary bonus, staff benefits
include medical scheme and share options. The Group
continually reviews its remuneration structure to
ensure it remains attractive and competitive.

The Group has remained diverse, with 40% (2017:
44%) of its employees being women. The Group also
employs a broad age range, with 19% (2017: 24%)
of its employees under 30 years old and 14% (2017:
15%) above 50 years old.
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SOCIAL (Continuea
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Health and Safety

The Group is committed to the health and safety
of all employees. The Group will work to eliminate
hazardous practices and behaviour, which could cause
accidents, injuries or illness to employees, visitors
and the general public. The Group strives to have
injury free workplaces. The primary goal is to assist in
providing a safe and healthy workplace environment
for the Group’s employees and visitors.

The objectives of the Group in ensuring health and
safety are to:

(a) comply with all relevant statutory obligations;

(b) provide adequate resources to establish and
maintain safe systems of work;

(c) maintain health and safety competency and
integrate health and safety requirements in all
aspects of business;

(d) ensure all incidents are reported and thoroughly
investigated with a view to preventing a similar
injury occurring; and

(e) promote a positive health and safety culture that
is based on the principle that all incidents can be
prevented.

All managers and contractors are accountable for
health and safety performance in their areas. All
employees are required to follow rules for safe and
healthy operations, report hazards to their managers
and must always report any injuries that occur to
either themselves or others.

During the year, there was no reportable hazardous
incident (2017: Nil).
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Training and Development

The training and development of the Group’s
employees is key to employee retention, and
ensuring that employees continue to have the
skills and expertise that is core to the Group’s
sustainable business success and growth. Employees
are encouraged to attend courses, seminars and
workshops that are relevant to their jobs and the
Group reimburses for related expenses in full.
Employees of the Group also have the opportunity
to be mentored by the directors, building one-to-
one relationships to coach employees through their
careers.

During the year, the Group paid staff training
expenses amounting to HK$136,000 (2017: HK$7,000).

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to be an employer of choice.
The Group values its employees and recognises their
contribution towards achieving sustainable business
success and growth for the Group and creating value
for its stakeholders.

The Group does not tolerate unethical labour
standards and complies with local labour legislations
and minimum wage laws in the countries where it
operates.

The labour standards of the Group are:
(a) Child labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of child labour.

(b) Forced and compulsory labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of forced or compulsory labour, or bonded or
involuntary prison labour. Employees are free to
leave upon reasonable notice.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Labour Standards (Continued)

() Health and safety

The Group shall provide a safe and healthy
workplace environment and shall take effective
steps to prevent potential accidents and injuries
to employees’ health by minimising, so far as is
reasonably practicable, and in co-operation with
its employees, the causes of hazards inherent in
the workplace.

(d) Freedom of association

The freedom of association is respected and
the Group will comply with the relevant labour
relations legislation in the countries where it
operates.

(e) Discrimination

The Group shall not engage in or support any
discriminatory practices in hiring, remuneration,
access to training, promotion, termination or
retirement based on race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation, religion or other conditions
that could give rise to discrimination.

(f)  Working hours

The Group shall comply with applicable laws and
industry standards on working hours and holiday
entitlements. Overtime shall be voluntary and
shall not be demanded on a regular basis.

(g) Remuneration

The Group shall comply with the local labour
legislations and minimum wage laws in the
countries where it operates. All work related
activities are carried out on the basis of a
recognised employment relationship established
according to the local labour legislations.

During the year, no non-compliance of Hong Kong
labour legislations or Mainland China’s labour laws
was reported or noted (2017: Nil).
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices
Supplier Relations

The Group views its suppliers as partners who make
an important contribution to the Group’s sustainable
business success and growth. Employees of the
Group are expected to be honest and fair in all
business interactions with suppliers, which include
contractors, consultants and other agents.

The choice of suppliers of goods and services must
be made based on the best value received by the
Group. In addition, the Group believes in doing
business with those suppliers who demonstrate high
standards of ethical behavior. The Group will not
knowingly engage suppliers who operate in violation
of applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

All agreements with suppliers that are important for
the conduct of the Group’s business should be in
writing and must specify the goods and services to be
provided and the fees to be paid. Such agreements
must be in line with reasonable competitive and
market practices, and the relevant Group’s policies
and procedures.

Customer Relations

The Group believes that customers are vitally
important to its sustainable business success and
growth. Employees of the Group have a paramount
duty to act with integrity, respect, diligence and
competence in their dealings with the Group’s
customers.

To preserve its customer relationships:

(@) the Group does not misrepresent its services or
products in any sales or promotional efforts;

(b) the Group communicates clearly so that
customers understand the terms of the business
relationships, including contracts, performance
criteria, schedules, prices and responsibilities;
and

(c) the Group protects its customers’ confidential
information pursuant to contracts with its
customers and all applicable privacy laws in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Product and Service Responsibility

(a)

Design and sale of jewelry products

The Group shall not make any untruthful,
misleading or deceptive representation or make
any material omission in selling or marketing of
any jewelry products.

All supplies of raw materials used in the Group’s
jewelry products shall be acquired from legitimate
sources which, to the best knowledge of the
Group, have no involvement in funding conflicts.
The Group prohibits knowingly buying or selling
conflict precious stones or assisting others to do
so.

The Group will not knowingly engage
subcontractors who operate in violation of
applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

Money lending

In addition to compliance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Money Lenders Regulations and
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance, the Group strictly prohibits
abusive, misleading or fraudulent lending
practices. In providing money lending services
to its customers, the Group adopts the following
responsible lending practices:

(i) The Group provides its customers with the
information they need to make fully informed
decisions about its money lending services.

(i) The Group prices its money lending services
based on appropriate factors, including the
risk and cost of extending loans, competition
and marketplace strategy and conditions,
and soundness consideration.

(iii) The Group only approves applications where
it believes the customer has the ability to
repay the loan according to its terms.

(iv) The Group provides timely responses to
customers’ questions and complaints, and
takes prompt corrective action if it has made
an error.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

LEED (AE)

ERRBEHEF

(a)

RITREEHKREER

AEBASHEHENEHEMNKEER
REHEMKXE  REJMEFERLR
FEHEMEXRER -

AEE 2 REEmERZFTA R
FE - HARGERERES  BAKEMR
MY BESREETEHR - AEBERIULEBE
HIHEAEEGTRER °

FEBETERERRERBERERIE
RERENRE BRERRZ2ERE)Z
2R e

BE

BRi8F B ARG - REARPIRITE
RERRMD FESBEMRON  KE
BAEREILER REFMFLERK
Th -ERAFEFREBERBEK &5
EHREUTREEERTS

) AKEROEFREHBEEMEZE
B UEREEERBELE DA
BIRTE °

(i) XEBRBEFLZRERZEARKE
AR BREMISRBEAMT R~ MU
ReBEMHEZEESBEEE  BEME
ERBIELEE -

(i) AEERBHGEREREALRDE
REOBEEERZEF ZHE °

(ivy 2EBERKOEREF 2BERRK
0 B AR 0 BREREAE
i o



SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)
Personal Data Privacy

The Group will only collect personal data from its
employees and customers ethically and lawfully. It
also seeks to collect personal data in a fair manner,
and in a way that is not unreasonably intrusive. If an
employee is collecting personal data on behalf of the
Group, he or she must inform the person involved of
(i) the purpose for which personal data is collected
and, unless consented by the person involved, the
personal data collected cannot be used for any new
or additional purpose, (ii) the personal data collected
cannot be transferred to any third party unless
required by law or upon informed consent from the
person involved, and (iii) subject to the requirements
of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the person
involved has the right to request assess to and correct
the personal data collected by the Group. Steps must
be taken to ensure that the use of personal data is
complying with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Employees must ensure that the confidentiality of
personal data contained in the Group’s records is
strictly maintained.

During the year, no non-compliance of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance was reported or noted (2017:
Nil).

Anti-corruption and Ethics

The Group commits to maintain confidence in the
integrity of the Company. All directors and employees
are responsible for the Company achieving the
highest levels of business and accountable for acting
in line with the policies and standards outlined in the
Group’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, and (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior. The Group’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics clearly states
that:

(@) All directors and employees are prohibited
from soliciting, accepting or offering any bribe
in conducting the Group’s business or affairs,
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere.
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SOCIAL (Continuea

Operating Practices (Continued)

Anti-corruption and Ethics (Continued)

(b)

All directors and employees should not engage in
activities or hold or trade assets that involve, or
could appear to involve, a conflict between their
personal interests and the interests of the Group.

No gift or entertainment should ever be offered
or accepted by a director, an employee or any
family member of a director or an employee
unless it (i) is consistent with customary business
practices, (ii) is not excessive in value, (iii) cannot
be construed as a bribe or payoff, and (iv) does
not violate any laws or regulations.

Directors and employees are advised not to
engage in frequent gambling activities, e.g.
mahjong, with persons having business dealings
with the Group.

Directors and employees should not accept
any loan from, or through the assistance of,
any individual or organisation having business
dealings with the Group. There is however no
restriction on borrowing from licensed banks or
financial institutions.

Directors and employees are required to protect
proprietary, commercial and other information
that is confidential to the Group. These
obligations of confidentiality continue after an
individual’s employment has ceased with the
Group.

During the year, no instance of non-compliance
relating to bribery, extortion or fraud was reported or
noted (2017: Nil).
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Community, Business Conduct and Ethics

While the Group is accountable to its key
stakeholders, the Group also takes into account of the
communities in which it operates. The Group commits
to make a positive impact on its neighbourhoods by
being a good neighbour to the communities. In view
of the current Hong Kong’s political and economic
landscape, the directors believe that compliance with
law, integrity and fair dealing are the prime interests
of the communities. As such, the Group is committed
to make the communities in which it operates, better
places to do business by managing its business in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates and in accordance
with the highest level of business ethics and personal
integrity in all types of transactions and interactions.

The Company Secretary has been designated by
the board of directors to monitor changes and
developments in the regulatory environment and
ensure that sufficient resources being made available
to implement any required changes. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Group
complying with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates.

All directors and employees are responsible for the
Company achieving the highest levels of business and
accountable for acting in line with the policies and
standards outlined in the Group’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics. They are required to comply
with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior, (iii) provide a
mechanism for reporting instances non-compliance,
and (iv) help prevent and detect wrongdoing.

During the year, no non-compliance of the laws and
regulations in Hong Kong or the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics was reported or noted (2017: Nil).
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During the year, the Board was not aware of any non-
compliance of the environmental laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

This report was approved by the Board on 26 March
2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman
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The directors present their annual re
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 46 and 24 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes to the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, comprising an
analysis using financial key performance indicators,
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year, if any, and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business can be
found in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 8 to 46 of the annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance and the Group’s compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and an account of
the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
that have a significant impact on the Group and on
which the Group’s success depends can be found in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 65 to 76 of the annual report.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report form
part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the Group’s financial position
at that date are set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on pages 107 to 279 of the
annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 280 of the annual report.
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Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$447,033,000 (2017: HK$449,400,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, Mr. Ng Heung Yan,
and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

RARRARFAZEBFBERANGEPHR
®MIEE32 ©

BE BElHERAQRAZzELTES

FR - AXFHEEAMBELRRERE - &
B8 H &4 D EMEM L& S o

KRR 27 kiEE

ARBAR-B-—NF+ZA=+—-HITHDIK
FRE2H#HE A 447,033,000 T(=ZF—+t
£ 449,400,0003&7T) ©

BEE
FARBEARBREAH  RAFESBNOT

HITES

FHELE
(EERITHAR)
RERLE
BREEFESLAE
REIESTE

BYFHTES

FRELE
SE{-EE
EEBREE

REARF 2RI - REIBEE -
REACEEREEEAESNERERRBF X
SLWMERMT  UFESEREREMEEET -



DIRECTORS (Continued

The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries included
in the consolidated financial statements (other than
those listed above) were:

Mr. Guan Jialin

Ms. Han Fang

Mr. Yuan Huixia

Ms. Wong Siu Yan

Mr. Xie Zhaobin (ceased to be a director on 22 June
2018 due to the disposal of the subsidiaries)

Biographical information of the directors of the
Company are set out on pages 93 to 95 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-
laws, the directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
them. Such permitted indemnity provision is currently
in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy
throughout the year, which indemnifies against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may
be incurred by the directors in the execution and
discharge of their duties.
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The changes in information of directors as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”) are set out below:

(a)

on 3 April 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the Chairman
of the Board and an executive director, resigned
as the chairman of the board of directors, an
executive director, an authorised representative,
and a member of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of Man Sang
International Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange under stock code:
938;

on 3 April 2018, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton,
an executive director, resigned as an executive
director of Man Sang International Limited; and

on 5 November 2018, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, an
independent non-executive director, resigned
as an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of the audit committee, and a
member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of Man Sang International
Limited.
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INTERESTS IN SHARES, U

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors
and the chief executive and their associates in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,

were as follows:

Long positions

(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

R-ZZE-NFE+ZB=+—H ' BXQAR
BESRPERIE 2K FE B RMATRE
% WRARBRBIARIE LHRITAES
ETRSRXZNEESAMERA - ARFE
EREBRTBAEBRREZBBALRAAT
REMREEEzRG  HERORESTHEE
ZREmWT

HRE

(a) ARABREEC.OIBITZEER

Number of ordinary shares held and capacity

BEZEBRREERSH
Percentage
of the
Held by share capital
controlled of the
Beneficial corporations Company
Name of director Notes owner ZHEE AT Total LR NN
EERA K&t EREEA 2R #et BAB DL
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1and 2 357,580,000 583,832,803 941,412,803 24.65%
TIEESEE 1R2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 7 and 2 — 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REIESEE 182
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 and 2 - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
SREI B SEAE 1R2
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 6,319,500 - 6,319,500 0.17%
PRE2EE K4
KERBRERRAT

—F\FEH
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DIRECTORS’ AND
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

(a)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1.

Twin Success International Limited (“Twin Success”)
beneficially owns 583,832,803 ordinary shares of the
Company.

Twin Success is owned as to 50% by Silver Pacific
International Limited and as to 50% by Silver Pacific
Development Limited. Silver Pacific International
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Silver
Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 50% by
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan.

On 5 June 2018, Twin Success pledged its
583,832,803 ordinary shares of the Company in
favour of Kingston Finance Limited as security for a
loan facility.

Share options of the Company

RiE% >R E)

BR(E)
(@) ARABREEBENBTZERER(E)

BtEE -

1. Twin Success International Limited
(T'Twin Success|)E#=#H 583,832,803
BRAATEBRES ©

Twin Success % Bl B Silver Pacific
International Limited #8 50% #&#= & Silver
Pacific Development Limited # /& 50% &
# ° Silver Pacific International Limited
HZHEEELESEHREE - Siver Pacific
Development Limited 2 Bl 3REIE 546
B50% fem R RE B St £ R 50% R o

2. R=ZFE—NEXAAAB Twin Success
CUSANLHEERATAIFZALGHRH
583,832,803 AN AL BREHD - 1EH
—TEEREE 2K o

(b) ARFEERE

Number of share Number of
Name of director Capacity options held underlying shares
EEHE g4 BREZBRERE HEROH A
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000
THERE EREEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton  Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000
REMERE EREEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000
REIBEE EnEEA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Beneficial owner 38,190,000 38,190,000
PBREZEE T4 BER#BEA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors,

chief executive nor their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31 December 2018.
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Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the
Company’s share options during the year:

Iy
44 o

AR B RN A M SRR

TERBEEAARARFRAZBRESE :

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January 31 December
Share 2018 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2018
options RZB-NE during during during duing  RWZE-N\E
type -A-H the year the year the year theyear tZA=t-H
BRER HALTE RERRH RERTE REREH RERER HATE
Directors and chief executive
ESRIEAMAR
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2017 32,150,000 - - - (32,150,000) -
ThERLE 2018 - 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000
32,150,000 3,800,000 - - (32,150,000) 3,800,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 2017 32,160,000 - - - (32,160,000) -
REELE 2018 - 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000
32,160,000 3,800,000 - - (32,160,000) 3,800,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 2017 32,160,000 - (32,160,000) -
REELE 2018 - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
32,160,000 3,800,000 - - (32,160,000) 3,800,000
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 2017 32,150,000 - - - (32,150,000) -
Rigzss 2018 - 38,190,000 - - - 38,190,000
32,150,000 38,190,000 - - (32,150,000) 38,190,000
Total directors and chief executive
EERIEARAEAH 128,620,000 49,590,000 - - (128,620,000) 49,590,000
Employees and consultants 2017 192,980,000 - - - (192,980,000) -
EERER 2018 - 267,330,000 - - - 267,330,000
Total emplozees and consultants
ESRERS 192,980,000 267,330,000 - - (192,980,0000 267,330,000
Total
@ 321,600,000 316,920,000 - - (321,600,0000 316,920,000

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 27 April 2018, the date of grant of

the 2018 share options, was HK$0.185.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed
“SHARE OPTIONS”, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above and in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

(@ On 11 July 2018, a cash advance of
HK$60,000,000 was made by Twin Success,
which is beneficially owned as to 50% by Mr. Lei
Hong Wai, as to 25% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton, and as to 25% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan,
to the Group for financing its short-term funding
needs. The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 6 August 2018, the
Group repaid the cash advance to Twin Success.

(b) On 19 July 2018, Twin Success made a cash
advance of HK$48,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 24 July 2018, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Twin Success.

(c) On 19 October 2018, Twin Success made a cash
advance of HK$25,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 5 December 2018, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Twin Success.
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DIRECTORS’ INTER
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(d) On 14 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$10,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 5 December 2018, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

(¢) On 29 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
provided a personal guarantee to secure the
Company’s repayment obligations under a loan of
HK$200,000,000 granted by a finance company.
No consideration is paid by the Company to
Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the provision of personal
guarantee. No security over the assets of the
Group was provided for the personal guarantee
given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2018, the provision of personal
guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong Wai remains in full
force and effect.

()  On 24 December 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$50,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 4 January 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2018, the outstanding balance
of the cash advance is HK$50,000,000.

Other than as disclosed above, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director or a connected entity of a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 20 August 2018, tFRAHAKEHBEEER 2
Al (Beijing Bayhood No. 9 Business Hotel Company
Limited, “Bayhood No. 9 Co.”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as lender entered into the
loan agreement between Mr. Guan Jialin, a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, as borrower
and Ms. Hao Yuhui, the spouse of Mr. Guan Jialin, as
guarantor in relation to the granting of a loan in the
principal amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,532,000) for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018. The loan is interest bearing at
9% per annum, secured by a real estate mortgage
over a residential property located in Beijing, Mainland
China (the “Property”) owned by Ms. Hao Yuhui, and
maturing on 23 August 2020. The terms of the loan
agreement were negotiated on an arm’s length basis
between Bayhood No. 9 Co. and Mr. Guan Jialin
with reference to terms and conditions of the loan
agreements entered into between the Group and its
money lending customers.

On 20 September 2018, Bayhood No. 9 Co., Mr. Guan
Jialin, and Ms. Hao Yuhui entered into a supplemental
agreement relating to the amendment of the condition
precedent of the loan agreement dated 20 August
2018. Pursuant to which, the loan agreement is
conditional upon the real estate mortgage over the
Property having been duly registered withik 3 /1 JIE
ZE~EZEHE S (Real Estate Bureau of Beijing Shunyi
District, the “Real Estate Bureau”) by Mr. Yuan
Huixia (as an agent of Bayhood No. 9 Co.) and Ms.
Hao Yuhui. Mr. Yuan Huixia is a director and the legal
representative of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Concurrently, on 20 September 2018, Mr. Yuan Huixia
executed an irrevocable undertaking in favour of
Bayhood No. 9 Co., pursuant to which:

(@) Mr. Yuan Huixia shall, on behalf of Bayhood No.
9 Co. and together with Ms. Hao Yuhui, register
the real estate mortgage over the Property with
the Real Estate Bureau;

(b) in the event that Mr. Guan Jialin does not repay
the loan in accordance with the loan agreement,
Mr. Yuan Huixia shall sell the Property on the
instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co. and transfer the
proceeds in full to Bayhood No. 9 Co.;

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

BEXS

RZEBE-NENB=Z+H ARAZEEMH
BARLREBAREEBEERLIT(
WO AT NMEAERA)EAERE TH
BLARAZESBARBAEEABRAIRE
SEBEECHREREZ LT EAERAD
AUERBE AREEREASEAAR
#% 25,000,000 JT (FH55 74 28,532,00058 7T) =2
ER BZE-N\FNAZt+HE®EIAH
THE@ER c BERIRFEMNEINFTE » UBE
EL+HEEZURTEANMILET 2B WE
(MED2EHERBEERERAZZE-ZSF
NBZ+=BZH - BEFHZE 2FERTIELLH
ONENTHEHBERB LA AT EFEABE X2
EXREEREEEEFII U 2ZSERHE
RFER R ARME ©

REZZ2-NFAAZ=+H  HHIKAF &
FBEERRBREBZ I UHRZE > WA
BT EBRA=E-N\FNA=+HZEXKW
BERIGH - Bt ERBBRASRES

EERBIHIRATAREBNRBESZZ LM
tRmEEEFEEER(EEEERER
AR EERBRSUEE - RIES

i?ﬁ.zﬁ’aﬂ—Fﬁéﬁﬁﬂ‘%ﬂﬂZ%%&%&ﬁ

B RZE-N\FHLAZ+H REEE4E
Lo AT AZ 5 AR Y — 0RO #ss &
HE B

(a) RESBXERXRILBIOELARERME
Bt EEEERAMYEZRLE
%18

b) MEARBEERKERERBBZEEE
Mo REBERERRIENIKRE 218
RHEWE  WEAEREEZHERT
R ATE



CONNECTED TRANSAC

(c) in the event that Bayhood No. 9 Co. proposes to
change the mortgagee of the mortgage over the
Property or terminate the mortgage, Mr. Yuan
Huixia shall execute all necessary documents on
the instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co. to effect
such change or termination; and

(d) unless on the instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co.,
Mr. Yuan Huixia shall not change the mortgagee
of the mortgage over the Property, terminate the
mortgage, or sell the Property.

As each of Mr. Guan Jialin, Ms. Hao Yuhui and Mr.
Yuan Huixia is a connected person at the subsidiary
level of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, the entering into of the loan agreement (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreement with
the undertaking) constituted a connected transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The directors (including all the independent non-
executive directors) confirm that the terms of the loan
agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) are fair and
reasonable, the transactions contemplated thereunder
are on normal commercial terms and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Announcements in respect of the loan agreement and
the supplemental agreement were published on 20
August 2018 and 20 September 2018 respectively in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The loan agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement with the undertaking)
became unconditional on 26 September 2018 and the
drawndown of the loan was made on 29 September
2018.

Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no
connected transactions during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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At 31 December 2018, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
shows that the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions

(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

RoZ NE+=A=+-0 AATRED

ZRBMERGIEIBMIFEZTERRELCH
Br THIRREHEBAQFASBHITRAZ
FEREHAEARAT -

"R
(@)

AAREREECOIBITZEER

Number of ordinary shares held and capacity

BERERRBERSH
Percentage
Person having of the
a security Held by share capital
interest in controlled of the
Beneficial shares  corporation(s) Company
Name of shareholder Notes owner N ] REHARF Total EEAR
BRES/ %8 Vi3 EREBEA BEEEHZzAL ZEERER @it BRAB A
Twin Success 1and 4 583,832,803 - - 583,832,803 15.29%
1K4
Silver Pacific International Limited 1,2and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
122K4
Silver Pacific Development Limited 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
1+3Kk4
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1,2and4 357,580,000 - 583,832,803 941,412,803 24.65%
THERE 122K4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REIEEE 1:3K4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REVB R4 123Kk 4
Kingston Finance Limited 4and 5 - 583,832,803 - 583,832,803 15.28%
ENEHBERAA 4%5
Ample Cheer Limited 4and5 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.28%
4K5
Best Forth Limited 4 and 5 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.28%
4K5
Ms. Chu Yuet Wah 4,5and 6 - - 583,832,815 583,832,815 15.28%
ZRERT 4:5K6
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Long positions (Continued)

(a)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Twin Success is owned as to 50% by Silver Pacific
International Limited and as to 50% by Silver Pacific
Development Limited.

2. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

3. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to
50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50%
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

4. On 5 June 2018, Twin Success pledged its
583,832,803 ordinary shares of the Company in
favour of Kingston Finance Limited as security for a
loan facility.

5. Kingston Finance Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ample Cheer Limited, which is owned
as to 80% by Best Forth Limited and as to 20% by
Insight Glory Limited. Ms. Chu Yuet Wah owns 100%
interest in Best Forth Limited and Insight Glory
Limited.

6. Out of the 583,832,815 ordinary shares of the
Company, 12 ordinary shares are interested by
Kingston Securities Limited. Kingston Securities
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Galaxy
Sky Investments Limited, which is wholly owned
by Kingston Capital Asia Limited. Kingston Capital
Asia Limited is wholly owned by Kingston Financial
Group Limited. Active Dynamic Limited owns 49.19%
interest in Kingston Financial Group Limited. Ms.
Chu Yuet Wah owns 100% interest in Active Dynamic
Limited.

BE(E)

(a)

AARBGREENBTZERBR(E)

Twin Success % Bl B Silver Pacific
International Limited# B 50% # & &
Silver Pacific Development Limited #
B50% i ©

Silver Pacific International Limited B

EWEBEEZERS o

Silver Pacific Development Limited %
BIRREMELEEEE 50% xR REE T
EHEB50% R ©

RZZE—NFEXAHAHBH ' Twin Success
BUSFLGBERAAASIHEAEHRAE
583,832,803 AN A EZBERKH » A
—EENBME KA -

& F & B % B R 2 7 AAmple Cheer
Limitedz — B 2 & K B 2 5 » Ample
Cheer Limited B Best Forth Limited #
H80% f % & H Insight Glory Limited
20% % o &= A # L T # A Best Forth
Limited & Insight Glory Limited & 33 #&
3% o

583,832,815 RA QN A ERRRMDEF »
SREERFERATAN1ZREBRRND
HEEER - £FLRBFER AT A Galaxy
Sky Investments Limited 22 &K B
7] » M Galaxy Sky Investments Limited
HEFLLmEBERARNZERS -
Active Dynamic Limited BB € F/ 2 <7
SEAMRDAT49.19% o ZAEL L
#%4& Active Dynamic Limited 23035 o
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SUBSTANTIA

Long positions (Continued)

(b) Share options of the Company

BE(E)
(b) ARTERE

Number of share Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity options held underlying shares
REEH 54 BEZEREHE HERGEE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000
TEEREE EREEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton  Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000
REIESEE EREEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000
REIB) L4 BEREEA

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2018.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

(@) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is the chairman of
the board of directors and an executive director
of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8063), a company listed on GEM operated
by the Exchange engaging in the provision and
operation of travel business, treasury business,
money lending business, and provision of
securities, futures and asset management
services. Therefore, Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited competes with the Group’s sale of
financial assets and money lending businesses.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

BREXFREEN  ARRALBERAGN_-F
—NF+ZA=1t—-—HEBRRARNZEN
Htb BRI R -

B MHERE

AARCWERBIFHITESRELTR
BISESIBRABHEREEB M FEER
B ARARATRBYIITEEYABY
:H_: o

REFHF 2R

(a) REEXERARRABEEARAF(—
BREEZXAMGEM EHm 228 RHOK
5% 18063 - EBRMAREEREER -
MEEEER REX®  URREHRE
Z HEREEEERB) 2ESEXRE
RETES - QAL BRARBEEFAR
RABAEECHEETHEERBESE
BZBFEF -



INTERESTS IN COMPETI

(b) Mr. Lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the board
of directors and an executive director of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (stock code: 348),
a company listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange engaging in sales of toys, commercial
kitchen and consumer electronic products,
and Chinese health products, money lending
business, and investment in financial instruments.
Therefore, China Healthwise Holdings Limited
competes with the Group’s sale of financial
assets and money lending businesses.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group
is set up by the directors of the Company on the
basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

(b) ZHEXEATHSEREZREREL
A(—EREXFERLET AT » BB
KI5 : 348 MEHEHEME BABFRE
BREEBEETERRTPERER W
BER RBRESHMIB)I2ESEIR
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BERCHIEHF -

BERIBE
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RBE IR REARAREAREHEARER
RBEHRG -
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In 2018, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 11.31% (2017: 38.54%) and
46.62% (2017: 150.13%) of its revenue from sales of
goods or rendering of services respectively.

In 2018, the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 46.65% (2017: 26.19%) and
84.96% (2017: 78.10%) of its purchases respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors of the Company
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of Company) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any
charitable donations (2017: Nil).

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general

meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as auditors of the Company.

This report was approved by the Board on 26 March
2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 50, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 17 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was
a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China,
in 2002. Mr. Lei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and associates
of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of Twin
Success International Limited and Silver Pacific
International Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is
currently the chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited (stock code: 348), a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”). Mr. Lei was the chairman
of board of directors and an executive director of
Man Sang International Limited (stock code: 938), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange,
during the period from 31 March 2016 to 3 April 2018
and 26 June 2015 to 3 April 2018 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 53, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 29
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and an associate
of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also a director of
Twin Success International Limited and Silver Pacific
Development Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, an executive
director of the Company. Mr. Cheung is currently the
chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8063), a company listed on GEM operated by
the Exchange and an associate of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was an executive director of Haier Healthwise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 348 and now known as
China Healthwise Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Exchange, during the period
from 11 October 2016 to 16 December 2016. Mr.
Cheung was also an executive director of Man Sang
International Limited (stock code: 938), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, during the
period from 26 June 2015 to 3 April 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, aged 56, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 18
January 2010. He has over 30 years of experience
in accounting and financial control. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of
Administration Degree from the University of Ottawa
in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree in
Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. Mr. Chan is the chairman
of the Finance Committee of the Board. Mr. Chan
also holds directorships in five subsidiaries of the
Company. He is the Company Secretary of the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chan was an executive director of SkyNet
Group Limited (stock code: 8176 and now known as
SuperRobotics Limited), a company listed on GEM
operated by the Exchange during the period from 5
August 2014 to 25 May 2017.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 51, was appointed as
the non-executive director on 31 August 2011 and
redesignated as an executive director of the Company
on 18 September 2014. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry business. He holds directorships
in three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has over 27 years’ working experience in the field
of architecture. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a member of The Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, Registered Architect
in Hong Kong and an Authorised Person in the List of
Architects. He obtained his Bachelor Degree of Arts
in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor Degree in Architecture
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991. He was
selected as an awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection organised by Junior Chamber
of International Hong Kong in 2005. He has been
teaching as a part-time position in the Architecture
Subject Group of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education since September 2009 and
has been appointed as an Adjunct Lecturer since 1
January 2014. Mr. Cheung has been the director of
his own architectural practice, Oritecture Limited,
since 10 December 2009. He is the younger brother of
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive director of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 49, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since 25
May 2010. Mr. Wan is a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Board. He has over 25 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member of
the Asia Institute of Building.

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 48, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since
31 August 2011. Mr. Ng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Board. He has over 21 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a project director in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 54, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since 7
November 2011. Mr. Wong is the chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board and a member of
the Finance Committee of the Board. He is a fellow
member of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well
as a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 29 years of
experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance
related positions in an international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and
a company listed in the United States of America.
He is currently the chief financial officer of a public
company in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is currently
an independent non-executive director of Huanxi
Media Group Limited (stock code: 1003) and China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (stock code: 348), both
of the companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange. Mr. Wong was an independent non-
executive director of Man Sang International Limited
(stock code: 938), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange, during the period from 12 July
2016 to 5 November 2018.
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Bl #F ¢ 3t & F % 5 A4 R A 3
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 107 to 279, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matter
HARELBHE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEZ14E

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FEH G R BT 19 -

At 31 December 2018, the Group had investment
properties with carrying amounts of HK$175,600,000
and gain arising on change in fair value recognised in
profit or loss with an amount of HK$14,500,000 was
recognised.

RZZE-—N\E+=ZA=+—H > BREZREVEEREE
#175,600,0008 T WERNERREI A FERLEBE
42z 14,500,000 7T ©

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is
determined by adopting the valuation techniques with
significant unobservable inputs, assumptions of market
conditions and judgements. The Group also engaged
an independent qualified professional firm of valuers
to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques.
EEEREVEZLATFENDERAERAERTABRRGAH
B mRBRERRAB 2 AERNEE - BE5EETEE-—X
BYSEREXMER  UHEREEBEE 2 AERIM

Due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the
significant assumptions and judgements involved in the
valuation, valuation of investment properties is identified
as a key audit matter.

ML TREMZETERRREEI R Z2ERBRESH
B REVEMLERD RBEREKSHE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EENERYHBARERSENER

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s determination of the
valuation of investment properties included:
E%?ﬁ%ﬂ@féiiﬁ‘ﬁ%%ﬁﬁi%*%iﬁ?@

evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the valuers;

FHEEEMNER - O REFEM

assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

ENESHBEBTX2RBRERESEZ
HEER FEMRAZTERBERRER

2588

challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the business and industry; and

ENESHEBRITEZAHE > E5ER

BERRAEE &

checking, on a sampling basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

MEERARAE ABE 2 ER R iEE

We found the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

=
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

HEELERAE)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and
loan receivables

ESEWSIBRRERE 2 BEFE

Refer to notes 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

FER BB B E R IR EME 25 R 27 °

At 31 December 2018, the Group had trade receivables
and loan receivables, net of allowance for credit losses,
of HK$32,974,000 and HK$1,168,739,000 respectively.
Management judgement was required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of trade receivables and
loan receivables, and adequacy of allowance made.
RZB-NF+ZA=+—H EEEZEZEWRX
BEREWERNKECRIZCEEFERBR) DS
32,974,00038 5t & 1,168,739,0008 5t - R REEE
SRWFHERERER ZATRE MR LR E 27 2
W BREAELFIE -

In determining whether there was objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group took into consideration the
credit history of the customers and the current market
condition which may require management judgement.
REEREEHEFB2EBEER S BEEEZEEFZ
FERHERAEKTR BT ARAREEREFEHHE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter (Continued)
EENERHRARERSENEE(A)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment
of trade receivables and loan receivables
included:
EENEERENE S BUNRIEREBRER 2R
B ZEZRFERE

discussing the Group’s procedures on
credit period given to customers with
the management;

HEREFN® BEEEOEFRLUGES
ZREF

checking, on a sample basis, the aging
profile of the trade receivables and loan
receivables at 31 December 2018 to the
underlying financial records and post
year-end settlements to bank receipts;

R EERERBENBLHEPR ==
—“NF+ZA=+-—BEZRUFIERE
WERZRRRFEBRBZRITHUREE |

inquiring of management for the status
of each of the material trade receivables
past due at 31 December 2018 and
corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers
based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

AEEEEAN _-"T-N\F+t=-F=1—
FAMzREEREZRRFIEBEZER
URERERSXEF2ME  SIMRER
SRR THEREFCHEXBER  BE
;%FZ@E&E&%%E%&EM%
2. Kk

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BEELERAE)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and

loan receivables (Continued)

E5EWHIARERE 2B E S ()

Refer to notes 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively. (Continued)

EDRIBHGE B REME 25K 27 » (HF)
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How our audit addressed the ey Audit
Matter (Continued)
EENERHHAREXSENER (&)

assessing the appropriateness of
the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.
HEEHEREERBERAER ENES
M RMEEEESTIERARE - UFE
HREHBECERERTEYE  YHAE
BEAHMCEFRECBRRRERLER B85
BERABEMEER -

We considered the management conclusion
to be consistent with the available
information.

EERPEEENERERMER -3 -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
REXEIE(E)

Impairment assessment on the Group’s goodwill and
intangible assets

BREHERELEEZBETE

Refer to notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

ERFIZ R E IR EN 21 22K 23 °

The Group has intangible assets and goodwill of
HK$868,411,000 and HK$278,407,000 respectively
relating to the property investment segment at 31
December 2018. Management performed impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill and
concluded that no impairment loss on intangible assets
and goodwill was recognised. This conclusion was
based on value in use model that required significant
management judgement with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, in particular future
revenue growth and capital expenditure. Independent
external valuations were obtained in order to support
management’s estimates.

BERER-ZE-N\F+ A=+ - HZEFEERBED A
#868,411,000/8 T % 278,407,000 8 T » JHEAYERE D
AR EEEMEFEERBBETRENG  XEHE
W BEEERBEYEPBERBIEATRER - 2&EWIER
EAEEES  ZEXERIRURRREERERE - L
HEARRBGSBERREASIH2EREREHEK - EEEZ
RET RSB IMNPhE 2 o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter (Continued)
EENERYHRARERSENER (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets included:
EENEEEYBEREREE REMN L2
ERRFEE

evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objective of the valuers;

AHEEEM 2 ER - EOREFBM

assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;
ENESHBEBTX2RBRERESEZ
HEER FERRBZTERBERERR
=2EEE

challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the business and industry; and
ERNESHEBRITEZRHE  BEERE

BERREGEE &

checking, on a sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé)ﬂiﬁuﬁﬁgziﬁﬁﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁ

We found the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

ESRNHERRRGIREBEG -

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH

101



102

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BREZSBHE(A)

Written-off of the Group’s construction in progress
under property, plant and equipment

M BEFEYE BERREERTZEZIE

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ARSI BIRENZ 18

Pursuant to the board of directors’ decision to pursue
cultural business in the People’s Republic of China to
promote Chinese culture, customs and traditions. Seven
of the nine hotel villas erected on the first phase of
the 580 Chinese acre land in Beijing, Mainland China
(the “Subject Land”) are demolished for constructing
a cultural square with an area of approximately 60,000
square metres for carrying out the cultural business.
The demolishment of the seven hotel villas results in the
recognition of a written-off of construction in progress
under property, plant and equipment of HK$233,621,000
in the year ended 31 December 2018.
REZESENFEARANMBR B L EBUREPEX
It AR REFZRE > BR—BUAFERMEIER 15
580 mAZ Hu R ([ ERB IR 1) 55 — P& BR | 2 AR BI B &
HphtREHFEl » LEE —EEEA 60,000 F 75K 231t
BSETILER - IR tRBIEBEEHBRE—Z—N\F
TZAZ+—HLEFERIMBEYE BERRBETZHE
T #£233,621,000/& 7T °

We identified the written-off of the Group’s construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment as a
key audit matter since it is critical to the operations of
property investment business.

HAME SEEYX BERRBETERIEZHYER
BEXBoREBEXN > TERBIMENE - BERRBEET
ERIRABRBRERSIE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter (Continued)
EENERYRRERSENEE (A)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
written-off of the Group’s construction
in progress under property, plant and
equipment included:

TERME EEEYE BERREBETHE
BIRCEREFEHE

physically inspecting the Subject Land;
HERETERESR

inquiring of the management for the
business rationale of demolishment of
the seven hotel villas;
ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬂtﬁﬂ%ﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁ
al;

assessing the basis applied by the
management to calculate the written off
amount of the demolished hotel villas;
and

A EEEGECFEBERE 2 M
HEHEE R

re-performing the calculation of written-
off of construction in progress under
property, plant and equipment.
ENETHEYE  BERRBETER
TRENFTETE-

We considered the management conclusion
to be consistent with the available
information.

EERPEEENEREFTRMER -3 -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

1l
=y
I[1}
(22

ESWHMENEE - AENBREFHRME
ZER - BTEREREMBHRRREZHMEK
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HRESHESUBBR2ER S BE2E
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

EENEEACERERESSUBRERRS
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BT

o RBIRFLAES Y BEMRERFRER
MEMRNERERRARER  HELSE
ERRRTRAITERREF  BERER
BEERRERESNERREMHER -
HRBFIRERRE  RE - HMEE
o REMBRLSEERNRRES 0 Bt
K BE 3% 3R/ Ut 3 A RO BB K BE SR IR L R B
ERBERBANERMERNERNER
RILERES -

e THREELABNOAMES  URTE
ENELER BYUFEEY BEEKE
NEBEHNBEMRERRER -

o FMEFMAESNBERERE  URES
FfEgsthEREERERAEHE -



AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

s REEERAUSELEHSTERR
BRE  LRBECEMHEFLEE &
AERAY EEESELENENS
BERRBNEHABREERATEE
HE - MESREAREFEEATEE
HE EEFERLBAHREPRBES
EEIRGAUMBHRRANMEEERRK
B MR BEAERKRESRE - AEET
EEMER - TENERUBEREE
BEAHMAESHERRRRSER
ARBHRFERAEEY EXKETH
BEHERENEED -

e HMEGFEMBERR(BEERKE)NE
BIH RBRAE  URGESMBR
EREAFIIHRBEAIZKEE -

e ¥ BEEEASEBIXBIZBNTHE
ERESERENERERE  URGSY
BHREBLRZR -EEREEREE B
BERUTEENERTIE TEERE
ENELERAEZHNEME -

EEHEXZEEN(HPEE) EXRITENT
BEERGEATHEREREZEE  BEESE
R EZ BB A EBES IR T E KR FEE
i o
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AU LU

AUDIT OF THE CO
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Bt FET FET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Revenue Uz 6 188,037 53,989
Cost of sales SHERA (63,478) (57,537)
Gross profit/(loss) EF,(£8) 124,559 (3,548)
Investment and other income BREREMUEA 7 2,970 1,273
Other gains and losses Hittw = K &8 8 (524,816) (74,634)
Selling and distribution expenses  $8E&ER 7 X (5,350) (3,842)
Administrative expenses THAX (162,812) (100,573)
Share of results of associates (L& N aEE 8,909 282
Loss from operations KEFHE (556,540) (181,042)
Finance costs RMEEM 9 (43,276) (23,627)
Loss before taxation PRELATE 18 (599,816) (204,669)
Income tax credit FriSfiiEe 10 11,091 9,052
Loss for the year from continuing ZNEERHZESLEERK >
operations BB 11 (588,725) (195,617)
Discontinued operation DRILEEERE
Loss for the year from discontinued AFEERE K IHELE %K
operation ZEE 12 - (3)
Loss for the year REEEE (588,725) (195,620)
Loss for the year attributable to: LT ATEEERFEESIE :
Owners of the Company RABEBA (586,090) (195,545)
Non-controlling interests FFEIER R (2,635) (75)
(588,725) (195,620)
Loss per share BRER 16
From continuing and REFERER
discontinued operations CRIEREER
Basic and diluted BEARKEE HK(15.34) cents &l HK(5.41) cents Bl
From continuing operations REFELEEKL
Basic and diluted EARKREE HK(15.34) cents&ll  HK(5.41) cents Bl
From discontinued operation RECKRIEEEEE
Basic and diluted HEARKEH N/ATER  HK — centi{l
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the BEMf 2 MisF B ARG ESHBHRR 2 —BD

consolidated financial statements.

AERBREERAT 7
—EN\FEH
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2018 = 20
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loss for the year REEEIE (588,725) (195,620)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ ZXNEEHME2E(EX)
income for the year, Wi o IBRFIBH &
net of income tax
Item that will not be reclassified to M FEEN 7 EE
profit or loss: BwmkzHEE -
Share of other comprehensive FEALEgEE N R 2 B
income/(expense) of associates 2EWE(FX) 19,945 (910)
Items that may be reclassified HEQJEEN 7 EZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BmkzHEE -
Exchange differences arising on REBIEBEEZ
translating foreign operations fE 5 EZE (65,089) 112,251
Reclassification adjustments fora  HEBIEBRZEHHE
foreign operation disposed of EEES 10,651 —
Share of other comprehensive B —EBE AR Z
expense of an associate Hih2EH X (265) -
(54,703) 112,251
Other comprehensive (expense)/ AEEFEHME2E(FEX),
income for the year, Wz o HIRREABH &
net of income tax (34,758) 111,341
Total comprehensive expense for AEE2EHEAMX
the year (623,483) (84,279)
Total comprehensive expense for LT A+EERFEEREHE
the year attributable to: BX:
Owners of the Company ERBEBA (620,941) (84,201)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (2,542) (78)
(623,483) (84,279)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.
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2018 =

- 20 :
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERSKE 18 535,761 664,795
Investment properties REWE 19 175,600 810,019
Intangible assets mILEE 21 868,411 931,421
Goodwill [GES 22 278,407 353,599
Interests in associates REZE QT 2 ERS 24 251,383 38,393
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE 40 15,083 6,280
Prepayments and other receivables FE{4 7B & H b FE U R 18 28 50,104 20,957
Loan receivables EWER 25 353,021 574,503
2,527,770 3,399,967
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 37,471 38,453
Loan receivables ERER 25 815,718 626,127
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIE 27 32,974 41,107
Deposits, prepayments and other &% » FBNFIER
receivables HAb U FRIE 28 129,087 228,495
Amount due from an associate B — BB E A R FUE 29 - 1,480
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFTABERZ
through profit or loss ERMEE 30 287,302 662,943
Tax recoverable ] Y [B] 5 18 243 323
Cash and cash equivalents HeREBRESEEY 31 140,628 225,010
1,443,423 1,823,938
Total assets EE#E 3,971,193 5,223,905
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 32 38,196 38,196
Reserves B 2,617,508 3,228,193
Equity attributable to owners of ZAATEE AE(L#EZR
the Company 2,655,704 3,266,389
Non-controlling interests R E R (2,626) (84)
Total equity ERAEE 2,653,078 3,266,305
KIERBIREBRAT

—EN\FEH
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2018 |

= - =l :
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B ENARIE 33 3,593 8,452
Deposits received, accruals and g2z - BEEBERAR
other payables Hth B FRIB 34 121,233 383,528
Receipts in advance AW IRIE 41,235 43,467
Promissory note EAEERE 35 - —
Tax payables FERIE 86,664 87,659
Bank borrowings RITHER 36 157,201 166,261
Other borrowings HMER 37 200,000 300,000
Amount due to a director EBN—BEEFE 39 50,000 -
659,926 989,367
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deposit received and other 2lRE R EtENFRIE
payables 34 102,535 91,834
Receipts in advance FEURFRIE 16,200 37,800
Bank borrowings IRITIERK 36 - 185,193
Secured notes EREE 38 299,611 299,398
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIEEE 40 239,843 354,008
658,189 968,233
Total liabilities BEHE 1,318,115 1,957,600
Total equity and liabilities ExhaEEn 3,971,193 5,223,905
Net current assets RBEERE 783,497 834,571
Total assets less current EEAERTBERE
liabilities 3,311,267 4,234,538

The consolidated financial statements on pages 107
to 279 were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 26 March 2019 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
TigEE
Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2018

GEMBRREI07TE2I9ECR-_ZE—HE
ZAZTtHABEKESSMHEREETIZ > A

THATHREREE

Chan Kin Wah Billy
PR G2 2=

Director

EE

BEM 2 MR ARG S M BIRER 23D -



torsa

Equity-settled through other
share-based financial assets comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Other payment  revaluation Exchange income Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
IREEE  WiiE FATE
Mk HEE iTARHRE
Bk RGEE  ERBE  EERR  AeGE BE  ERRE  EXRE  MEREE  REW D FERES it
HKS'000 HKS'000. HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
i3 b2 AT AT 4 i i 2 24 i3 74 b3 23
(Note g (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note o)
(Hia) (e () (Hd)
A1 Jancary 2017 (originally statee) ~ ~E-tE-A-F
(#B%E5) 3,160 1,722,165 19,833 404,663 - 9,848 144,250 136,060) - 1,052,266 3,240,145 6 324013
Efect on earl adoption of Hong Kong 128 BZ AEfRE 28

Financial Reporting Standard 9 Bl - - - - - - (1) - - 144250 - - -
At 1 January 2017 (restated) Ho5-1E-F-B(2E]) 3,160 1,122,165 19,833 404,663 - 9,848 - 136,060) - 1,196,536 3,240,145 6 32491%
Loss forthe year KEEEE - - - - - - - - - (195,545 (195,545) M (1962
Other comprehensive income TERER2ENE

for the year

Share of other comprehensive EE-BRENIZEN

expense of an associate A% - - - - - - - - (910) - (o10) - (o10)

Exchange diferences arising BEBNRHELCEY

on ranslating foreign 28
operations - - - - - - - 112,254 - - 112,254 k] 112,251
Total comprehensive income/ KERRTNE/(BR)

(expense) fo the year a8 - - - - - - - 110,054 (o0 (195,549) (84.201) (1] (84,279)
Placing of new shares BEFRR 6422 96,480 - - - - - - - - 102,012 - 102,012
Shere issus expenses FUEES - (3,686) - - - - - - - - (3,686) - (3,606)
Repurchase of shares BERS (3%6) (7908) - - - - - - - - (8.304) - (8304
Recognition of equity-setted share- ~~ ENREEEZRATH

based payment - - - - - 10,523 - - - - 10,523 - 10,523
Release on disposal o asubsidiey  EE-FNEAERAE - - (207) - - - - - - 2012 - - -
Release on lapse of equity-setled NRBEEZRATANE

share-based payment B - - - - - 9,648) - - - 9,848 - - -
At 31 December 2017 and H ? tET2R=1-8R

1 January 2018 £-N\E-F-R 36,196 1,807,051 11,761 404,663 - 10528 - (23,806) (810) 1012911 3,266,389 84 3,266,305
Loss for the year REEEE - - - - - - - - - (686,090) (586,090) (2,63) (588,725)
Other comprehensive expense for ~ AEEERATRR

the year

Share of other comprehensive BEBENT 22T

incomel(expense) of Wi/ (83)

assoclates - - - - 19,035 - - (265) 910 - 19,680 - 19,680
Exchange diferences arising BEENERELCEY

on ranslating foreign E

operafions - - - - - - - (65,162) - - (65,182) 9% (65,089)
Reclassfication adjustment FERNER EHAR

for a foreign operation i

disposed of - - - - - - - 10,651 - - 10,651 - 10,651

Totel comprehensive income/ REERENE/(RR)

(expense] for the year a8 - - - - 19,035 - - (54,796 910 (686,090) (620,941) (2,542) (623.483)
Recogniton of equity-sefed share- ~ ESRBLEZRARHER

based payment - - - - - 9,063 - - - - 9,063 - 9,063
Release on apse of equity-setted BB RATIANE

share-based payment i - - - - - (10,52) - - - 1052 - - -
Recognitin of equty companent B-EREL AN A TA

of convertbl loan held by an REs ERIH

associate - - - - 1,193 - - - - - 1,19 - 1,193
At 31 December 2018 Ho%-NEtzRzt-R 38,196 1,807,051 11,761 404,663 2028 9,063 - (78,602) - 437,34 2,655,704 (2,626) 2,653,078

KERBRERRAT
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium to retained profits
pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30 April 2008
and 12 December 2011.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the
fair value of the share options at grant date. The amount
for each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in equity-
settled share-based payment reserve.

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
represents cumulative gains and losses on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets recognised in other
comprehensive income less those cumulative gains and
losses recycled and recognised in profit or loss upon
derecognition of available-for-sale financial assets.
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(a)

(b)
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Riche (BVI) Limited (A% Ocean Shores (BVI)
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2018 =

: U
—E-N\F “E-tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Loss before taxation from continuing REFECEER
operations ZBRB A EE (599,816) (204,669)
Loss before taxation from discontinued ~ RE TR ILEL XK
operation 2B A EE 12 - ©)
Adjustments for: BUTEEEL 7 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESN 11, 21 20,887 20,456
Depreciation of property, plant and Mk BERREZINE
equipment 11, 18 22,897 15,743
Dividend income REWA 7 (661) (1,022)
Equity-settled share-based payment VAR A E 2 R0 ™K
expenses B 11 9,063 10,523
Gain arising on change in fair value of RENENTFEZBELE
investment properties Al 819 (14,500) (20,013)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARZER,
(%) 8, 42 10,993 (1)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EBE AR zW R 8, 24 (1,520) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect CRAER—EEE QT
of amount due from an associate FIEZREEE 8 - 217
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FEEER 2 REEE
of goodwill 8, 22 - 1,813
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FEWERER ZHE
of loan receivables B8 11 17,547 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ FEMERFIERT
of other receivables BEEE 11 21,285 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FE 5 EWGIBERR 2
of trade receivables HEEE 11 89 -
Interest expenses MEREX 9 43,276 23,627
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFIE WA 7 (175) (76)
Interest income on other receivables Hith B IE 2 R 2 WA 7 (1,684) -
Loss arising on change in fair value of A FEFABHER
financial assets at fair value through ZEREEATE
profit or loss BEELZEE 8 296,211 92,526
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEREE
and equipment ZE1E 8 - 92
Share of results of associates FE{LHEE N B EE (8,909) (282)
Written-off of property, plant and MEEE - MEREE
equipment 8 233,632 —

AERBBEERAT 43
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2018 | 2017
—E-N\& —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Mt FET FET
Operating cash flows before movements ZEESEHAIvECEHE
in working capital RE 48,615 (61,069)
Decrease in inventories FERD 771 7,530
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables  FEWEFREL /(1 m) 14,344 (749,467)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables & 5 WA (1) R (15,122) 22,713
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, %e - ANREREMER
prepayments and other receivables IERD,/(21m) 6,624 (129,498)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value ZAFZEH ABHER
through profit or loss ZEMEERD 49,380 153,973
Decrease in trade payables g2 BRAFERD (4,719) (28,262)
Decrease in deposits received, accruals S UIRE - FEFHE
and other payables R E oA IR R A (1,027) (44,914)
Decrease in amount due to an associate FEfT—REEE A BFIER - (991)
Decrease in receipts in advance W ERD (22,430) (16,178)
Cash generated from/(used in) HEEE/(FR)z2ES
operations 76,436 (846,163)
Tax paid EFE (2,790) (176)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KRETHELE(FFA)Z
operating activities REFE 73,646 (846,339)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Dividend received SWRE 7 661 1,022
Bank interest received B RERITRIE 7 175 76
Interest on other receivables received EEMERRIEZFE 7 631 -
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBAREE
subsidiaries ZRERNFE 42 162,286 172
Advance to an associate o) — I B & 1) R X (16) (38,421)
Proceeds from deposit received B EH B A RIHEEE
associated with the disposal of BESRIE
subsidiaries - 235,300
Addition to interest in an associate ENR—EEE AR 2 ER (153,142) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate  H&—REEE NGB HE 3,000 -
Purchase of property, plant and BEYX  BERSE
equipment, and investment properties RREYHE (70,913) (279,784)
Prepayment for property, plant and M- BEREREZ
equipment SN (3,318) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTAZREFE (60,636) (81,635)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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2018 |

U
—E-N\fE —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Mt FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Proceeds from placing of new shares BLEF R0 2 FriS FIE - 102,912
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERIBRIE 68,723 215,251
Proceeds from other borrowings Hb g 88 200,000 450,000
Net proceeds from issue of secured BITEREBFSHETE
notes 38 - 299,326
Payment on repurchase of shares R 6 FrAME - (8,304)
Advance from a director —BEFHN 60,000 10,000
Repayment to a director BRY—RES (10,000) (10,000)
Advance from a shareholder —BRERBR 133,000 —
Repayment to a shareholder BRF-—BRE (133,000) —
Repayment of bank borrowings RITETIEMN (70,939) (151,617)
Repayment of other borrowings HAtn & FIER (300,000) (150,000)
Repayment of promissory note AR EBEN 35 - (30,000)
Interest paid EFE (44,109) (12,845)
Share issue expenses RADE4TR X - (3,686)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE(FTA) EE
financing activities REFE (96,325) 711,037
Net decrease in cash and cash BeRHAGEENRD FE
equivalents (83,315) (216,937)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEBIzEERES
beginning of the reporting period ZEY 225,010 438,975
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exge o ¥E
changes (1,067) 2,972
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HREHARZEERRE
of the reporting period ZEY 140,628 225,010
Analysis of the balances of cash and HE&RBELEEBYELIN
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 31 140,628 225,010

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.

BER 2 B R AR S R TR 2 — 87 o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office, and head office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries (together with the
Company referred to as the “Group”) are sale
of financial assets, property investment, money
lending, and design and sale of jewelry products.
The Group was also engaged in distribution
of films and sub-licensing of film rights, which
were discontinued on 17 February 2017. The
Group has suspended its sale of precious stones
business since the first quarter of 2017.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollar (HK$’000), which is same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) ~ Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and financial
positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from sale of
jewelry products which arises from contracts with
customers.

The application of HKFRS 15 does not have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods.
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AMENDMETS O HONG KON
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are REFERIERZHITEBMBERE
mandatorily effective for the current year HERIREBETAR (&)

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of BEBETERFEA0H (15T K ) EERE
Investment Property L

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, ZEBI AR FEEREAREYES
or from, investment property necessitates an FENEREREITEREREYE
assessment of whether a property meets, or ZEE ZEERAUBBXIXEFEHRAZRE
has ceased to meet, the definition of investment N ZEBITAE— S BEEBEE
property, supported by evidence that a change ZE R 55 40 3% Fr 5B R A 2 15 9 = 1) 75 B
in use has occurred. The amendments further AghE mMZzAZXREUREEARAE
clarify that situations other than the ones listed in EYX(AARRETRRELTIYE) -

HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and that
a change in use is possible for properties under
construction (i.e. a change in use is not limited to
completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group ROKERBE  AEBERBEZEZA
assessed the classification of certain properties WIRERAFEETYWENDEE  ERH
based on conditions existing at the date. There is “E-\F-A-HWNBIEEE -

no impact to the classification at 1 January 2018.
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APPLICATION O A

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following

new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)  Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) ~ Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation'
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material®
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

2 Effective for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be
accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively by the Group.
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APPLICATION C
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$701,449,000 as disclosed in note 43. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends
to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.
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SUMMARY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.
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SUMMARY OF AN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as gain on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries with change of control

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups of CGUSs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operation and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operation, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operation, or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs of disposal, or on the disposal, of
the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

U the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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ACCOU

NTING POLICIES (Continued

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sales of jewelry products

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion
of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Wk EHAWA ()
AEBWHE R E MW A BRI E—
SHBUT -

(i) HEHEER

(ii)

WEREFERLEREMITHE
R fMEZEEMBMIBITHER
ERNEH BRIV ENEEE
AENETRZABENSBELLH -
REEHBEYEEREERES NN
ENFEERRRB 2B -

BEHEHHEEZT KA

REBHENHESRATEEE SRR
ENSHERN  USHEEEHER
MR EMEHMEEELEEER
wRREEEEMEENRFERRN
RIBRSN - REREHBE ISR B
EREOERSERTEIADEYA
EFRMRAENARDD ©

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH

133



134

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(iiij) Dividend

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and
intangible assets are estimated individually, when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGUs,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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SUMMARY G e
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU)
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from “loss before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with interests in
subsidiaries and interests in associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
investment properties are depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

Golf courses 3.33%
Buildings 3.33%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%-33.33%
Office equipment 20%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 10%-25%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-33.33%
Plant and machineries 10%-33.33%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued used of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purpose are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair
value to property, plant and equipment when the
property begins to be occupied by the owner.
Gain or loss arising from change in fair value
of the investment property upon the transfer is
included in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out or weighted
average method as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as cost of sales in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from
the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as investment and other income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERMITEE)

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEEZHBEREZTE

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following ﬁéL}LTﬂ%ﬁzLﬁ:r‘?ﬂﬁFEfﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁi

conditions are subsequently measured at R EREBEFTE -

amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business s REMEEDEUSBEEEWE
model whose objective is to collect ENHEREAEENERELT
contractual cash flows; and B R

e the contractual terms give rise on specified e AHBRRERTEEHEELENAER
dates to cash flows that are solely payments BAIAERERREREHFE -
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following ﬁil«}{?{l%#ﬂ’gﬁﬁﬂﬁé,\fﬁiﬁﬁ$fﬁ

conditions are subsequently measured at fair st A H b 2 [ Wi ([ 2 FEFT A H A

value through other comprehensive income ZHEWEDMsE :

(“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business e ZEMEEREUBMSHRER
model whose objective is achieved by both ENHELBENEBEXTHE
collecting contractual cash flows and selling; B R
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified e AHNBRRERTEEHELENRER
dates to cash flows that are solely payments BAIAEERREREHFE -
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently FFEHMEMEENHESBEARAT

measured at fair value through profit or loss B ABRR(RAFEFABRER] °

(“FVTPL”).

A financial asset is classified as held for trading HHEBRTHIER  cHEEHREAR

if: 'VFTE'LE

e it has been acquired principally for the e BASHEEFEZEEANENAL
purpose of selling in the near term; or €, 5

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio o RYLHIE E*ﬁﬁkﬂK%lA{#
of identified financial instruments that the %IEZ%EEI%zEEE@é B
Group manages together and has a recent NREEBRAEREHENER ;
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or B

e it is a derivative that is not designated and c BABEERUERERYHFTIA
effective as a hedging instrument. ZETET R -

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate IS - g B2 H BR 3R K MR RE = AT S AL o

a financial asset that are required to be measured B 75 8 [ °] T A 48 (o] 3h 15 7 78 1% 5K R

at the amortised cost or FVTOCI| as measured AEBAFEFTARMEE B HEEZ

at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly TREE  WRATEFABERITE

reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the
“Investment and other income” line item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from
an associate and bank balances). The amount
of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the end of the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on these assets are
assessed on an individual basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNI
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting period
with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

eWMIAE)
EHEE(E)
EHEEZHEE(E)

(i

B N Rl

RiFEEERBBMBERURR
BRBEME  AEBLBERES
HERERTAREENNEME
ROpEI IR ERMTEBERE
AR RS o PAMEH BLRP AR - A&
BZEBSERUXENEERTE
HEH  BEBEERRELES
%W$ﬁI¢Tﬂ%%m%H§

AHEHR  RFGEFEERRESE K
R MEE AT IIER :

o  TRTEAMIER(IAB)HAR
gﬁ#&%%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ

s RFEARNIINHSERRE
BZ(MEBANEERER
FEENRBERXEEM)

s THHEYEHRARTHEKRES
ERVRE D RiER A %5 - B
B AER RN RE AR AR
FEE ;

e ERANKCEEASHHTER
BREEE

o BEBAMENEE £EIGN
RRENERNEREATF
28 SHREFAREHEHR
BEMNEDRERD

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH

145



146

SUMMARY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 180 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the
date that the Group becomes a party to
the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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SUMMARY OF SI A
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contmued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
(i) a trade receivable is more than 240 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate, and (ii) the credit
quality of a loan receivable is classified
as underperforming or non-performing in
accordance with the Group’s credit rating
system.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

o it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liqguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of (i) trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
270 days past due, (ii) loan receivables,
when the credit quality are classified as
non-performing in accordance with the
Group’s credit rating system, and (iii) other
receivables, when the other receivables
become credit-impaired financial assets,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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SUMMARY OF SI A
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contmued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;
° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the
amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised over the guarantee period.
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SUMMARY OF AN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or equity instruments according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

SWMIAE)

EHMEE(E)

EHEEZBEIE(E)

(v) FEHEEBENTERER(E)
AEEEAEMESH T ANRE
B RESZRBEREEWRDNE

B HESRRRERERERE
BB ERAERERAEREE -

THEERERTA
D ERTE

EEERBTEHAERERTAD
BESNZHECARRTHMEEHEER
TEACzERSEATMEENERTA -

#zm TH

BETASTEARER 2EELNR
HIrERER 2R ER 2 EAEHN -
AARBITZRER T EREWMERE
MBREEBITHRANE

BOARB2REBTAMINZRER
Bk BE - HE - BITHEUH
RAARzEE TAYENDNEENE
MmRMER o

EHEE

PTG R DA B MR B 1 8
ESTE R



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, deposits received,
bank borrowings, other borrowings, amount due
to a director and secured notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuers to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNI
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
Group’s obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollar) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of “exchange reserve”
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in
a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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SUMMARY OF A
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contmued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases
All leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.
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SUMMARY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred. 5% of relevant income vests
immediately upon the completion of service in
the relevant service period, while the remaining
portion vests in accordance with the MPF
Scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the PRC
is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (equity-settled share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based
payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets).

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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SUMMARY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(2) has significant influence over the

Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a

member);

(3) both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to

the Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

2E2],

BREDPBRECUBRRAEBEDE
HEZ2ERDEBERRBHTAEEES
BEEAEZHBEMDBAEGH - &
BEEEAEBNKBRAEMBENIRE
AR ERNCE S Y 8RR S R A
EXB Rz RR -

MM BHREMNS - EHEREE DI
BRI E S HEAAEREULESE
REERRBRBEMEE  £EBREME
EFEENER  AEIHERNIEHR
BRIz EREEREMHE S EAEL
BUBR S o fief 45 & o5 &F 36 3F 18 B = KAEFF
BREMDUERER - AZELLESIMA
BEERAOETE -

B &S FH 5 R M Ef

ERABAEE 2SRRI E3HR
OB EEARMYARERAMRRES
ESNEERAGIRABEFELAE - @&
FTRBRR o T RAEBEERDREBE
KREAB/EBE 2 EMERFL - BR
BREEERZEMITTRME -

ZEMFREBERRSESENMG - i
HETHETT BT ERRETEI 28
B BRZBEER BTSSR
BRI ARERE - AEMERT R R K
REAEHERD ©



CRITICAL G
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below),
that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
The Group has not recognised any deferred tax
on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration
(principal)

The Group engages in trading of jewelry
products. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the
Group reassessed whether the Group should
continue to recognise revenue on gross basis
based on the requirements in HKFRS 15. The
Group concluded that the Group acts as the
principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to
the customer after taking into consideration
indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods and the Group has inventory risk.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Assessment of economic useful lives of
property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets other than goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets with finite useful lives other than goodwill
are depreciated or amortised over their economic
useful lives. The assessment of estimated useful
lives is a matter of judgement based on the
experience of the Group, taking into account
factors such as technological progress, changes
in market demand, expected usage and physical
wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness. Due to
long lives of assets, changes to the estimates
used can result in variations in their carrying
amounts.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTIN 1/
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end
of each reporting period or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the CGU is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. An estimation of
the value in use of the CGU involves estimating
the future cash flows expected to arise from
its continuing use and applying the appropriate
discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the CGU.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

At 31 December 2018, the listed equity securities
of a listed issuer held by the Group have been
suspended from trading on the Exchange since
27 November 2017 and no unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets are available. The fair
value measurement of the suspended listed
equity securities is classified under Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy and uses a valuation
technique based on significant unobservable
inputs. Judgement and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these instruments. See
note 50 for further discussion.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTIN
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the market values, being the estimated
amount for which properties could be exchanged
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
or the valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer
has based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates and assumptions. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has
exercised their judgements and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there be any
changes in assumptions due to change of market
conditions, the fair value of the investment
properties will be adjusted accordingly.

ECL for financial assets

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables
based on various factors including the
aging of the receivables, historical write-off
experience and forward looking information.
The identification of impairment of receivables
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying amounts of receivables and the
allowance for credit losses on receivables is
recognised in the years in which such estimates
have been changed. See note 50 for further
discussion.
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CRITICAL G
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customers’ taste and competitors’
actions in response to severe industry cycle. The
directors reassess the estimations at the end of
reporting period.
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The Group’s operating segments have been
determined based on the information reported to
the Chairman of the board of directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.
The Group currently has four operating segments:

(@) Property Leasing of rental
investment properties

(b) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets at
assets FVTPL

(c) Money lending Money lending

(d) Sale of jewelry  Design and sale of jewelry
products products, and sale of
precious stones

An operating segment regarding the distribution
of films and sub-licensing of film rights was
discontinued on 17 February 2017 upon the
disposal of Riche Video Limited (“Riche Video”).

The sale of precious stones business has been
suspended since the first quarter of 2017.
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An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment
revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other
selected financial information for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 by operating

segments are as follows:

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-ZE-—-NER=Z—+t&F+=A8
=S+—HALEE AEFRELHHE
TRAEHoHBhGE EE-BE- A
BEREMBENEER ZDFWOT :

DEE R EE

BE—F-N\F+ZA=1—HIFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BESERE BRLEERE
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending  products  Sub-total Distribution Consolidated
#E #E
WERE  SHEE f&  %REm it G &e
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
7A4r 7L 7A4r 7L 7Ar 7L FAr
Segment revenue AhE 36,286 6,698 96,274 @9 188087 - 188087
Segment (loss)/profit (68 /%A (29768 (269126) 31978 [6473)  (543409) - [543409)
Interest income on bank deposits Gt w11 0N 175 - 175
Unallocated corporate income FABEERA 502 - 502
Unallocated corporate expenses FOEbERY (13,244) - (13,244)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE-BRENT UG 1520 - 1520
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAEER (10,993) - (109%9)
Finance costs HEER (43,276) - (432m)
Share of results of associates R 8,909 - 8,909
Loss before taxation BeAER (599,816 - [599816)
Income tax credit igeziziv 11,001 - 11,001
Loss for the year KEEER (588,725 - (5887%9)
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

AR R KA ()
BE-F—tF+-A=F+—HIFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BERZER BRHEEEE
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending ~ products ~ Sub-fofal Distribution  Consolidated
e #E
NERE  cHEE k8 KEER It B e
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FA1 -2 Té1 22 TE1 221 7E1
Segment revenue EL 4412 (103,657) 70,626 42,608 53,989 - 53,089
Segment profitoss 44%7/(58) 105 (5659 6680 (80 (121089 0 (210
Interest income on bank deposits BirkazARHA 76 - 76
Unallocated corporate income FABRERA 175 - 175
Unallocated corporate expenses RABLERY [B02r1) - [B02r1)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHEAR 2N 1 - 1
Impairment loss recogrised in respect of BEIRY-BHEL ARG,
amount dug from an associate HEEE @17) - @17)
Finance costs HEER (23,627) - (e
Share of results of associates EitBENT%E 2% - 22
Loss before taxation hHEEE (204,669) B 04672
Income tax credit FighiEs 9,052 - 9,052
Loss for the year p:8:357 (195,617) B (195620

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

Segment results represent (loss incurred)/profit
earned by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ emoluments, share of results of
associates, certain investment and other income,
certain other gains and losses, finance costs and
income tax credit. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.
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At 31 December 2018

Segment assets and liabilities

PTHEERERE
R-FE-NFE+=F=+—H

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEGexE BALEEEE
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending  products  Sub-total Distribution Consolidated
NERE HECHEE fE HEREER it il g8
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T 7A1 T 7A1 -2 7A1 7E1
Segment assets A9EE
- Hong Kong - &h 416,066 569,728 1,188,008 68,647 2,242,534 - 2225
- The PRC - 0 1,646,961 - - - 1,646,961 - 1,646,961
2,063,027 569,728 1,188,093 68,647 3,889,495 - 3,880,495
Unallocated corporate assets FOBGEEE e
Consolidated total assets BAERAE 397,193
Segment labilities Pk
- Hong Kong -5 (126477) (12,112 (73,952) (37,006)  (249,547) - (d954)
- The PRC - 1g (545,473) - - - (545413 - (545413
(671,950) (12,112 (73,952) (37,006)  (795,020) - (795,020)
Unallocated corporate iabites FORLEEE (523,095)
Consolidated total liabilties BREREE (1,318,115)
KIERBIREBRAR
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Segment assets and liabilities (ontinued & ]

At 31 December 2017 R-B—tFE+=ZF=1+—H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REAERH BALEEER
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending ~ products  Sub-fofal  Distribution  Consolidated

NERE BECHNE EE HERRES It & ha
HKSOD0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD0  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO
TEr  fEr  FET TEr B fEr P

Segment assets Bk
- Hong Kong - 5% 242,094 726458 1,284413 0973 2324138 - 2324138
- The PRC - 0f 2,668,627 - - - 2068627 - 20668627
2,910,921 726458 1,284413 70973 4,992,765 - 4992765
Unallocated corporate assets FoRGEERE 231,140
Consolidated total assets RRERAE 5203905
Segment labilities Pk
- Hong Kong -E4 (2890 (218 (4% 8 (74108) - (1
~ The PRC - 4@ (1,183,172 - - - 8 RN
(2019 (18 (L1 ey (13729 - g
Unallocated corporate iabities FOELEEE (620302
Consolidated total iabiies GREREE (1,957,600)
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OPERATING SEG

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interests in associates,
amount due from an associate, certain
deposits, prepayments, other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents that are
not attributable to individual segments.
Assets used jointly by individual segments
are allocated on the basis of the revenues
earned by individual segments; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other borrowings,
secured notes, certain accruals, other
payables and tax payables that are not
attributable to individual segments.
Liabilities for which segments are jointly
liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2018

DHEEREE(HE)
REEIBRERRIHBEIEER :
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Hfth o 3B E R
BE—F-\F+ZA=1—HILFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRL
b HEE) fexh
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money  jewelry
investment assets  lending  products Unallocated  Sub-total Distribution Consolidated
NERE BESHEE 8 HEXEER AR it ¥ g8
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
fér  TEr  FEr  fEn TEn FEr FET TEn
Amounts included in the measure of segment 1B 2(EE) /#HR
(loss)/profit and segment assets APEERTAZEE
Addtions to property, plant and equipment ~ FEN$ - BERRE 70,888 - - % - 0013 - 70913
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEH (20,887) - - - - 088 - 089
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 41+ BERRE 21T (22,836) - - (61) - (2280 - (2280)
Dividend income REUA - 61 - - - 61 - 661
Gain arising on change in fai value of investment Eﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiz
properties 14,500 - - - - 14,500 - 14,500
Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan ﬂﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁ T ERBERE
receivables - - (17547) - - (17547) - (17,547)
Impaiment loss recognised in respect of other St ERENFIERS Y
recelvables HEEE (21,289) - - - - (12 - (2%
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade. ~ S1E BB VERS 2
receivables HEER - - - (89) - (89) - (89)
Interest income on other receivables AfENEEZRISHA 1,053 129 - - 502 1,684 - 1,684
Loss arising on change in fair valug of financiel ~ RAFE AEREZEHEE
assets at FVTPL ATERBEL 2ER - (9621) - - - (9621) - (96211)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment ~~ ¥i841% « BERi % (233,632) - - - - (2363 - (28363
KIEREIREBRAF

—EN\FEH
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Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Hv o &R (H#)

BE-—F—tF+-A=1—HIFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets  lending  products Unallocated  Sub-fotal Distribution Consolidated
NERE BELRER 8 #EXEER AP it £ e
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
thn  thn tEn FEr A Rt R T
Amounts included in the measure of HEADEN/ (BR)R
segment profit/loss) and segment assets ~ AFEEMFAZEE
Additions to investment properties FERENE 190,403 - - - - 190403 - 190403
Additions to property, plant and equipment  FEHE  BERRE 56,301 - - - 161880 218,181 - 18,181
Amortisation of intangible assets S (20,456) - - - - (04 - (045)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 415 BERRE 21T (14,083 - - (116) (1544 (15749 - (1574
Dividend income REHA - 1,022 - - - 1,022 - 1,022
Gain arising on change in fair valug of RENFLTESBEE,
investment properties b 20,013 - - - - 20,013 - 20,013
Impairment loss recognised in respect of SHERT NEER
goodil (1819 - . . ] -8
Loss arising on change n fair valug of financiel ~ RAFEAERE 2 £HEE
assets at FVTPL ATERBETZER - (5% - - - (%25%) - (25%)
Loss on disposal o property, plant and HENE  BERREZES
equipment %) - - - - @ - %)
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Geographical information

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external
customers and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location are detailed

&R

AEEFERBBRPEEE - AEH
BRumRE S 2 REHNEF2WERE
BAEFRBEECERFIIWT :

below:
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
Revenue from Revenue from Continuing operations Discontinued operation
external customers external customers Non-current assets® Non-current assets*
i e BRLEEER BEREER BALEEER
taNEFmRUE taNEFmRUE E LR Fhage
2018 17 2018 017 2018 017 2018 017
-\ ZB-tE Z§-NE Rt CR-NE 0 BB ZR-NE CE-tE
HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
-2 FA1 -2 Té1 7&1 TE1 7A7 7E1
Australia LY 2 68 - - - - - -
Europe B 10,437 10218 - - - - - -
Hong Kong (3] 144,505 (1,499) - - 665,778 432,89 - -
The Middle East R - 105 - - - - - -
The PRC e 3,111 44412 - - 1465511 2,386,280 - -
The United States of America £1B4%E 207 7 - - - - - -
188,087 53,989 - - 213,280 2819184 - -
* Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, * ERBEETEBEELENEEE HithE

other receivables and loan receivables.

IR R R E S
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Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group are as follows:

FHRXEEFZEHR

REBFEDASEERAWZTR10%
L2 REFFZWHENT :

For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=t+—HLEE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer 1' ZF1 N/A F3E A 4 18,549
Customer 2° zE2 19,901 13,303
Customer 32 2FE32 21,264 20,809
Customer 42 BEFE 4 N/AFRE A 9,159
Customer 53 EF5° N/AFRER* 16,200
Customer 63 EF6° N/AFRER ¢ 12,191
Customer 73 BEFET3 N/AFRER 10,560
1 Revenue from sale of jewelry products. ! REHEKREEMZWE
2 Revenue from property investment. 2 REMEREZ WS o
8 Revenue from money lending. 8 REEEZWE -
4 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 4 HEREL RO AEBARZEER10%

10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—-HLEFE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KEEFEXZ Mo
customers

HK$’000

FET

Continuing operations HESEEK
Sale of jewelry products HERBEEM 48,779
Timing of revenue recognition RSz
A point in time 1RE — K EE 48,779

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts

disclosed in the segment information.

REEFANZHWHERDHERIKE
MEEROHRESIWT -

HK$’000
FET

Continuing operations HESEER
Sale of jewelry products HERBEEM 48,779

Revenue from contracts with REEFFEHZWE

customers 48,779
Sale of financial assets, net HESREE B4 6,698
Interest income on loans BRAE U A 96,274
Rental income HEWA 36,286
Total revenue Al 188,037
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHEZE—tHF+-A=+—HLFE
HK$’000
FET

Continuing operations HEREER
Sale of jewelry products HE®REER 42,608
Sale of financial assets, net HESRMEE T8 (103,657)
Interest income on loans BRFBEWA 70,626
Rental income HEWA 44,412
Total revenue RN 53,989
KERBRERRAT

—EN\FEH
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Revenue from sale of financial assets is recorded HESHEECWNZRFHEEAR

on a net basis, details of which are as follows: HEBEWMT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—tF
HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of financial assets $H&ERAFEFTABRERZ
at FVTPL CREEZENRIE 91,046 356,032
Carrying amounts of financial assets at 2E&HEAFETABRERZ
FVTPL sold plus transaction costs TRIEEZIREME
S5 &R (84,348) (459,689)
6,698 (1083,657)
7. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 7. BERHEMEA
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=t—BHLLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Dividend income BB EWA 661 1,022
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZFE WA 175 76
Interest income on other receivables HAhfEWFIE 2 R 2 WA 1,684 -
Net foreign exchange gain & 5 U 2= 9 5E - 63
Sundry income HIEW A 450 112
2,970 1,273
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—iF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations HESEER
Gain arising on change in fair value of REYEQAFESBELZ
investment properties g 14,500 20,013
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EHgE AR 2 s 1,520 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect TR —EEE QT
of amount due from an associate RIBZREEE - (217)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FEEER ZBEEE
of goodwill — (1,813)
Loss arising on change in fair value of ZAF{EFTABHRZ
financial assets at FVTPL TREEATEEBHELE
ZEE (296,211) (92,526)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKBARZ (EE),
3% (10,993) 1
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERSEZ
and equipment g8 - (92)
Written-off of property, plant and WY - MEREE
equipment (233,632) -
(524,816) (74,634)
FINANCE COSTS 9. BEEH
For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=+t—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 9,266 9,857
Interest on other borrowings HiBRHRzFE 9,797 5216
Imputed interest on secured notes EREBZMAERR 24,213 8,554
43,276 23,627
KIBREEREBRAF
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10.

INCOME TAX CREDI

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Continuing operations HESEER
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFEHR
— Current tax — EABIIE (2,283) (2,103)
— Over provision in prior years — BEFEBRERE 123 20
(2,160) (2,083)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIERMEH
— Current tax — ANHEAFIE (1,883) (1,633)
Deferred taxation credit (note 40) IEERIEIR % (M2 40) 15,134 12,768
11,091 9,052

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25%
on the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2,000,000.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

RZEBE-NF=ZA=Z+—H »FBALZE
EEB-ZT—LEHBUER)(BETH)
GO ER(TEBFER]D  HIIABMH
HANEREHE - GHEER=ZF—N
FE=ZAZ+ N \NBEERAEEIRER
FIEEBH - BERMRFFEHEHE -

EEKREBEE K =H2,000,000%E T
HEA A RS 25% MBI REF - MEB
2,000,000 8 7T #Y & A #1512 16.5% HI B
?ﬁﬁ FHEMRFRNEREFEN
EEERBENBEER16.5% 28—

BREH -

Bt BAFERE . BERBFEHIES
2,000,000 % T 2 flf 5t B R B & A 2
8.25% =T & » I % i#8 482,000,000 % 7T
2L EERBUEF 2 16.5% 5T & °

BE-_Z—tHE+=-A=+—HLE
E E%% SHIRGAERBREF 2
16.5% st & o

REFECEFRSHREITLEMBHR
FENDRGEMRSHEEREN - FEM
BRrARMEFEFEZHER25% °



The income tax credit for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before taxation from

continuing operations per consolidated statement

of profit or loss as follows:

FEEREHESEGEBEERAZE
BEEXBCRBABREROT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Continuing operations BEREER
Loss before taxation KBRS 18 (599,816) (204,669)
Taxation at domestic income tax rate ~ LUE i Fr 58 Bt (114,383) (36,357)
Tax effect of income not taxable for B L BARBUWA 2B
tax purpose 24 (14,700) (14,310)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  Fi# Al 1% B % =2 Bi 7§
for tax purpose 2 122,492 49,061
Tax effect of accelerated accounting ~ Zit (D3t SHTEY L
depreciation over/(under) tax BBimTEcHiETE
depreciation 129 (19)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not KL BIIEEIE 2 BIIE
recognised 2 10,793 9,650
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BjFf AT AR BIIEREE
recognised — (4,289)
Tax concession (Note) B EER (A (165) -
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBZRE (123) (20)
Deferred taxation credit EERIER (15,134) (12,768)
Income tax credit SRR (11,091) (9,052)
Note: Hiat

It represents the tax concession from the enactment of
the two-tiered Profit Tax rates by the Inland Revenue

Department.

ENEBRERERMAHINEHEHEREE
ZHBEE -

KERBEIREFRAF

—F\FEH



. LOSS FOR E A
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Loss for the year from continuing operations has AEERBBFELLEER 2HBIIMER
been arrived at after charging/(crediting): S GETAUTEEERESE

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Continuing operations FEREEK
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E
(included in administrative (FFAfTHBEX)
expenses) 20,887 20,456
Auditors’ remuneration: BEMME
— audit services — 2R 1,088 1,108
— non-audit services — ERERTE 353 467
1,441 1,575
Cost of inventories sold SHEHETFE 2K 43,752 38,057
Depreciation of property, plant and  #% - BERREZITE
equipment 22,897 15,743
Impairment loss recognised in BB E RER 2 BIEE
respect of loan receivables B 17,547 -
Impairment loss recognised in PE At PR RIE TR Z R
respect of other receivables BB 21,285 -
Impairment loss recognised in ME P EBFIETER Z R
respect of trade receivables BEE 89 -
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) EREE ()R8 67 (63)
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEYEELHEHES
rental premises 3,259 2,873
Operating lease rentals in respect of K&EEZKEHERS
operating rights 16,831 16,471
Less: operating lease rentals B BEERMEEERE
capitalised e (11,134) (10,896)
5,697 5,575
Equity-settled share-based payment FiEERIREUREEE =~
expenses in respect of consultancy R X BIX
services - 702
Staff costs (including directors’ EINA(BREESME) :
emoluments):
— salaries and allowances — FERER 46,905 34,425
— discretionary bonuses — BIBTEAL 25,463 25,215
— contributions to retirement — RIREFIFTEIER
benefits scheme 1,528 434
— equity-settled share-based — UREEE ZRM K
payment expenses B 9,063 9,821
82,959 69,895
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12.

" CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Continued)

Loss for the year from continuing operations has
been arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Continued)

(&)

AEERBFEKSEEB 2BRIDNK
SFEXN AT &EEEE  (#)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Gross rental income from investment REREVER K LR
properties and operating rights HEBUKA (36,286) (44,412)
Less: direct operating expenses B ERAEEESRAZ
incurred for investment REMERKERERE
properties and operating FrEEKERE
rights that generated rental
income during the year 19,726 19,480
Less: direct operating expenses B FRLTEEEESW
incurred for investment AZBREMEREE
properties and operating EEECHELE
rights that did not generate (53
rental income during the year 382 401
(16,178) (24,531)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 17 February 2017, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement relating to the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of
Riche Video, which was principally engaged in
distribution of video products and holding of film
rights. The Group discontinued its distribution of
films and sub-licensing of film rights operation
by disposing of Riche Video, which enabled the
Group to concentrate resources on its existing
businesses. The disposal was completed on
17 February 2017, being the date on which the
control of Riche Video passed to the acquirer.

2. CRILEE¥T

RZZ—tFZ-A+tH AEEHE
EEXBEZEHERITRATLEE
hdk HEBRSRTRZERKEER
EXRTE - AEBNLESERBHR
RIEBAEBTESRERELBRTRE
XX SAEBEAEPTERRARE
XK  WHESER_-_T-—tF_-A
TEHtHARH NEXBEZEHEER
RWEBHER -

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH
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The loss for the period from 1 January 2017 to 17

E%tﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁ*g’ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ

February 2017 from the discontinued distribution H-Z—t+tF—HA—HEZ-Z—tHF=
of films and sub-licensing of film rights operation B+t HHEzZEEHRIINT :
is set out below:
HK$’000
FET
Loss on distribution of films and sub-licensing Z{TEFRERFEHRTHE
of film rights operation (B BB 3)
Gain on disposal of distribution of films and HERTEFXRERESRITE
sub-licensing of film rights operation ¥Rz W (Kt 42)
(note 42) 1
(2)
The results of the discontinued operation for the R-EBE—+tFE—H—HEZ-E—+&F=
period from 1 January 2017 to 17 February 2017 A +t HHRE CRIESESER &
were as follows: M
HK$’000
FET
Revenue = —
Administrative expenses THAX (3)
Loss before taxation BRBLAIET 1B 3)
Income tax expense Fris®ip X —
Loss for the period from discontinued RECKRIEEEER
operation ZARFEEFE (3)
The cash flows of the discontinued operation for R-ZZ2—+tHF—-—A—HE=Z—+t&=
the period from 1 January 2017 to 17 February B+ tHHE BRALEKEEBL2ES
2017 were as follows: MEBWMT :
HK$’000
FET
Net cash outflow from operating activities ReTHHRSRLFE (96)
Net cash outflow BeRnt #58 (96)
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13. DIRECTOR \

OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or
payable to the directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company during the year was
HK$47,741,000 (2017: HK$48,185,000) and was
included in “administrative expenses” under
continuing operations. The emoluments of each
director and the chief executive officer for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Company Ordinance are as follows:

FRENBIENEAQRTAEETRITHA
HoeMEB8EA547,741,000/8 T(= =
— £ 148,185,000 7t )5t AFE&E
BREEBT2Z[THEX |- BZ=-F
- NErR-_ZE2—tE+=A=+—HBL
FE BESENTHEAR-HNEBIEE
ALHmRAREBARMEHARBNT -

Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries and Discretionary to retirement share-based
Fees allowances bonuses benefit schemes payment expenses Total
e LRGN BREA BIENHENR  REEHZRARAER it
2018 017 2018 017 2018 017 2018 017 2018 017 2018 017
ZE-0\E ZET-tE ZR-N\F ZE-tE ZE-NF CEE C3-0F CE-4F ZR-N\F ZE-tE ZR-NF CEE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS$000
e TR TR B FEn FEn TR TR B FE FEL TEL
Executive directors Ufrgs
M. Lei Hong Wai, 3
the chief executive officer (fiHEs) - - 8,400 8,400 10,000 10,000 18 18 109 1,082 18,52 19470
Mr. Cheung Kok Wai Efton FERRE - - 8,400 8,400 10,000 10,000 18 18 109 1,082 18,52 19470
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy RREsE - - 4570 2,020 3,500 3,500 18 18 1,092 1,082 9,180 6,590
Mr. Cheung Kok Fan FEERE 120 120 810 1,020 90 8 18 18 109 1,082 1,147 2,29
Independent non-executive BudnES
directors
Mr. Wan Shing Chi b 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RACEE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEREE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments Hefg 480 480 2,180 19,840 23590 23,585 n n 1419 4208 4,74 48,185

The executive directors’ and the chief executive
officer’s emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive officer of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
Nil).

UERRZBTESRITRARZHE
AREPERADARSTEEEHREMR
BB 2WE - ERBIUFHTESHE
AREERESEHUBRB2ME -

REBE-Z-N\F+-A=+t—HLF
B WEAQABDESHTHRARBER
BERETMMES 2L (ZZ—LF
’) -
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13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ AND CF
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont/nued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any
of the directors and the chief executive officer as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
as compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).

The executive directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on their
duties and responsibilities in the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, the executive directors were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group under the share option scheme of the
Company. Details of the share option scheme are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. The number of share options granted
is determined based on the directors’ duties and
responsibilities in the Group.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS IN WHICH DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY HAVE MATERIAL
INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or at any time during the
reporting period.
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The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year included three directors (2017:
four directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining two (2017: one) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor
the chief executive officer of the Company are as
follows:

AEBAFEZRERSHEETEE
ZERES(CE-LtF  HEES) W
EeHMEFABEREEMBHMRMT 135K
B-BRTMBE(ZE-—tHF: —R)A*
ARABAESHTHRARZESHES Z
MEFBEOT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+ZA=+—BLHFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Salaries and allowances e ROER 2,369 698

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 611 175

Contributions to retirement benefits EREFET B

scheme 36 18
Equity-settled share-based payment  UREEE 2RHOZHFEX

expenses 2,184 1,052

5,200 1,043

The highest paid employees who are not the
directors whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

BeHFEARRAESEECHEN FU
TEE :

Number of employees
EBEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 Z# 7T 1,000,000 7T - -

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T
%1,500,000 % T - -

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T
% 2,000,000#% T - 1

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & T
%2,500,000% T 1 —

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & T
% 3,000,000 7T 1 -
KERBRERRAT
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16.

. FIVE HIGHEST PA
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, the non-director and non-chief executive
officer highest paid employee(s) were/was
granted share options, in respect of their/his
services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in the note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements. The number
of share options granted is determined based on
the duties and responsibilities of the non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee(s)
in the Group.

LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss
per share from continuing and discontinued

operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

16.

BE-ZE-—N\NER=Z—+t&F+=A8
=S+—HALEE FESKRFTHAR
BeFHFEECHREAQABRETEH
EASEEREREMERBRE - B
EGEEBEN G B RERMT44
Ne IRFZEREHE DIRBEZSH
EERFTHAERSHFEERNAEH
ZHBBEREEEE -

BREE
REFHESERCRIEBEER
RABRFEAABEREFECERES K

IHEEXB o BREARBEBRIIR
BUTBIETH

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
Loss for the purpose of basic and Rt EBREARR#EEE
diluted loss per share B Fr Al 2 518
Loss for the year attributable to RATEEABEREE
owners of the Company EiE (586,090) (195,545)
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLHFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
’000 000
FiE Fi
Number of ordinary shares EEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary RETEESREARK#EEIR
shares for the purpose of basic and R FT A 2 B IR hn A
diluted loss per share FIIE 3,819,606 3,615,020
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. LOSS PER

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

The calculation of diluted loss per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as they had an anti-
dilutive effect to the basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The
basic and diluted loss per share are the same for
both years.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per
share from continuing operations attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

REFECERCRIEREXRK ()

AEERBESESYERRITELR
AZERITEBRE  LTBERAY
BE_Z-\ER-_ZF-—tH+-A
ST-HLEFEZERERNBFRAAR
BEVRE - LMEFENERESR#
BERTARR -

REFEACEER

ARRFEBABEREFECEXRE 2
gﬂﬁgzliﬁﬁﬁ%&?ﬁﬁ*ﬂ%u?%%ﬁ

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2018 2017
—B-N\FE ZE2—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and Rt EESRERARBEESE
diluted loss per share RATA 2 EE
Loss for the year from continuing KEEREHF £ v
operations K518 (588,725) (195,617)
Less: loss for the year from continuing & - FEIERESEEAREE
operations attributable REFELEEK 2
to non-controlling interests Ei] 2,635 75
Loss for the year from continuing RATEE AEERFEER
operations attributable to owners of BREBESEEK ZEIE
the Company (586,090) (195,542)

The denominators used are same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss
per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

A BEEHMFEREFELERD
RIESEXB2BRERNRBEBRERR
RAEMER o

ABHHI AR AT
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17.

From discontinued operation

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per
share from discontinued operation attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

RECKILREXK

RABEAARERBCRILEEER
%gﬂﬁglﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ)}ﬁ%u?%%

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=t+—HLEE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and Rt EEREAREEEE
diluted loss per share BFETA 2 E518
Loss for the year from discontinued KAEERECRIELEFER
operation 218 - 3)

The denominators used are same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss
per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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A BEEAFEREFELERD
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FurnituEé

Golf Construction ~ Plantand  Leasehold Office Motor and
Buildings courses inprogress  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BF REARS  ERIE  RRRME RENEEE  BOERE hE BHREE it
HK8 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
V-2 -4 -2 74 -2 781 Tén -2 Tér
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 HE-tE-f-H 159,264 62,348 193,845 1,665 33,652 564 1,050 2,848 455,236
Additions during the year ~ ERIRE 161,874 - 51,758 21 - 1,249 2892 197 218,181
Disposals HE - - - ) - - - (1) ©2)
Exchange alignment EE 11,165 431 13,066 120 2,176 3 101 128 31170
At31 December 2017and ~ WZE-+E
1 January 2018 tZ=1-8R
“E-N\E-5-A 332,308 66,719 258,669 1,905 3,828 1,856 4083 3172 104,495
Additions during the year ~ ERIFE - - 57,530 - 9976 842 - 2,565 70913
Transfer from investment ~~ ERERENE
propertes (note 19) (19 72900 - - - - - - - 72900
Written off i - - (233,621) 2 - - - (126) (233,769)
Exchange alignment R (7.837) (3,008) (5,521 87 (1,521) (66) (138) %) (18,343
At 31 December 2018 R-2-NF
t2R=1-H 397,366 63,651 71,051 1,79 aam 2632 3,905 5518 596,196
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZitERHE
and impairment
At 1 January 2017 HE-tE-f-H 8,794 3,367 - 551 6,384 326 1,050 1,788 2,260
Charge for the year KEERH 8,624 2,858 - 286 3252 164 i 318 16,743
Exchange alignment R 870 335 - 4 380 3 1 5 1607
At31 December 2017and ~ WZE-tE
1 January 2018 T2A=1-AR
“E-NE-5-A 18,488 6,560 - 886 10,016 49 1,092 2,165 39,700
Charge for the year KEERH 14,092 2920 - 193 4,006 637 554 496 2897
Eliminated upon writen off AR - - - (16) - - - 121) (137)
Exchange alignment EjSE (1,081) (401) - ] (451) ) 0) (55) (2,025)
At 31 December 2018 H-g-NF
t2B=1-§ 31,549 9,079 - 1,016 13570 1,10 1,626 2485 60,435
Carrying amounts i
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
t2f=1-H 365,817 54572 71,01 780 30,707 1,522 2219 3,083 535,761
At 31 December 2017 HoB-1E
tZB=1-§ 313815 60,159 258,669 1,019 25812 1,363 2,051 1,007 664,795
KERBRERRAT
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19.

. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group capitalised operating lease rentals of
HK$11,134,000 (2017: HK$10,896,000).

All of the Group’s buildings, golf courses and
construction in progress located in the PRC
are held on medium-term lease. The Group’s
buildings located in Hong Kong are also held on
medium-term lease.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group recognised a written-off of construction
in progress of HK$233,621,000 as a result
of the demolishment of the seven hotel villas
erected on a piece of 580 Chinese acre land (the
“Subject Land”) adjacent to a membership golf
club and resort (the “Club”) in Beijing, the PRC.
Please refer to the Company’s inside information
announcement dated 2 August 2018 for more
details.

The Group has pledged its buildings located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$226,577,000 (2017: HK$160,330,000) to
secure the Group’s bank borrowings.

RBEZZ—N\F+-A=+—HLHF
B KREBECDH11,134,0008 T(=Z &
— -+ :10,896,0008 T) 2 K&&EHE
HELERE -

AEBURPEZAEET SEKRIR
SREZIRDUDHANEE &K
BURERZEFIIURHENIES -

BE-Z-\E+=-A=+—-HLHE
ErARFEHMBCATELtE -BEE
EfeEAXBLBRBEE(EM]) 22—
0iE 45 3t 580 MA 2 bt ([ E EE s |) £ =
tHRBIEEE AEEBRIMEETET
72 233,621, ooo,%rr, BEEZHBHESHE

ZIS’D\TEIHH}% E-NENABZHZR
EHBE QMG o

ZF%EH%E&E’%E\%EEE | B
£226,577,000/8 t(= & — $
160,330,000/8 ) 2 EFKIFAREE
SRITERZEHR -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWE
2018 2017
—2-N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Fair value A¥E
At 1 January B—A—H 810,019 561,089
Additions during the year FRRE - 190,403
Derecognised on disposal of HERE A RRALLER
subsidiaries (note 42) (Mt 42) (571,107) -
Gain arising on change in fair value REZRBERZATEEH
recognised in profit or loss BEEzE 14,500 20,013
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE BERRE
equipment (note 18) (Btat 18) (72,900) —
Exchange alignment FE 5 R (4,912) 38,514
At 31 December Rt+t=—RA=+—H 175,600 810,019
Unrealised gain on change in fair value REHGEERZERERZRE
of investment properties recognised NELAFEEZBEEZR
in the consolidated statement of IR WS (T AHMKRE
profit or loss (included in other gains R E5i8)
and losses) 14,500 20,013

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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On 22 June 2018, the Group disposed of its
investment properties located in the PRC
through the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of Best Volume Investments Limited
(“Best Volume”). Please refer to note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

On 3 July 2018, the investment properties with
an aggregate fair value of HK$72,900,000 were
transferred to “property, plant and equipment”
as the investment properties became an owner-
occupied property on that date. The fair value
of HK$72,900,000 was determined on the basis
of a valuation carried out by an independent
professional firm of qualified valuers, APAC
Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“APAC”).

All of the Group’s properties’ interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

R=F-NFAA=1+=H X&KH
3% i@ H &= Best Volume Investments
Limited ([Best Volume|) 2 23 & 3
TRAEEEVRFIEZRENE-B
BiE  B2EAREMERERMEE42 -

R-ZZB-NFLtA=H AR AFEA
£672,900,000 B T 2 REVWENZHRK
BEITHRYE HCOCEBE(YWE B,
ENFZE ] Z2F{E72,900,0008 5T
NER-—EBELEXSERGEMTER
EEFGRBEERERARTEAEE]
fAEEE -

AEEBAUEEHEERIESRA
RERRBEZAEMFERIIRARF
EEAFE  TREARIIBRSRENSE -

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investment properties located in Hong {IRAE B R P HIAL
Kong held on medium-term lease BEZREME 175,600 234,000
Investment properties located in the A B R AR HAR A
PRC held on medium-term lease BEZREWMHE - 576,019
175,600 810,019

All of the Group’s investment properties have been
pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings.

Details of the Group’s investment properties are
as follows:

AEE2RREMECEARSIEE
RITERZ R -

REBMREMEZFBRIMT -

Attributable
interest to the

Location Existing use Tenure Group
b B B A ® FH AEEELER
Portion of Unit No.1202 and the Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
corridor and whole of Unit Nos.1201
and 1212 on 12th Floor, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
BB THBET 168-2005% [EES FHEAFA A
FEPLAEE12EEH 1202 ERERR
REIH1201 R 1212 F
KERBRERRAT
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" INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available;
and

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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20. FAIR VALLU
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(a) 2FEERGE)

Fair value measurement categorised into

AFREFEDEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14K $F24 EIRK et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2018 R=-F—N\F
+=-A=+—H
Recurring fair value BEMLFETE
measurement
Investment properties NRNEBEBZIRE
located in Hong Kong LES - 175,600 - 175,600
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+F
+=ZA=+—H
Recurring fair value BEMLFETE
measurement
Investment properties NRFEzERE
located in the PRC LY/E3 — — 576,019 576,019
Investment properties NREBZRE
located in Hong Kong LYES - 234,000 - 234,000
— 234,000 576,019 810,019

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and

2.

Transfers out of Level 2 and 3 during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

(i)

(if)

on 22 June 2018, the Group transferred
its investment properties located in
the PRC out of Level 3 as the Group
disposed of the investment properties
through the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Best Volume;
and

on 3 July 2018, the Group transferred
the investment properties with an
aggregate fair value of HK$72,900,000
out of Level 2 as the investment
properties became an owner-occupied
property on that date.

BE-Z-NF+ZA=1+—-HIL

FE
j%éo

BIRRF2RzEHEE

BE-Z-N\E+-ZA=+—HL
FEZE2RREIREHMT -

(i)

R=ZZE-N\FRA=Z+Z=H"
HMNAKEIEB L EBest

Volume 2 2B EITHRAH
EREYWE AEEKEN
RPBEZ2REYWEBFIRNE
H &

HR-ZZE-NE+tA=0 > @#HRK

A {E 4 %872,900,000% T
CREVERBETBERY
¥ MAEERZBBZME
BE2HESR -

ABHHI AR AT
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20. FAIR VALUE MEASUR
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contmued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the date of the events or change in
circumstance that caused the transfer.

The Group’s investment properties were
measured at fair value at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the valuation was
carried out by APAC. For the year ended
December 2017, the valuations were carried
out by APAC and Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Colliers”), an independent
professional firm of qualified valuers. Each
of the valuers has among its staff members
with appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the locations and categories of
properties being valued. The directors have
discussion with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuations were performed at the end of
each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
investment properties is their current use.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties
located in Hong Kong is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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20. FAIR VALUE M
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contmued)

(c) Information about Level 3 fair value (c) BEEEIRLAFEIFEZENR
measurement
Valuation
technique Unobservable input Range
fHER M TR ERG A YE gE
Investment properties Income Capitalisation rate 2017: 3.75% to 4.75%
located in the PRC approach
URAPE 2 REME WA Bt = —E—tF 3.75% E4.75%
The fair value of investment properties NRAENRENE 2 N FEUAR
located in the PRC is determined using wmAER EEEREVEREA
income approach by taking into account EETHEWAZTRIRE®MEN
the net rental income of the investment ERBRAENDTIRES&E
properties derived from the existing tenancy HERBEEZERN L RELRE
with due allowance for the reversionary B FTAZERLLEEEFH RES
income potential, which are then BN REVMENEERNVERR
capitalised into the value at an appropriate TR e AR EFEHETERTSEAE
capitalisation rate. The capitalisation rate SHRERBAERREL  THEER
used has been taken into account of A5 2959545 A

the rental income potential, quality and
location of the investment properties and
prevailing market condition. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to
the expected market rental growth and the
occupancy rate, and negatively correlated to
the capitalisation rate.

The movements during the year in the KEEEIRANTEFE2EGH2E
balance of the Level 3 fair value measurement EEHIWMT
are as follows:

HK$°000
FET
At 1 January 2017 HR-ZE—-—tFE—H—H 561,089
Loss arising on change in fair value NP EEHEEZEE (23,584)
Exchange alignment b A 3% 38,514

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-ZE—tF+-A=+—-HK
—E-N\E—HF—H 576,019

Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries B A R R AR L HEER

(note 42) (Kt 42) (671,107)
Exchange alignment BE 5 AR B (4,912)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NF+=ZA=+-—H -

AERWBEERAT g5
—B\FEH
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" INVESTMENT PRERTIES (Continued)

(c) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement (Continued)

Gain arising on change in fair value of
investment properties is included in the

(c) FRAFEIRATVEFEZER(E)

REMEAFEESBHELE 2 WaEsT
AGEBBERAIE MK EREE ]

“Other gains and losses” line item in the IHH o
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21, BEEE
Operating Operating
rights in rights in Software
respect of the respect of and
Subject Land the Club licenses Total
BEIMEE  ABEN
A $-1 ] A 41 ] BARER L H
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK’8000 HK'$000
FEx FE7 FEx TET
Cost AR
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-f-H 861,433 53,215 37 914,685
Exchange alignment R AR 60,389 3,730 3 64,122
At 31 December 2017 and RIE-tF+-A=t-HK
1 January 2018 —E2-N\E-F-AH 921,822 56,945 40 978,807
Exchange alignment ERRZ (42,389) (2,619) @ (45,010)
At 31 December 2018 R=E2-NE+ZA=1-H 879,433 54,326 38 933,797
Accumulated amortisation and RHBERAERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-f-H 22,697 1,781 22 24,500
Charge for the year KEEYH 18,954 1,487 15 20,456
Exchange alignment ERAE 2,250 177 3 2,430
At 31 December 2017 and RZE-tE+ZA=+-HEK
1 January 2018 —2-\%¥-A-H 43,901 3,445 40 47,386
Charge for the year REELH 19,367 1,520 - 20,887
Exchange alignment ERRE (2,675) (210) @) (2,887)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+-A=t-H 60,593 4,755 38 65,386
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+-A=t-H 818,840 49,571 - 868,411
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=t-H 877,921 53,500 - 931,421
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The above intangible assets have finite useful
lives. Such intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Operating rights in respect of the 47 years
Subject Land

Operating rights in respect of the Club 37 years

Software and licenses 3 years

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

The operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land were acquired through a business
combination completed on 6 October 2015. The
operating rights represent (i) the rights to develop
and operate the Subject Land, and (ii) the rights
to manage the properties erected on the Subject
Land up to 30 January 2062. The operating rights
in respect of the Subject Land were granted to it
FAH NS EEEIE AR A (Beijing Bayhood No.
9 Business Hotel Company Limited, “Bayhood
No. 9 Co.”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, under the cooperation construction
and operating agreements. The cost of the
operating rights of HK$938,061,000 represents
the fair value of such assets valued by D&P China
(HK) Limited (“D&P”), an independent firm of
professional valuers, as at 6 October 2015, being
the completion date of the business combination.

The operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation charge for the year is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the impairment testing on the
operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
are disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BT EEARRAERAFHY - 2%
B EENER R AT MREETH#E

BEERMR KL 47 F
BHREmoRER 375
AR R 3%
1 CES 3 oh ped S Y

EREBASHNBERATRMRE K&
BAZZE-FF+AARNBRER ZEE
BEBE-_ZEZX-F—A=1+HZHAH()
HRREE TR oA & (i) FE
TEMB ECEYEET c TR
IREECRBESEERREERER
FARABEZEMBATLRTIBAERD
BHBEEABRAT(THMOEAT] « &%
&R 2 2 938,061,00058 TiIE B S
EEZATEH— BB LEEMGERMT
D&P China (HK) Limited ([D&P 1) A=
E-—RE+ANB(MNEBREHz2ZERB
) &ML -

ERERMR 2 KERDBRARRAT
MmN RERE(WA)25 -

FEEZHBEBERTAGEBERAMT
X 1EE -

FHRIRER o KERBENAFS
REEMBHRRME23KE -

ABHHI AR AT
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. INTANGIB

Operating rights in respect of the Club

The operating rights in respect of the Club were
acquired through a business combination as
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent the rights to construct and
operate the club facilities of the Club up to 31
December 2051. The operating rights in respect
of the Club were granted to Bayhood No. 9 Co.
under another cooperation construction and
operating agreements. The cost of the operating
rights of HK$57,948,000 represents the fair value
of such asset valued by D&P as at 6 October
2015, being the completion date of the business
combination.

The operating rights in respect of the Club are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation charge for the year is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the impairment testing on the
operating rights in respect of the Club are
disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Software and licenses

Software and licenses were acquired through a
business combination as completed on 6 October
2015.

Software and licenses are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
if any.
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BREEEESMESMREER - 2B
IIREEECRES —HEERRREE
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57,948,000 B tiEBEHEEZ LA FE
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Total

st
HK$°000
FETT
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 R-—B—+5—H—H 376,902
Exchange alignment AR 26,421
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZB—tHF+ZA=+—HEK
—E2-N\E—AF—H 403,323
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A R R TR
(note 42) (Kiat42) (61,246)
Exchange alignment AR (16,232)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\HE+=ZHA=+—H 325,845
Accumulated impairment losses ZFtREEE
At 1 January 2017 N-—EBE—tFE—H—H 44,713
Impairment loss recognised 2RI ZEEEBE 1,813
Exchange alignment (R 3,198
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RIE—tF+ZA=+—-HBK
—ZE—-NHF—H—H 49,724
Exchange alignment AR (2,286)
At 31 December 2018 R-—ZE-N\H+=ZA=+—H 47,438
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\H+=ZA=+—H 278,407
At 31 December 2017 R=-E—tF+=HA=+—H 353,599
Particulars regarding impairment testing EEEEREZHFENESERERM

on goodwill are disclosed in note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements.

FE23 W E -

AERMBRERDT  gg
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23.

IMPAIRMENT
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible
assets in respect of the operating rights and
goodwill set out in notes 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements have been
allocated to one individual CGU (2017: two
individual CGUs) in the property investment
segment. The allocation of the carrying amounts
of intangible assets in respect of the operating
rights and goodwill (net of accumulated

impairment losses) is as follows:

Property investment
operations in Beijing

AETRENR  GEMBHRME21
&22Fﬁ$§ﬁl§§%&§-#¥2 BREERBE

ENERES Bz —EBILRE
FEE&( Z—tF MEABLIREE
LB ARKERCEBELEEREE
?EEZ%E&(WI@%E—FHEEE)@EH
nT :

Property investment
operations in

under Smart Title Guangzhou under
Limited (“Smart Title”) Best Volume Total
Smart Title Limited
(TSmart Title]) Best Volume
REFZNEREEHE  REMZNEREER EH
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F ZEB-t%F ZE-N§ ZE-tF ZEBE-N\Ff ZE-tE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET T FET FiEx FET Tér
Goodwill [EES 278,407 291,826 - 61,773 278,407 353,599
Intangible assets BYEE
— Operating rights in respect - BEF Rtz LLE
of the Subject Land 818,840 877,921 - - 818,840 877,921
— Operating rights in respect -EEEfz LR
of the Club 49,571 53,500 - - 49,571 53,500
1,146,818 1,223,247 - 61773 1,146,818 1,285,020

The basis of the recoverable amounts of
the above CGUs and their major underlying
assumptions are summarised below:

Property investment operations in Beijing
under Smart Title

The recoverable amount of the property
investment operations in Beijing under Smart
Title has been determined based on the value in
use calculations of the operating rights in respect
of the Subject Land and the Club.
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23.

IMPAIRMENT TES
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contmued)

Property investment operations in Beijing
under Smart Title (Continued)

(a) Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

The value in use calculation of the operating
rights in respect of the Subject Land has
been determined with reference to the
valuations prepared by APAC (2017: D&P).
Those valuations use cash flow projections
based on the financial budgets approved
by management covering a 43-year period
(2017: 44-year period), and discount rate of
16.54% (2017: 13.00%). The budget period
represents the remaining period of the
rights to develop and operate the Subject
Land, pursuant to the signed cooperation
construction and operating agreements.
The discount rate used reflects estimated
weighted average cost of capital, stage of
development, and specific risks relating to
the operations. Cash flow projections during
the budget period for the operating rights
in respect of the Subject Land are based
on the budgeted revenue, gross margin,
operating expenses, capital expenditures
incurred and expected inflation during
the budget period. Expected cash inflows
and outflows, which include the budgeted
revenue, gross margin, operating expenses,
capital expenditures incurred and expected
inflation, have been determined based on
the signed agreements and management’s
expectations for the market development
with reference to the industry and macro-
economic data.

Smart Title RIERZMHEREXH (&)

(a)

EHETEMRZEEE

FTEEREETRMR o REEZFER
BERNSETREE(ZE—
F . DAP)FImREZHEEE ° %
EHEFHAEEEMECUEEE
ZIEBERMER  BEAIFHB/ (=
F—+tF 44FHR) BRIREB
16.54% (ZZ—t F : 13.00%) °
FEEPEARBCILEGEERK
ReEmE BHRRKCETEME Y
BRTHEBZER - IER 2R E
R ST EARRAINEF - B2
ERKEZHERR - EEXE
W s RERE2FEERARESRTE
BIDRBEEERAZEERA - £
FIZ& -~ &R FﬁEE‘EZﬁZFEK
ERFEHBERR - BHESAA
ME(BEERERA - ERZE - ,5.4“‘
EHX EACERERERTER
BRZ2)DBRBEEAUHERER
BHSEZETERRBERESESEH
ZHIZRREAEMEE -

ABHHI AR AT
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. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOO
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Property investment operations in Beijing
under Smart Title (Continued)

(b) Operating rights in respect of the Club

The value in use calculation of the operating
rights in respect of the Club has been
determined with reference to a valuation
report prepared by APAC (2017: D&P).
That valuation uses cash flow projection
based on the financial budget approved
by management covering a 33-year period
(2017: 34-year period), and discount rate
of 11.00% (2017: 11.00%). The budget
period represents the remaining period of
the rights to construct and operate the club
facilities of the Club, pursuant to the signed
cooperation construction and operating
agreement. The discount rate used is
based on the terminal capitalisation rate
of similar industry and the rental growth
rate of the signed lease agreement. Cash
flow projection during the budget period
for the operating rights in respect of the

Smart Title RIERZMHEREXH (&)

(b)

BEHEFZEER

ERE e REREREEZTE
DNEBEZDREE(ZE—LF:
D&P) 2 hEHREMEE - &L E
EREEBMECHBEEECRE
MER - BEBFHB(ZZT—+
F34FHE)  BREH11.00%
(ZZ—tF: 11.00%) - EHEH
BARBER YAERRREEH
& ERREEEM2EREZ
BT HE A o FrE Az BER =R
DERBATEZHREREERK
SR VEERR 2 HEERE B
e Re o AERARESR
FRDREBEEAEHA2EERSW
AREKERY - FHRERARR
HBEREESWAREEMX)
DREETLHEREEEHEE
17 5 JE o R AR B IR R R AR B
HEHEREMEE -

Club is based on the budgeted rental
income and operating expenses during the
budget period. Expected cash inflows and
outflows, which include the budgeted rental
income and operating expenses, have been
determined based on the signed agreements
and management’s expectations for the
renewal of lease agreement with the same
terms and conditions upon its expiry.

BZ-Z-N\F+=ZA=+—HLHE
E . EEEESmart Title Rt TZ 2
REEBIBREBE(ZZ—LF: BE
E5¥8 1,813,000 7t) - EEMEE » EM
ZEBRRZEMIUEEH  BTLEEH
Smart Title Rt T ZYEREEK 2R
HAERBHAKEESEE -

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
directors determine that there is no impairment
on the property investment operations in Beijing
under Smart Title (2017: impairment loss of
HK$1,813,000). The directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the property investment
operations in Beijing under Smart Title to exceed
its aggregate recoverable amount.
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. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Property investment operations in Guangzhou
under Best Volume

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the
recoverable amount of the property investment
operations in Guangzhou under Best Volume was
determined based on the value in use calculation
with reference to a valuation performed by
Colliers. That calculation used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors covering a five-year period at a
discount rate of 6.30% per annum and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a 3.00% growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant market growth forecasts
and did not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted rental income,
such estimation was based on Best Volume’s
existing tenancy agreements and management’s
expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the directors determined that there was no
impairment on the property investment operations
in Guangzhou under Best Volume. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions on which the
recoverable amount was based would not cause
the carrying amount of the property investment
operations in Guangzhou under Best Volume to
exceed its recoverable amount.

On 22 June 2018, goodwill arising on acquisition
of Best Volume was derecognised upon the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of
Best Volume. Please refer to note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

Best Volume REM 2 WX R EX£TE

BE-Z—tHF+-A=+—HLE
E  Best Volume REM 2 E£REX
HealEECRIEERERETEM
BT K2E5HETZMEE - ZFTE
RAZHEREEINENRESHEZ
TEHEREEREBREE%6.30%
TE S mMAEHEZRECRERENFA
3.00% IR REITHE - ZEWREDR
BHRBTEXEREER  BX T RiBHEE
TECZFPHRPERE - FHEEME
ZEMEFEBRDEBYHESARAAN R
B2 hE BEEERSKRA  BEMA
3R A Best Volume 2R BHARE
BEHMSRR2ERMES -

BZ-Z—tF+=-A=+—HLHF
E > EEETE Best Volume REM =)
EREERUWEFE ESHE T
BB EAZERBIMAERZEME
BrgeE s K FTEEHBest Volume
REMNZYEREER ZREERBE T
W el & 48 -

RZE-NFERAZ+ZH REE
Best Volume 2 & E8E BT A% » I
IEBest Volume TE4A 2 BEKILE
?i» c BEAFEE  BLHESUBRERH
L 42 °
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2017

2018
—E-N\F —Z2—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Listed shares in Hong Kong B LEHRE
— Global Mastermind Holdings —RERXBEEFRA A
Limited (“Global Mastermind”) (TR KE] 194,656 -
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong BERFELTRE
— Elite Prosperous Investment Limited —Elite Prosperous
(“Elite Prosperous”) Investment Limited
(T Elite Prosperous ) 56,131 37,796
— China Hong Kong Money Limited —BEBRAR(FEE]
(“China Hong Kong Money”) 596 597
— Spark Concept Group Limited —Spark Concept Group
(“Spark Concept”) Limited ([ Spark
Concept]) - -
251,383 38,393
Market value of listed shares tHRHETHE
— Global Mastermind —IRERKE 113,873 -
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
interests in the following associates:

BERER

Proportion of ownership

R|EFK > REBRUTEE AT $

Country/place of Principal place interest and voting
Name of entity incorporation of business power held by the Group Principal activities
EauTo v rEEfERARER
EREH X/ t% TEEENE RBRERLA TEEHR
2018 2017
“E-\F ZT-tF
Global Mastermind (Note (i) Cayman Islands Hong Kong 29.04% 4.99%  Provision and operation of,
REARBAEZ () MEEE BB travel business, treasury
management, business,
money lending business,
securities, futures and
brokerage business,
and assets management
services
RUERCERESY - BE
BEEY - HEEY &
% HERFHFLEL N
REEERRB
China Hong Kong Money ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 30% 30%  Dormant
(Note (ii) 3 5 EEeX
B (M (i)
Elite Prosperous (Note (i) ~ British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 49% 49%  Investment holding
(Hi i) RERZEE 5 REZR
Spark Concept (Note (iv))  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong - 49%  Catering
(Wi iv) REELES i B8
KIERBIREBRAR
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24. INTERES

Notes:

(@i

(i)

On 29 June 2018, the Group acquired 1,020,000,000
shares in Global Mastermind, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and the issued shares of which are listed on
GEM operated by the Exchange under stock code:
8063, at a consideration of HK$153,000,000. Prior to
the acquisition, the Group already held 217,750,000
shares in Global Mastermind, which were accounted
for as “financial assets at FVTPL” in the consolidated
statement of financial position for financial reporting
purposes. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Group was interested in 1,237,750,000 shares in
Global Mastermind, representing approximately
29.04% of the issued share capital of Global
Mastermind. The Group transferred the 217,750,000
shares in Global Mastermind with an aggregate fair
value of HK$30,049,000 at 29 June 2018 to “interests
in associates” in the consolidated statement of
financial position in applying equity method to
account for the Group’s investment in Global
Mastermind.

On completion of the acquisition of the shares in
Global Mastermind, the fair value of net assets
acquired as of the acquisition date exceeded
the fair value of the consideration transferred by
HK$3,407,000. Accordingly, the Group recognised
a gain on bargaining purchase of HK$3,407,000 in
the line item “Share of results of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The market value of listed shares of Global
Mastermind held by the Group at 31 December 2018
is HK$113,873,000.

On 30 March 2016, China Hong Kong Money allotted
and issued 599,999 and 400,000 new shares at an
issue price of HK$1.00 per share to the Group and
an individual, who is an independent third party,
respectively. China Hong Kong Money became a
60% owned subsidiary of the Company on that date.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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R-ZZE-—NFRAZTHhA  XEEMU
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EHme WBA AEECEERRAB
217,750,000 B BR 17 © ThEF HE3R 5 A&
ANGEMBERRRBIEAFEFAERE
ReesREE] - RIWBER%E  K&H
MBI K E1,237,750,000 IR IR 15 & #
B HERBRAEBECSHITRAY
20.04% c R=ZZE—hEANAZTHBEX
SEERER RS N F{EHEE30,049,000
BT ZBIRAE 217,750,000 R R ER
ZHREMBRRRPIREE AT 2
DEABREERBERARBZRE -

RERKBRRABROE  BEWER
MO WBEEFREATFERBECEES
AP {EKE3,407,00058 7 - Bt - KRE&E
ERGEEERANEEHEQNTEEE
BREEEE & 3,407,000 T °

RZZBE-NF+ZA=+t—-HB  XE
BEFE2RRARBLETROTES
113,873,000 & T °
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TEERI00BTEAEER —BBE L
F=F1EA D BB 3 K 317 599,999 % &
400,000 ¥ p% 10 - BEZ AR PBEMK
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSO

(iii)

On 21 December 2016, China Hong Kong Money
allotted and issued 1,000,000 new shares at an issue
price of HK$1.00 per share to the individual. On the
same date, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, one of the
two directors of China Hong Kong Money appointed
to the board of directors by the Group, resigned as
a director of China Hong Kong Money. As a result
of the allotment and issue of the new shares and
the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton as a
director, the Group’s shareholding interest in China
Hong Kong Money was diluted from 60% to 30%
and the Group lost the control over China Hong
Kong Money. The Group was regarded as having
significant influence over China Hong Kong Money.
The Group reclassified the investment in China Hong
Kong Money to “interests in associates”.

On 31 August 2017, the Group subscribed for 49
ordinary shares which represent 49% equity interests
in Elite Prosperous at a consideration of US$49. Elite
Prosperous is an investment holding company.

On 5 September 2017, the Group and the other
shareholder of Elite Prosperous, an independent
third party, as lenders entered into the shareholders’
loan agreement with Elite Prosperous as borrower.
Pursuant to the shareholders’ loan agreement,
the Group has agreed to provide a shareholder’s
loan in the amount of US$4,900,000, equivalent
to HK$38,421,000, to Elite Prosperous, being the
Group’s pro rata share of the shareholders’ loan in
the principal amount of US$10,000,000, equivalent
to HK$78,410,000, in aggregate to be provided
by all of the shareholders of Elite Prosperous.
The shareholders’ loan of US$10,000,000 is solely
for the purpose of financing Elite Prosperous’s
operating and investment needs. The shareholders’
loan of US$10,000,000 is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. On the same
date, the Group made the shareholder’s loan of
US$4,900,000 to Elite Prosperous. The Group
classified the shareholder’s loan of US$4,900,000
to Elite Prosperous as “interests in associates”.
The maximum amount of the shareholder’s loan
outstanding to the Group during the year ended
31 December 2018 was HK$38,437,000 (2017:
HK$38,421,000).

(iii)

R-E—R"F+=—A=+—H HBEU
BITESR1.00BTOZEAERERET
1,000,000 IR ¥ B2 10 - RE B © sREI{E %
E(REBZEFEEESEMRESZ
—)BEPREES  c ARBBRBITH
BOURREEREEBRTIESHE &
ERTBEZRER60% HEZ30%
MAEBEAREPBE ZEHE - NREEW
BEBUTBEEERTE - AEBBHRF
BEZREEFIEBINEEQAT &

e

RZB-+tFENA=+—0 AEBAU
X {849 % 7t W B Elite Prosperous 2249
REBR  HERHE49%K E - Elite
Prosperous & —BIREER AT ©

RZZBE—+tEAAAEAB » NEBEKElte
Prosperous 3 —ERR(— BB I E=
% )(fE & Bk & A ) BZElite Prosperous
(HEBERATIIBRRERGZE - RIB
BREEXRHZE AEBEC R ZE @Elte
Prosperous iz ft & %8 % 4,900,000 3 7t
(15 7438,421,000 8B T) 2B BIH
M Elite Prosperous 28R EEIRM 2B
REFA$4%510,000,000% T (A
78,410,000 % 5t ) 2 R LL Bl I 5 ©
k% 10,000,000 % T 2 R R EKE T A
M2 Elite Prosperous 2EERKRESE
= o k210,000,000 ETZRRERH
BIEHR -  REREREREE -FA > K
£ [E [@ Elite Prosperous i 4,900,000
ENZBRRER XK B # @Elte
Prosperous 121 Z i SR E 5% 4,900,000 3=
TES B RNBEEATRzERE ] - BE-F
—NE+ZA=+—-HLEFEE  FEFMLK
EENRRER Z & A FIE % 38,437,000
BT (ZZF—+%F :38,421,000/87T) °
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Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

On 15 December 2011, the Group acquired 49%
of the issued share capital of Spark Concept at
a consideration of HK$49. Spark Concept is an
investment holding company and its principal
subsidiaries are principally engaged in catering.

On 9 August 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of 49% of issued share capital of Spark Concept
and the shareholder’s loan of HK$1,480,000 (net
of impairment loss) due by Spark Concept to an
individual who is a shareholder and a director
of Spark Concept at a cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000. The disposal was completed on 9
August 2018 and the Group recognised a gain on
disposal of an associate of HK$1,520,000 in the line
item “Other gains and losses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All of associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Hret : ()

(iv)

RZZT——F+-A+EA > AEBEURK
B 4978 T B8 Spark Concept T 21T
A2 49% o Spark Concept B—RBE#&RE
ERAR MEFEMBAREZEREE
B o

RZZBE-NFENALB AEBETIE
EnE HEAREBEAEEURSAKRE
3,000,000 jt [ — & A& Spark Concept
BEKES 218 A H & Spark Concept
B % 17T R &N 249% K 1,480,000 T
Spark Concept &1 IR R & KX (M BRRE
Eig) HESEER=-Z-N\FNAAL
BRER - AEERGEEZRIEMkE
REEIEEPRIALE—BHELFTAK
#1,520,0008 7T

FrEBE RRFARRE M B REREY
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Summarised financial information of material
associate

Summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s material associate is set out below.
The summarised financial information represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Global Mastermind

EERENRAZHMBENBE

FHEASEEERE QA U BERHM
BEFINTX - MBERFEAXRRE
FEMBERERAFER 2BE QT UE

WRATEHE -

REAE

2018
S
HK$°000
FET

FRBEE

Non-current assets

325,151

RBEE

Current assets

506,608

Current liabilities BEIERE

(84,326)

FRBERE

Non-current liabilities

(77,128)

For the
period from
29 June 2018
to

31 December
2018
R=ZZB—N\F
A~AZ+AhA
EZE-N\HF
+=A
=t+—BHH
HK$’000
FET

AEARE W s

Revenue for the period

36,341

EEEE

Loss for the period

(41,002)

Other comprehensive income for the period

A EE A2 E RS

64,635

Total comprehensive income for the period

ANHA R 2 E W s

23,633

KEHMREERAT
—EN\FEH
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Summarised financial information of material
associate (Continued)

EEBENRNZHBERBE(HF)

Global Mastermind (Continued) BRI ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial PR EERBMBES SV BHRERNFT
information to the carrying amount of the interest WRNZEHE AT 2 EZREE R

in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2018

—E-NEF

HK$’000

FET

Net assets of Global Mastermind REKBzEEFE 670,305
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRRRKBES 2 ERLEH

interest in Global Mastermind 29.04%

The Group’s share of net assets of REBRGRRABZEEFE

Global Mastermind 194,656
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBRRBRABzEE ZREHE

Global Mastermind 194,656

Aggregate information of associates that are
not individually material

UHBREAZBHERRGEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
The Group’s share of profit/(loss) and  A~S B fE(L & REFI,
total comprehensive income/(expense) (EE)RZEWZE(BX)
for the year FbG] 18,318 (628)
Aggregate carrying amount of the TEERLEHE AT 2R
Group’s interests in these associates 2 #@REE 56,727 38,393
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. INTERES

Unrecognised share of loss of associates that
are not individually material

W IEERIE Rz REREIEBE QR
&8

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Unrecognised share of loss of i AR R FANEE QT
associates for the year 518 (2,184) (99)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss ZR&t i RERELEZE DT
of associates B (8,676) (6,492)

Disposal of 49% ownership interest in Spark
Concept

On 9 August 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of 49% of issued share capital of Spark Concept
and the shareholder’s loan of HK$1,480,000 (net
of impairment loss) due by Spark Concept to an
individual who is a shareholder and a director
of Spark Concept at a cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000. The disposal was completed on 9
August 2018. This transaction has resulted in the
recognition of a gain on disposal of an associate,
which is calculated as follows:

H & Spark Concept 2 49% EHE#E

RZZE-—NFENBIB AEEX
EBEWHZ HANREHAAEEUERS
£ 83,000,0003% 7t [4 — % 5 Spark
Concept R R K EE 2 {8 A i & Spark
Concept2 TR & 249%#E &7 &
1,480,000 %8 JT Spark Concept fE {1 %
RERNKRBEESE) HESEER
“TE-NENBAARER - LARZHE
REE—HBEEQ A2 WS HFtEW
T

HK$’000

FET

Proceeds of disposal HERT 3,000

Less: amount due from an associate Bt o FEUN — R Eg N R FRIE (1,480)

carrying amount of the 49% investment REEB#49% BEZREE

on the date of disposal -

Gain on disposal recognised R 1,520
KIERIEIRERRAR

—EN\FEH
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2018 2017
—F-N\F ZZ—tF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Loan to customers mEFRHEZERK 1,174,998 1,187,301
Accrued interest receivables e FERT R B 11,288 13,329
1,186,286 1,200,630

Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEERE (17,547) —

1,168,739 1,200,630

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
The loan receivables carry effective interest
ranging from 8% to 15% per annum (2017: 8%
to 15% per annum). A maturity profile of the loan
receivables (net of allowance for credit losses)
at 31 December 2018 and 2017, based on the
maturity date is as follows:

FEEFHYUBAtE BRERZE
BMERENF 8% E15% (ZB—+5F :
FRNEEN E15%) c R=ZE—N\ER=
E—tFE+ZA=+—H  REHPBEE
PRZERERIKREEEEBREE) ZH
ERMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets REEE
Within one year —FR 815,718 626,127
Non-current assets FRBEE
More than one year but not exceeding —&F L E{ERBBME
two years 353,021 574,503

1,168,739 1,200,630

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an
allowance for credit losses on loan receivables of
HK$17,547,000 was recognised (2017: Nil).
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26.

27.

At 31 December 2018, a loan in the principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 is secured by a
corporate guarantee. At 31 December 2017,
certain loans in the aggregate principal amounts
of HK$180,000,000 were secured by personal and
corporate guarantees, and pledge of customer’s

property.

Included in the carrying amount of loan
receivables at 31 December 2018 is an
accumulated allowance for credit losses of
HK$17,547,000 (2017: Nil).

Details of impairment assessment of loan
receivables for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 50.

RZEBE-NE+=ZA=+—-HB  —XK
< % £100,000,00058 T 2 B 7 J3 LA
AFEREEFB - RZE—tEF+=A8
=+—H  &A%£#%5%180,000,000%8
TRZETERDUBARQARER > KU
REHREFYEEEA -

RZE-NE+ZA=+—H EW
EXREEEEEFTCEESEREA
17,547,000 BT (ZF—tF 1 |&) o

BE-_Z-)\B+_-_A=+—HLEE
FEW & 5Kz BUERT AR B M EE 50 °

INVENTORIES 26. &
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Raw materials FEArR 11,465 11,986
Work-in-progress EHm 114 963
Finished goods SN 25,892 25,504
37,471 38,453
Inventories are expected to be recovered within FEEHER—FRWE -
one year.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. ESEWFEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 33,063 41,107
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (89) -
32,974 41,107
KIERBIREBRAT

—EN\FEH
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. TRAD

The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for credit losses) at
the end of the reporting period presented based
on the invoice dates:

REZAHZINBERRZE SRR
RENBREESERE) ZRED M0
T

2018 2017

—E-N\F ZF—tF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET TET

0-30 days 0Z30H 5,494 5,333
31-60 days 31Z60H 5,651 11,503
61-90 days 61290 H 5,669 6,139
91-120 days 91E120H 3,442 3,195
121-180 days 121180 H 5,757 11,469
Over 180 days 180 A E 6,961 3,468
32,974 41,107

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an
allowance for credit losses on trade receivables
of HK$89,000 was recognised (2017: Nil).

Included in the carrying amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2018 is an
accumulated allowance for credit losses of
HK$89,000 (2017: Nil).

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 50.

Movement in the allowance for credit losses
during the year is as follows:

BE-Z-\E+=-A=+—-HLHE
B REZERFERIZEEEER
#A89,000BL(=Z—+F . &) -

RZB-NF+ZA=+—H E5F
BWRERAESERITFESRBEER
89,000/ 8L (=F— L : &) o

BE_ZE-N\F+-A=FT—-RHLFE
B 5 R WFR 2R E R F BRI
50 °

FEEFEBRBEZZBHNOT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January n—A—H - —
Allowance for credit losses recognised ANEEBAFEHEEEFE

during the year B 89 —

At 31 December Rt+t=-—HA=+—H 89 —

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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28. DEPOSITS, PR

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Deposits Re 696 12,081
Prepayments B FRIE 83,909 71,141
Other receivables H bW TR 94,586 166,230
179,191 249,452
Less: prepayments and other B DBRIRBEEZ
receivables classified as NI R H MR
non-current assets ;IE (50,104) (20,957)
129,087 228,495

At 31 December 2018, included in the other
receivables are the loan to a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company of RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to HK$28,532,000) for a term of
24 months commencing on 24 August 2018
(2017: Nil) and the related interest receivable of
RMB576,000 (equivalent to HK$658,000) (2017:
Nil). The key terms of the loan to the director are
disclosed in note 47.

At 31 December 2018, an aggregate amount of
HK$3,206,000 classified as non-current assets
is prepayments relating to property, plant and
equipment (2017: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an
allowance for credit losses on other receivables
of HK$21,285,000 was recognised (2017: Nil),
of which HK$21,120,000 is related to other
receivables (2017: Nil) and HK$165,000 is related
to the loan to the director (2017: Nil).

Details of impairment assessment of other
receivables for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 50.

R-ZE-NE+ZA=+—H' 5 AH
tHERRESERAQTAETHE LA
Z—REERHBERARE 25,000,000
T (% 28,532,0008 ) (== —+
F.8) BZE-N\FNA=+NAEHA
mRst B4 EE RAEEERFE RS A
< #576,000 7t (18 & 74 658,000 7% 7T )
(ZZ—tF  |) PZEZREHEX
ZEBRRAMT47HE -

RZE-NE+ZBA=+-—-H  &#
3,206,000 B T EAIRBEE  Z
SHEAVE RERSREZBESR(ZE
—tF &)

BE-_Z-\E+=-A=+—HLHF
E EREMERRERRCEESER
521,285,000 B c(ZE—+tF : &) >
H 121,120,000 78 st Ed H b & Uk 7R 1B 46
B(ZZE—t % : &)X 165,000% &
E?E%Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ(:g—tiz

BE-Z2E—-N\E+ZA=+—HLE
B HihEWRE OB EFEEFEBER
Mtz 50 o

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH
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Detail of amount due from an associate is as

follows:

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year

Pl — R A

BAIREZHBNT

FARER 2018 2017

ZEeLH —E-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FHET FBT

Spark Concept Spark Concept 7,393 - 7,393
Less: impairment loss B ERRZREEE

recognised - (5,913)

- 1,480

The carrying amount of amount due from Spark
Concept was reduced to the recoverable amount
which was determined by reference to the
estimation of future cash flows expected to be
generated from Spark Concept.

The amount due from Spark Concept is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

On 9 August 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of 49% of issued share capital of Spark Concept
and the shareholder’s loan of HK$1,480,000 (net
of impairment loss) due by Spark Concept to an
individual who is a shareholder and a director
of Spark Concept at a cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000. The disposal was completed on 9
August 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an
impairment loss of HK$217,000 was recognised
in respect of the amount due from Spark
Concept.
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FEU Spark Concept 18 2 BREE T3
LPEARESE JRESENLESE
FEHA S A Spark Concept B4 2 stk
RIBESREETE °

FEUWL Spark ConceptFIBAEIKIF - &
BERAREREE -

2>

—E-NFNAAB XEBIT L
EEWZ EWEHEWF%BUE%
1’C ES 000,000% Jjt @ — % %A Spark
ConceptlR R R EE 2@ AL E
Spark Concept2 & 1T &N 2 49% &
1,480 OOO}ET_DSpark Concept FE 1 IR
RERNBRAERE) - HESEDR
ZE-NENBhLBAEK -

BEZE_Z—tHE+-A=+—BLHF
E - EREW Spark Concept IBHER
H{EE1E217,0008 7T °



. FINANCI
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
—E-N\F —Z2—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, &#B LEHRAZES
at fair value BAFE 287,302 662,943

At the end of the reporting period, financial
assets at FVTPL were measured at fair value. Fair
value of listed equity securities were determined
with reference to quoted market closing price,
except for the listed equity securities of a listed
issuer in Hong Kong, which have been suspended
from trading on the Exchange since 27 November
2017, with a fair value of HK$6,211,000 (2017:
HK$9,100,000). The fair value measurement
of the suspended listed equity securities was
classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and was based on the valuation performed by
Graval Consulting Limited (“Graval”) (2017:
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited
(“PSHK?”)), an independent firm of professional
valuers, using market approach.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a
loss arising on change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL of HK$296,211,000 (2017:
HK$92,526,000) was recognised in the line item
“Other gains and losses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

RBEEMR  BOFEFABEZRZE
MEEUAFENE  LWREAESZ
RFESENERBRHERE - EQ
{6 %6,211,0008 T(=F — £ F:
9,100,000 L) 2 E B EW#HITAZE
mRAESF(B=Z—tF+-A=+t
ARBXEFEEE)R) - BOEAE
SWAFESERZCEF LTRAESZH
DRFPEDER-BBYEEMLEMTE
HEEERERAGD(EED(ZE—+1
FART(EB)ARQB(HRETD)
EATISEETHGESE -

BZE-Z-N\E+=ZA=+—HLHE
B BRAFEFAEZERZEMEED
T EEEES 2 E1E296,211,000% T
(ZZ—t 5 :92,526,00087T) - Rz
GERRIEMRERBEIEERR -

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH
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2018 2017

—E-NEF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 140,628 225,010

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar
(“USD”) amounted to HK$9,188,000 (2017:
HK$37,607,000) and HK$739,000 (2017:
HK$3,739,000) respectively.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Bank balances earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group performed impairment assessment on
bank balances and concluded that the probability
of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for
credit losses is provided. Details of impairment
assessment of bank balances for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 50.
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RBEBR REBUARBTAR
BMOIREX(TERDHEZRERES
ZEBYH A AH9,188,0008 T (=& —+
% : 37,607,000 Jt ) &% 739,0008 T
(ZF—+4%F :3,739,000587T) °

ARBIATEHRIBRAHMER - R
o REPENIEERERIREER
EERNEEESRAE  AEBEEEEB
EREMRIMEXEBZRITEARER

RITHEFERRBRITEFERNRFEZ
FEARFE - RITERKEFHREER
Y BTN SRR A RC 8k 2 SRAT o

BE-ZZE—-N\E+-A=+—HLE
B NEBYRTESRETRENGE
WRAEUFHARTENNIREMELTE
X BT EEHREESERE B2
—E-N\E+ZA=+—HLEE R
THEB 2 REFEFBEHRMEES0 -



Movements in the share capital of the Company ARATRARFEAZESBHWOT :

during the year are as follows:
Number of shares Share capital
BRHBAE MR
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\F ZE-tF ZB-N\F IZE2-tH
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FR K FET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01  &REE0.018 7T
each (2017: HK$0.01 each) (ZZ2—t& : BREE
0.01BT)2EEBR
Authorised: ZE
At 1 January and R—B—BRK

31 December +=-B=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE -

At 1 January n—B—H 3,819,606 3,216,006 38,196 32,160
Placing of new shares BITHRD

(Note a) (BiaF a) - 643,200 - 6,432
Repurchase of shares LEAEI L)

(Note b) (B b) - (39,600) - (396)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 3,819,606 3,819,606 38,196 38,196
Notes: Yoz
(@ On 16 May 2017, the Company allotted and issued (@) R-ZZT—tFHA+TAHB FATARE—

643,200,000 new ordinary shares at a price of BREEUGEFROZ2ERNEZER0.16
HK$0.16 per share to five individual investors, who 7B T 2 B 1 BE 8 & % 17 643,200,000 %
are independent third parties, and five corporate FEBRTAERENREE(RBIE=
investors, whose ultimate beneficial owners are FIREREEREZ(HERESZHESR
independent third parties, by way of placing of new ANBBYE=R) MEZFMBRIEFE
shares under general mandate. The net proceeds 99,226,000 B TR AR AT —+FMN
from the placing of HK$99,226,000 were fully utilised A+=B82f6 2HAERSERBULRE
for financing the acquisition of the properties located B2ETYE-

in Hong Kong as announced by the Company on 13

April 2017.
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Notes: (Continued)

(o) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company repurchased and cancelled its own shares

as follows:

Hret : ()

(b) BE_ZE—tFt+-A=+—HLEFE"
AATBEE A FHERBUT :

No. of ordinary Price per share Aggregate
share of BRERK Consideration
HK$0.01 each Highest Lowest paid

BREE0.01%8
Month of repurchase BER®ZA 5 TREBRHE 53] BE FXAIz@BRE
"000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
K B B FET
October 2017 —E—+%+H 20,800 0.220 0.176 3,959
November 2017 —E—+H+-f 18,800 0.235 0.225 4,345
39,600 8,304

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon

repurchase.

The directors considered that the Company’s
ordinary shares were trading at a discount to the
net asset value per share, the repurchases would
increase the net asset value per share of the

Company.

33. TRADE PAYABLES

LEEBRENBEEFEH -

EERRFLAEBRERENREREE
FE BOROSESEALANEREE

REEM o

33. EZERIA

2018 2017

—F-N\F ZF—LF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Trade payables B ENFIE 3,593 8,452

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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34.

The following is an aging analysis of trade

BERZAM2INBERR2ESEN

payables at the end of the reporting period RIEZREBRDTWOT :
presented based on the invoice dates:

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 240 819
31 - 60 days 31E£60H 344 219
61 — 90 days 61Z90H 286 1,660
91 — 120 days 91&120H 484 544
Over 120 days 120 HE £ 2,239 5,210
3,593 8,452

The average credit period on purchase of goods
and services is 120 days. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit time
frame.

BEEmkBRB2FIEEHR120
R-AEECERVYBRAMEERER
LRMEBRNRERNEEREEER

B1E o

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND 3. 2iZEe EFERRHEMENRK
OTHER PAYABLES |
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Deposits received (Note) 2R ® (HEF) 1,437 237,694
Accruals FEstE R 54,816 21,285
Other payables Hfth B FRIB 167,515 216,383
223,768 475,362
Less: other payables classified as B DBEARIERBEEZ
non-current liabilities HE 5B (102,535) (91,834)
121,233 383,528
Note: Bt -

Deposits received at 31 December 2017 include a
refundable deposit of HK$235,300,000 received from Mr.
Xie Zhaobin, pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 5 December 2017 entered into between
Golden Stone Management Limited (“Golden Stone”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor and
Mr. Xie Zhaobin as purchaser relating to the sale and
purchase of 100% of the entire issued share capital of Best
Volume. The disposal was completed on 22 June 2018.

R-ZE—tF+-A=+-BzBKESE
EREARATZ2EME D FGolden Stone
Management Limited ([ Golden Stonel) ({F
REL)EHERTEWERERAIR-Z—1tF
+ZAHEBHEEBest Volume 100% B 1T
RAMT L2 BIRGEERHS  BHBBEENR
B —E0 FiRIER S 235,300,000/ T - HE
EFHEER-_E-NERA=-T-HREHK°

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH
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35. PROMISSORY NOTE

& 5 E )

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January K—A—H - 30,000

Repayment of promissory note A EE - (30,000)

At 31 December HNt+=-—HBA=+—H - _
Note: Yoz

The promissory note is part of the consideration for
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Best Volume as completed on 12 November 2015. The
promissory note is non-interest bearing, unsecured and
maturing within three business days after the date of a
final and effective judgement or an effective and binding
settlement agreement of the lawsuit between Guangzhou
Yingrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Yingrui”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Best Volume, and Zhanjiang
City No. 4 Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (the
“Contractor”) in respect of not paying certain payment
under the construction contract relating to the construction
of Yingrui’s investment properties located in the PRC.

Following the First Trial Written Judgement issued by
the People’s Court on 24 June 2016, Yingrui lodged an
appeal against the First Trial Written Judgement to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangzhou City in July
2016. After the appeal was heard by the Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangzhou City, a judgement was
handed down on 9 January 2017 dismissing the Appeal
and upholding the First Trial Judgement. On 15 March
2017, Yingrui and the Contractor entered into a settlement
agreement, pursuant to which Yingrui agreed to pay
the Contractor a sum of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,844,000) within three days from the date of the
settlement agreement as full and final settlement of
the Proceeding. On the same day, Ace Guide Holdings
Limited, the ultimate beneficial owner of Yingrui prior to
the acquisition of Yingrui by Best Volume in October 2014,
deposited an amount of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,844,000) into Yingrui’s bank account and Yingrui
paid the said amount of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,844,000) was utilised by Yingrui to pay to the
Contractor pursuant to the settlement agreement. On 16
March 2017, the People’s Court has ruled the seizure on
certain units of the Groups’ investment property located
in the PRC in the aggregate value of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to HK$16,769,000) be released.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
abovementioned lawsuit was settled between Yingrui and
the Contractor and the promissory note was fully repaid.
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AN EE S INEEBest Volume 2 22 TR
RERZZE-FEF+—A+ZBRK) ZBHAK
B - AAEEARE - BIKF KM Best Volume
2EMBLAAEMNT IR EHEMBEERAT
(Mos ESEIHENEEIRERAT(EAE
BEBEAIMNOBEVRPECRENECE
FANETETREZRAESERREMRHR
RETEURENRND 2B HEE=EEER
REH -

EARZERR-ZE—R"EANA-THBAHHEE—
BYRERZ  DHRENR-ZE-—AFLtARE—F
¥REBEMNTPRAREREH LHF - RE
MAHRRARERM ERETERME —2—t
F—ANBEEHECHARE LF THEZFNEH
ReRZFE—+F=A+HB » PEHERBET
Y MEHE 0 B DRESEMNETGZ Qe
SFT=AAEEAERE X ARY9,700,000 5T (18
£7410,844,00087) * LSHRBIEZERRE
FfZE o G B > Best VolumeR=—EE—ME+ A
WD 2 KL EZEEE AAce Guide
Holdings Limited #% A R % 9,700,000 T (8%
710,844,000 8 T) RIBEFE AN ZIRITIRFE -
M E X {F it A K#¥ 9,700,000 Tt (HER
10,844,000 % 7t ) 30 FR 30 3 A R AR 15 A AR 175 5 1
RFEEF - RZE—tE=A+B ARXE
RES  HAEEMRTEZBRENES TEMN
(#{8 A R % 15,000,000 7t (#5574 16,769,000
HBIT)) 2 NS LARERR o

BE-E—+tHE+=-A=+—RHLEE  BiH
BEIRQAFACH LMFAERMNE  REZEE
CEHEE -



2018 2017
—F-N\F ZT—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Secured bank borrowings CHEFRITER 157,201 351,454
Carrying amounts repayable: AEEBZRHEME :
Within one year —F R 35,049 38,836
More than one year, but not —FULEFBBME
exceeding two years - 13,634
More than two years, but not MEULBTEBBAREF
exceeding five years - 40,901
Over five years HEFEUE - 130,658
35,049 224,029
Carrying amounts that contain a EEREREEKRK
repayable on demand clause (shown  {BZAEE ZIREE
under current liabilities) but repayable: (3t AREIERE) :
Within one year —FR 5,235 5,261
More than one year, but not —FULEFBBME
exceeding two years 5,353 5,373
More than two years, but not MEL L ERBBRE
exceeding five years 16,865 16,805
Over five years HEFEE 94,699 99,986
122,152 127,425
157,201 351,454
Less: amounts shown under current B ST AREBEEZRIE
liabilities (157,201) (166,261)
Amounts shown under non-current FAERBEBEZRE
liabilities - 185,193

KERBBEERAT
—sonFEH 20O
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. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had the
following bank borrowings:

(a) a secured mortgage loan of HK$122,152,000
(2017: HK$127,425,000), which is interest
bearing at 1% per annum over one-
month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) or 3% per annum below the
prime rate quoted by the bank from time
to time, whichever is lower, secured by a
first legal charge over the Group’s buildings
and investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$402,177,000 (2017: HK$394,330,000),
guaranteed by the Company and two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, namely
K E Group Limited and Om Gem Limited,
and maturing on 18 September 2037;

(b) a secured revolving term loan of
HK$20,000,000 (2017: HK$20,000,000),
which is interest bearing at HIBOR plus
2% per annum, secured by the first legal
charge over the Group’s buildings and
investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$402,177,000 (2017: HK$394,330,000),
guaranteed by the Company and Om Gem
Limited, and maturing on 22 April 2019; and

(c) a secured account payable financing of
HK$15,049,000 (2017: HK$5,203,000)
which is interest bearing at 2% per annum
over HIBOR, secured by the first legal
charge over the Group’s buildings and
investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$402,177,000 (2017: HK$394,330,000),
guaranteed by the Company and Om
Gem Limited, and maturing in five months
commencing from January 2019.

At 31 December 2017, the Group also had a
secured RMB bank loan of HK$198,826,000,
which is interest bearing at the benchmark
interest rate of The People’s Bank of China
upward by 20% per annum, secured by the
Groups’ investment properties located in the
PRC with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$576,019,000, guaranteed by Yingrui, and
maturing on 28 August 2032. The secured RMB
bank loan was released through the disposal of
Best Volume on 22 June 2018.
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37.

As the secured mortgage loan contains a
repayable on demand clause, the entire
outstanding balance of the secured mortgage
loan was classified under current liabilities.

The bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies are set out below:

HREERRBERESARERER
R AUAERARBEERZHRGE
BRIERBEE -

RITERATHERE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
RMB AR - 198,826
Hong Kong dollar BT 157,201 152,628
157,201 351,454
OTHER BORROWINGS 37. HibfEx
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Unsecured other borrowings IR HEMER 200,000 300,000

At 31 December 2018, the unsecured other
borrowing of HK$200,000,000 is interest bearing
at 8% per annum, guaranteed by a personal
guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai, an
executive director, and maturing on 30 May 2019.

At 31 December 2017, the two unsecured other
borrowings are interest bearing at 8% per annum,
and guaranteed by two personal guarantees given
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Of the total unsecured
other borrowings, HK$200,000,000 and
HK$100,000,000 are maturing on 27 April 2018
and 1 June 2018 respectively. The two unsecured
other borrowings were repaid at maturity.

The unsecured other borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar.

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H  EEKF
H thf& 7% 200,000,000 % jT A F R ZE 8%
AR BARTESTHELALREHENE
AERERER  IR=-ZF-NFHA
=t+HEH-

R-F—-—tH+-A=+—-H WA
BEAHMERUAERNRERTE - K
HEERAERENMEEABRE
RER EEREFHMERBED
200,000,000 & 5T % 100,000,000 & JT#
DHR-FB-NFOA-F+LtAR=-Z
—NFEANA—BEH - MERKFEAM
ERCREIMREE -

HIRMEMETIILUBTEE -
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2018 2017

—E-N\E —EB—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBT

Secured notes ERERE 299,611 299,398

HK$’000

FET

Proceeds from issue of secured notes BITEREEERE 300,000
Less: transaction costs related to issue of B BTEREEZHEBERSRAKR

secured notes (674)

299,326

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2017 R=—ZF—+tH—HF—H -

Issue of secured notes BITIERER 299,326

Imputed interest on secured notes EREEZHEFE 8,554

Interest payable ERRE (8,482)

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-ZF—tHF+=-A=+—-HK

—E—NE—HF—H 299,398
Imputed interest on secured notes EREBZGHERE 24,213
Interest paid and payable 2 RESRE (24,000)
At 31 December 2018 R=FB-NF+=A=+—8 299,611

On 25 August 2017, the Company issued the
secured notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. The secured notes are
interest bearing at 8% per annum and payable
semi-annually in arrears, secured by share
charge over 100% of the issued share capital in
China Jiuhao Health Industry Group Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
principal assets of which are the operating rights
in respect of the Club and the Subject Land, and
maturing on 25 August 2020.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

m Z—tHENAZ+EHHB  KAQAE

*ﬁ‘ﬂ&émgﬁﬁ%soo 000,000 T 2
Eﬁmﬁ’%owﬁﬁ }Fuﬁﬂﬁs%#
B B¥EINHEEINA—K  UAQT
éﬁﬁi%@ﬂqﬂl@gsﬁﬁ_KF%%lE
RAR(EETEEEALAEBESMREE
W T EER)NI00%ERITRAZ
RHFE/EERT  TR=2B=FFN\A
—+EHAZIHE -



39.

. SECURED NOTES (Continued)

The effective interest rate of the secured notes is
8.09% per annum.

The secured notes are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

The Company has an option to repay the
outstanding principal amount of the secured
notes at any time before the maturity date. The
option is regarded as embedded derivatives in
the host contract. The directors assessed the
fair value of the option with reference to the
valuation performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited (“Grant Sherman”), an independent
firm of professional valuers, which assessed the
fair value of the option using the discounted
cash flow method and determined that the fair
value of the option was insignificant on initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the fair value of the option
was not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Under the secured notes, the Company
covenants with the noteholders that from the
issue date and for so long as any secured notes
are outstanding, (i) the Group will not create any
encumbrance upon the whole or any part of its
present or future undertaking, assets or revenue
of the Group to secure any present or future
indebtedness incurred or to secure any guarantee
or indemnity in respect of any guarantee or
indemnity in respect of (subject to the exceptions
as set out in the secured notes), and (ii) the
Company will ensure the consolidated tangible
net worth of the Group will not be less than
HK$1,300,000,000. The Company has complied
with the covenant throughout the year ended 31
December 2018 and the period from 25 August
2017 (issue date) to 31 December 2017.

&

EREBZERFNER8.09% °

BREHBLUBTEE -

AAEAEREBEAEE A AR EE
BEREBIAEESNASHE BERER
BRECHNZBATETIR -EE2ZE
— BB VERGEMTHEFEERLD
A(hEDET2EEFHEEEZLQ
FE - 2t EMERMBREERSRANG
BEECLAVE TETEREERDD
BARBEPRE 2D FEMTRE -
Bt WEAREMBRRPEIRST
EBERERZAFE-

BREBEEREE  AQATHEZEZFE AR
X BRTHHRRIMAERZENER
EBEHE (FXEEBTFEREBES
R EE s BEESWANEIREM
HOBREEEE  LUEESEMRESR
BREXKINESEERGREL 2L

REAFERE(ZERZEFMAHRRE
FMI\) R(i)AD A EERAEBNE

&B K FESET L 1,300,000,000 %
n°¢QTEFﬁ§_ —-N\F+=A
St-HLEEEFEARBE=-Z—t
FNRZ+HBE=ZZ—-—tH+ZHA
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AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 39. Eff—BEENE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Mr. Lei Hong Wai THERE 50,000 —
Amount due to a director is unsecured, non- EN—R2EEREARIKT - RERE

interest bearing and repayable on demand. REREE -
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40. DEFERRED TAX A

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of financial position,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

REJIRGEPMBMRREK B TELER
HEERGECD TUEE - RYBRS
MmE @ U TRELEBIRGEERZ DA

2018 2017

—F-N\F  ZF—tF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets EERIEBEE 15,083 6,280
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE (239,843) (354,008)
(224,760) (347,728)

The followings are the major deferred tax

UTATEERRBELH EREREE

liabilities and assets recognised and movements eSS
thereon:
Fair value
Revaluation adjustment  Amortisation Allowance
of investment ~ on acquisition  of operating for credit
properties  of subsidiaries lease losses Total
Bt WEBWELT &g FEER
REME  2DVERR HERE % @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-A-A (98,704) (240,694) 4,738 - (334,660)
Credit to consolidated statement of 3 AGARER
profit or loss 5,896 5,702 1,170 - 12,768
Exchange alignment ERRE (6,715) (19,493) 372 - (25,836)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE-t51tZR=1-H
1 January 2018 R=E-NE-f-H (99,523) (254,485) 6,280 - (347,728)
Credit to consolidated statement of 3 AGARER
profit or loss - 5,826 1,092 8,216 15,134
Derecognised on disposal of HENBARRALER
subsidiaries (note 42) (Wiz4) 98,675 - - - 98,675
Exchange alignment ERAE 848 8,816 (325) (180) 9,159
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NE+ZB=1-8 - (239,843) 7,047 8,036 (224,760)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of HK$220,446,000 (2017:
HK$168,178,000) available for offsetting against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses could be carried forward indefinitely
except for the tax losses arising in the PRC of
HK$81,920,000 (2017: HK$56,404,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits.
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41. STATEMENT O
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) A2 A ZEFKARRE
Company
2018 2017
—E-NEF —ET—+F
HK$"009 HK$"OOQ
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN 3 2,806,069 3,187,493
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments T FRIE 431 443
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESEEY 24,375 29,794
24,806 30,237
Total assets EEHAE 2,830,875 3,217,730
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable AATEE AEN
to owners of the Company B 38,196 38,196
Share capital B
Reserves s 2,263,147 2,266,974
Total equity R 2,301,343 2,305,170
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities RBAME
Accruals and other payable &R 15,924 13,346
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTHI I~ RIFRIE 13,997 299,816
Other borrowings HMER 200,000 300,000
229,921 613,162
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Secured notes BREE 299,611 299,398
Total liabilities BELARE 529,532 912,560
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHAE 2,830,875 3,217,730
Net current liabilities RBEEEE (205,115) (582,925)
Total assets less current liabilities BE&ZBRAEBAS 2,600,954 2,604,568
Signed on behalf of the board of directors REEEEHE .
by:
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah Billy
ZEE PR 2
Director Director
EE EE
KIERBIREBRAT

—EN\FEH
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" AND MOVE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company (b) A&AFfFEE
Equity-
settled
share-
based
Share  Contributed payment  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
NREEE
2R
RGEE BAER XH R ZitER a3t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEn FEn FEn FEn FEr
(Note a) (Note b)
(fita) (Hith)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-F-H 1,722,165 488,016 9,848 (33,273) 2,186,756
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEFER 2R
expense for the year &% - - - (15,191) (15,191)
Placing of new shares BEFRHA 96,480 - - - 96,480
Share issue expenses RABIRX (3,686) - - - (3,686)
Repurchase of shares EERG (7,908) - - - (7,908)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ ERANRELEE 2 RH
share-based payment T#H - - 10,523 - 10,523
Release on lapse of equity- NREEEZRAEH
settled share-based P G2
payment - - (9,848) 9,848 -
At 31 December 2017 and WIE-t%
1 January 2018 TZA=T-BR
“E-\E-f-H 1,807,051 488,016 10,523 (38,616) 2,266,974
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEFER2EEE
expense for the year B - - - (12,890) (12,890)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BFRURELEEZRAZ
share-based payment # - - 9,063 - 9,063
Release on lapse of equity- HNRBEEZRBEH%
settled share-based HERE
payment - - (10,523) 10,523 -
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\E
+-A=+-H 1,807,051 488,016 9,063 (40,983) 2,263,147

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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. AND MOVEMENT OF R
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Contributed surplus represents the net amount
transferred from share capital and share
premium to retained profits pursuant to the
special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30
April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot
make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve
represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The
amount for each reporting period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the share options
over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses
with a corresponding increase in equity-settled
share-based payment reserve.

(b)

AR E)

wit :

(@)

(b)

EHRBERBR-ZZ=FNA
—t=A -=BENFWA=+A
R=_ZF-——5+-A+=-H#E7T2
BREBHIASLBBZEHRRER
BRARBRODZEERERE EF
ZIEE o

BEBRE-NN-—FRFE(EE
&) BABBRAHEDIK o AT -
() A 2 AR H A BIR S R R T 88
HETEXNAIPEE H()HE
EENTEREESEAMINASE
& AIAQBTTAEHARRER
DK e

LIRS 2 IR HEIE R AR
BAER B M IR AR B BB IR A LUIR Y
REtEEERE 2 A FE  HEHE
DREBERERNREABZAFE
AHE - SREHM SR BEBEE
RELFEREEEBEH(WE)R
BoEE YBRIKETIHARME
BB MURESEEZROIR
R EREE D -
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSID

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Best Volume and its subsidiaries

On 5 December 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement relating
to the disposal of the entire issued share capital
of Best Volume to Mr. Xie Zhaobin, a director of
certain subsidiaries of Best Volume, at a cash

BE-_Z—N\E+=-A=+—HILEE
Best Volume R E /& A &]

R-ZE—tHE+=ZBEB ' A&EEFHE
B & Best Volume 222 2 1TIR A
F Best Volume& THB AR Z2EEH
EREETIERMHEEHRZE B
{8 A 405,000,000/8 T - ZHESED

consideration of HK$405,000,000. The disposal

was completed on 22 June 2018.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost

REZBE-NFARAZtZHZEMK °

KERFECEERB BT

HK$’000
FET
Investment properties (note 19) REME(HEE19) 571,107
Goodwill (note 22) mE(fit22) 61,246
Trade receivables B 5 EUWFIE 22,881
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% - FETFIE R H A EUFIE 37,844
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 7,414
Deposits received, accruals and other gz e - BrEAREMMENRIE
payables (5,461)
Receipts in advance FEUWFRIE (443)
Bank borrowings RITIERK (190,571)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 40) IEERIEEE (M2 40) (98,675)
Net assets disposed of EHEZEEFE 405,342
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB 2 & 2 EE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received BWRERE 405,000
Net assets disposed of EHEEETFE (405,342)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal R & Best Volume R KB A F#&
of Best Volume and its subsidiaries & A ERE (10,651)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE (10,993)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZRERAFE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received BWRERE 405,000
Less: deposit received in December 2017 B ERZE—tFE+ZAkEzzE (235,300)
cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEZRERREEEY (7,414)
Net cash inflow HERNFE 162,286
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
Riche Video

On 17 February 2017, the Group as vendor and
an independent third party as purchaser entered
into a sale and purchase agreement relating to
the disposal of the entire issued share capital
of Riche Video and the shareholder’s loan of
HK$39,851,000 due by Riche Video at a cash
consideration of HK$173,000. The disposal was
completed on 17 February 2017.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost

BE_Z-tHF+-A=T—HLHFE

ERBY

R-ZZE—+tF=HA+tH  mEBESH
ER)EBYE=SWEAER ) REEE
RBE B ITRAREREEE
T2 BRREF39,851,000 8 Ts] VU ESE
HE REREA173,0008 70 tH
EFEOR-ZE—tF-A+EtATK °

KERFRZEERB BT

HK$’000
FET
Club debenture BES 172
Cash and cash equivalents RERRELEEY 1
Amount due to immediate holding company  FE{fEZER AT 258 (39,851)
Accruals EStER (1)
Net liabilities disposed of SHEEBETFE (39,679)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BIME 2 a2z Wz
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received 2R ZHERE 173
Net liabilities disposed of EHEEEFHE 39,679
Less: shareholder’s loan assigned to B BEETERFZRRERM
purchaser (39,851)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE BB ARz WS 1
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZHEHAFE
HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration received 2WEZHSNRE 173
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of i - EHERERIREZEEY (1)
Net cash inflow RERNFE 172
KIERIEIRERRAR

—EN\FEH
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43. COMMITNV

(a)

Lease commitments (a) HERE
The Group as lessee KEBEREAHA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RBEBRR FREEBZFTATHEL
had commitments for future minimum lease EHEMAREZHRARERENRK
payments under non-cancellable operating ZAEEROT :
leases which fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Within one year —FR 15,425 15,141
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZRZERF
(BIEEEWE) 54,394 56,413
Over five years HEUE 631,630 653,277
701,449 724,831

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for its office premises
and the operating rights in respect of the
Club and the Subject Land. Leases in
respect of the office premises are mainly
negotiated for an average term of three
years and rentals are fixed for an average
of three years. The Group does not have an
option to purchase the leased premises and
the operating rights in respect of the Club
and the Subject Land at the expiry of the
lease period.

The Group as lessor

Rental income earned from investment
properties during the year amounted to
HK$15,023,000 (2017: HK$23,603,000). All
of the Group’s investment properties are
held for rental purposes. The investment
properties are expected to generate rental
yields of 2.00% (2017: 4.10%) on an
ongoing basis. The investment properties
have committed tenants for the next three
years (2017: seven years).
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(a)

(b)

Lease commitments (Continued) (a) HERIEGE)

The Group as lessor (Continued) KEBMERLHBA (E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group

RI|BEMR - AKEF T 5 HE&K

had contracted with tenants for the following EREESRERFTL :

future minimum lease payments:

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within one year —F R 5,095 24,292
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERF
(BREERME) 6,695 79,277
Over five years AFELE - 25,125
11,790 128,694
Other commitments (b) HAtbAEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group REBEHR XEBEUTEFTY
had the following other commitments which B AR < HRE
were contracted but not provided for:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditures for the Subject ~ Tt~ EABFI X
Land 25,283 40,292
Renovation costs for the properties NREBYE B
located in Hong Kong R - 4,779
25,283 45,071
KIERIEIRERRAR
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. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of
the Company has contributed or may contribute
to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
Share options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The Company may refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit subject to approval of the
shareholders in general meeting, provided that
the Scheme Mandate Limit as refreshed must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the refreshed limit.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

44, URBEESROXRZRS

BRERRNR=-_ZE——F+=-B+=HBHE
BrEBEBRER XQABARMH—EBHE
RAETE(BRETS D URRAR=
EEF A=+ —-HRMBERES
EZo-BREFESN-_ZE=-—%+=A
+—HER - BREFEEESEALT
TMERECEERSHEHERHBERE
EAREHAEB - EMRNELTER 2
EE IR o

BREBRETS  SERSEELLE
B 2B RBES (BEARQXATEM
MEBRARZEMESE  TWIMTHEY
7 REIWRAEY), AKBE#RT
FAEZ2EMEEA RAEEZ(E
MEBRSSERH  AEH AEIR
xR EEA HEE - RABH
REA BFF EREA(BEEANER
BREN)HBRTE  FEHHEF(BE
EADBEEF)  IARAESS2ER
BRECERTREEAKEELEMZ
ERAL -

RITERBBERETERAQITEME
R ETEREMERTEZTEE
REETFHRTRMOEE ZE LR
TEBBRAREHETRM230% - £ L
MEBEERIEHERT  RITERBER
REFT B & AR D BT A H 4th B8 IR RE 5T 2178
FRECHEBREZTFRITZRAG
wme SHAERABRETZELE
EHCOBEITRMDZ10% ([FHEBRER
) o RETETERERIER - SRIE
BRETE CBERARZBERES T
BEERN - ERRERASLERFH#ER
ARAB I EHTEIREREE > HEEHE
ZETEIRERETSEBEHREEEN
EEHEBRITRMA210% °




44.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders in the
manner set out below, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the shares options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Where
any further grant of share options to an eligible
participant would result in the shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and to be granted to such eligible
participant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such eligible participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.

Any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or an independent non-executive director, or
their respective associates, would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all share options already granted and to be
granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant: (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options must be approved by the shareholders
at a general meeting, with voting to be taken by
way of a poll.

An offer for the grant of share options shall
remain open for acceptance for a period of 30
days from the date upon which it is made. A
non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of
an offer for the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised in whole or in part at
any time during the period to be determined and
identified by the board of directors, but in any
event no later than 10 years from the date of
grant but subject to the early termination of the
Option Scheme.
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. EQUITY- D
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise price shall be determined by the
board of directors at its sole discretion, provided
that it shall be not less than the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Exchange on the offer
date; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the offer date.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company
has not adopted any share option scheme other
than the Option Scheme.

Details of specific categories of share options are

THRERESSUHEBE-HEREE
BRAEERAT=E2&5E : ()RH
RENAHEBXMEBARERFATRZ
WHE: ()RORBEEZNA MA@
EXPEBITERABERMR 2T
Wi R (i) REREN B ZEHE -

RZZFE-NER-_F-—tHF+=-A
=+ -8 AABALERNERE R ET
SN IR AERT B o

BEERBREZFBUT :

as follows:
Share
option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BREER RKEEH T THEE
2007A 22 March 2007 22 March 2007 to 21 March 2017 HK$1,470.308*
“EZLF=ZA=+=H EZLF=ZA=-+=HZ 1,470.308 8 T*
“B—+HF=H=+—H
2007B 31 May 2007 31 May 2007 to 30 May 2017 HK$2,188.687*
—EE2tEHEA=T—H “EZ+FREA=+-HE 2,188.687 B "
—E—tH5HA=1H
2017 27 April 2017 27 April 2017 to 26 April 2018 HK$0.202
“E—tFWNAZt+tA Z—E—tFWNA-t++tAHZE 0.20238 7T
—E-N\EWA=+s5H
2018 27 April 2018 27 April 2018 to 26 April 2019 HK$0.185
“E-NEEAZt++tA ZE-NFEENAZt++tHZE 0.1858 T
—E-AFNA=+RA
* The exercise prices are adjusted to reflect the effect * TEECEHABRURMR=-_ZE—1F

of rights issue completed on 20 August 2015.
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. EQUITY- D
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of TRIFEES  EENEBREARE
the Company’s share options held by directors, RANTBREZEZE :
employees and consultants during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during during 31 December
Share option type 2018 the year the year the year 2018
RZE-NF RZE-N%F
—-A—H ) tZA=t-H
BREER e R AT RERFH RERTE REREN ia R AT
2017 321,600,000 - - (321,600,000) -
2018 - 316,920,000 - - 316,920,000
321,600,000 316,920,000 - (321,600,000) 316,920,000

Exercisable at the end of the reporting

period
RBERRTFITE 316,920,000
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.202 HK$0.185 - HK$0.202 HK$0.185
METHITEE 0.20238 7 0.18538 7T - 0.20238 7 0.185%8 7
Number of sﬂare options
BREHE

Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during during 31 December
Share option type 2017 the year the year the year 2017
R=B—t# RIZ—tF
-A-H B ) . t=R=t-H
BEREER e R AT RERERH RERTT RERKN e RATE
2007A 4,835 - - (4,835) -
2007B 25,309 - - (25,309 -
2017 - 321,600,000 - - 321,600,000
30,144 321,600,000 - (30,144) 321,600,000

Exercisable at the end of the reporting

period

RBERRTFITE 321,600,000
Weighted average exercise price HK$2,073.46 HK$0.202 - HK$2,073.46 HK$0.202
MEFITEE 2,073.46 387 020287 - 20734637 0202787

HIERH R AHRAT
Er e
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44. EQUITY-SETTLED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contmued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
316,920,000 share options were granted on
27 April 2018. The estimated fair values of the
share options granted on the date of grant are
HK$9,063,000. The fair value of the share options
granted during the year ended 31 December 2018
was HK$9,063,000 which had been expensed as
equity-settled share-based payment expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
321,600,000 share options were granted on
27 April 2017. The estimated fair values of the
share options granted on the date of grant are
HK$10,523,000. The fair value of the share
options granted during the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$10,523,000 which had
been expensed as equity-settled share-based
payment expenses.

The fair values of the share options for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were
calculated by Grant Sherman using binomial
option pricing model. The inputs to the model
were as follows:

BE-Z-N\E+ZA=+—HLE
E ERZE-NFONA=Z+tHEH
316,920,00017 iE pX #2 - IR HE A&
2 B < A5 A F{E 59,063,000
BRr BEZE=—F-—-N\E+=-A=+-—
BHEFEAREZEREZ2LAFES
9,063,000/8 7t ' BHMELARELEE 2 IR}
XX -

BZ-_Z—tH&F+A=+—HL#HF
E BERZE—tEFNA-+tHEH
316,920,000 17 & IR 7 - RIZH B K
B2 BRE AT A FE{EA10,523,000
BreBEE—tHE+ZH=1+—
BLItFERAREZEREZATES
10,523,000/8 7T ' BHIELIREEE 2
MDA o

Bz_Z-\ER_-_ZF-tH5+-H
=t—HLEFEBREZAFELHS
HEAZHEABEEERAGE - KX
FrREABBERT X

Share option type

BREER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Share option life 1 year 1 year
85 I 1 58 1 16 16
Grant date share price HK$0.185 HK$0.202
REHBHRE 0.1858 7T 0.20238 7T
Exercise price HK$0.185 HK$0.202
1T1EE 0.185%& T 0.202 T
Expected volatility 40.65% 44.47%
SN
Expected life of share options 1 year 1 year
88 IR #E 2 T8 B R 1 16 16
Dividend yield 0% 0%
IRE =R
Risk-free interest rate 1.945% 1.104%

EEREA R

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share prices
over the previous one year.
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45.

. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of a share option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

For equity-settled share-based payments with
parties other than employees, the Group has
rebutted the presumption that the fair values of
the services received can be estimated reliably
as in the opinion of the directors, the fair value
of the services received cannot be reliably
measured. Accordingly, the Group measured
the services received from these parties, with
reference to the fair values of the share options
granted using the binomial option pricing model,
at the date of grant.

At 31 December 2018, the Company had
316,920,000 share options outstanding (2017:
321,600,000), representing 8.30% (2017: 8.42%)
of the issued share capital of the Company at
that date.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the MPF Scheme for all the eligible employees of
the Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

44.

45.

PRBEE S BB SRS ()

SHBREZAFEMAZZERBR
DHUEEZREMRTRERE - BREZ
BEAGRTFETEBHRRZ2BEME
AR ZfEHE -

REEUN ZAEL 2BAURESE
ZBROXHME  HREZRABMER
B RFELREANSEBITE - RNEH
SRR 2 2 FERE A St ik T
ZBHR Bt AEBRRHBEH 2
BEA_BEAHEEERATHZER
HEEREZAFE AERZEEES
BE 2R -

RZB—-NFE+=ZA=+—H ' &x2QF
316,920,000 17 E RITEZBERE(Z
F—+ 4 :321,600,00010) » {HA2D T
EHDBITRALION (ZE—LF:
8.42%) o

RIREREHE

A-ZZEF+-_A—-Hi A&EA

EGEREERY —EHRATMHIENK

T8 — BEDSEE c NRUBESFE
% AEBTELSESRETARAE
|| o
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Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at
December 2018 are set out as follows:

31

AANAMBARAR=-ZE—NE+=A
=t+t—BHzZHBEHNOT :

Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
R EAE BERB/ ARAREZEERER CRORBRRE/
MEARERE BevEAR /%  ERRAER RBZELA EfRE TEXH
2018 2017
ZB-\F ZB-tF
% %
Adelio Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE 1%% RERR
Angel Wish Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EY e LE 1%% REZR
Bayhood No. 9 Co.* The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB50,000,000 Provision of recreational
b9k AR H i AR®50,000,0007  and wellness
services through the
management of a
membership-based
_ golf club and resort
EBERESHEEAR
SRR ARG
ERRRERH
Best Season Holdings Corp.  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 75 75 US$100 Dormant
ABRLES LE 100£7T gEEx
Best Volume British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - 100 US$2 Investment holding
EY e LE 2% REZR
Bluelagoon Investment British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Dormant
Holdings Limited EBRLEE el 1% Tmex
China Jiuhao Health Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Industry Group Limited &% LB 187 REEZR
HEIFEREXER
BRAT
Eternity Finance Group British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 HK$100,000,000 Investment holding
Limited ABRLES EE 100,000000%  REER
XENBERERLT
Gainful Fortune Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 99.99 99.99 HK$160,000,100 Dormant
ABRLES 5B 160,000,100 ~ EE=EX
Golden Stone British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
By Taeids LE ) RERR
Hong Kong Builders Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Money lending
Finance Limited B LB 2B B8
BERBERRA
K E G Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
By Teids LE 1£% REZR

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(Continued)

Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
R KERG/ AR RERER CRORMERE/
WEARER BevEAR /%  IRRAER REZELA) ERRA TEXH
2018 2017
ZE-\F ZE-tF
% %
K E Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
EEEEERAR BE el 10,0005 7 jewelry products
and sale of precious
stones
Rt REEREERUAR
#HEER
Legend Rich Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE 1%% REZR
Max Winner Investments Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Property holdings
Limited £ EE 187 BENE
JEREERAA
New Cove Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LB 1%% REZR
Om Gem Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
5B G 10,0008 7T jewelry products
and sale of precious
stones
R RHEEREERAR
HEER
One Synergy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HKS$1 Investment holding
B LE 187 REZR
Open Heart Investments British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
Limited ABRLES EE 1%7 REZR
Radiant Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 HK$1 Investment holding
LERRAR B LE 1B REZR
Rexdale Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000,000 Property holdings
B HE 10,000,000 &7 BENE
Riche Advertising Limited  British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
By Treids LE 1%% HELREE
Riche (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1,000 Investment holding
EBRLES LE 1,000 %7 REZR
Riche Distribution Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
EXBTERAT # £ 1,000,000 & 7¢ TEER
Riche Multi-Media Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Dormant
EXSERARLT B LE 2B gEEx
KIERKIRERRAT
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(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
AL KERG/ ARARERERER CRORBERE/
MEARER LevEAR /%  IRRAER RBZELA) ERRA TEXH
2018 2017
ZE-\F ZE-tF
% %
Riche Pictures Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE 1£% REZR
Simple View Investment British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
Limited ABRLES L 127 HETHERE
Smart Field Management Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Limited B Gl 187 REER
Smart Sphinx Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE 1%7% REZR
Smart Title British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE 1%% REZR
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
BHARAF B HE 1,000,000 7 gEex
Victory Peace Holdings British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
Limited By Treids LE 1£% HESREE
Virtue Crest Investments British Virgin Islands  Ordinary - 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited ABRIEE EE %7 REZR
BERREERLT
Yuan Shun Investments British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
_ Limited ABRLES 5B (E REZR
TIEREBRAA
MgREE (L) BRSULER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB6,657,085 Investment holding
AN HE B AR¥6,657,085 T REZR
BaEA L RR(LRH)BR  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB100,000 Investment holding
RS HE AEf ARE100000  REZR
BNEHREENBRARDS  The PRC Registered - 100 RMB500,000 Trading of
HE i AR®500,000 7 environmental
protection products
EERRER
ENKBREERERAF® The PRC Registered - 100 RMB50,000,000  Property development
HE AEff AR#50,000,0007T #ERH
ENRERRRHBRAT  The PRC Registered - 100 RMBS5,000,000 Trading of
HE i ARK®5,000,000t  environmental
protection products
EERREM

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2018



(Continued)

Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macao legal person)
established in the PRC.

A limited liability company (solely invested by foreign
owned enterprise) established in the PRC.

A limited liability company (solely invested by legal
person) established in the PRC.

An other limited liability company established in the
PRC.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly

held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year or during the

year.

R

Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
Rl BERR,/ ARABEzRERER ERTRBRKREK/
HWEARER GevExR/HE  ERRAEH REZEELA BTN TEEH
2018 2017
ZB-N\f ZZ-tF
% %
ENTOEEHEREER  The PRC Registered - 100 RMB16,000,000  Property development
A HE R AK™16,000,000 #EHE
TRERBENEEEER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000  Provision of property
G e i AE®10,000,000  management
services
RENEERRE
FTRHEEERERAF  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000  Leasing of properties
HE i AR®10,000,0007T #Y£0E
FRERERAERLRY  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
HE i AK¥10,000,000r REZR
E BB BERERAT  The PRC Registered 70 70 RMB10,000,000  Managing and operating
(“RREb")e HE B AK#10,000,0007c  cultural forum and
related cultural
activities
EEREE UL HERAHE
XEES
# A limited liability company (solely invested by # RAABRL2EREEAT(ABREA

BE) -
RABERY 2BREEFLAAOERER
EBE) -

RABRI2EREERRACEABE) -

RPBERL 2HMEREEAT -

AN T E#EFERiche (BVI) Limited 2

o FIEHMME R RIIRAARM[

BEe -

BEMBLRACSRFRINFRBTEM
BEHEE -

KERBEIREFRAF

Ef e B
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47.

(Continued)

The directors consider that Best Season Holdings
Corp., Gainful Fortune Limited and #% B, the
non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests, are not material to the
Group. Accordingly, the financial information of
Best Season Holdings Corp., Gainful Fortune
Limited and ##5t is not separately presented in
the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

47.

E £ A Best Season Holdings Corp. *
Gainful Fortune Limited } %5t (& #
EhERERZZIZTEMRBLAR)HAK
SEMELIEEK - FltBest Season
Holdings Corp. > Gainful Fortune
Limited R 15t 2 B I & B BRALRE
BBHMERF D2 o

EXBEALXRS

REBEEZZE-—-NER=ZZE—+tHF+=A
=+ —HALEE REBHHEBBEA L
IUTRS :

Transactions with associates HEENTAZRS
Loans to associates -t &d 1Y
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amount due from Bl — B E A B IE
an associate (note 24) (K1at 24) 38,437 38,421
Amount due from FEW — RSB X B 5008
an associate (note 29) (Btat 29) - 1,480
38,437 39,901

The loans to associates do not constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

REEGBEQXAREZERL FTEKX
EHRAFVUABTERZBERS -



. MATERIA ATED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

HBENR 25 (&)

Transactions with associates (Continued)

Expenses paid/payable to and income Eff ENBELATGZTHREK FEK

received/receivable from associates BELFGKA
2018 2017
—e-N\F C—E—LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Brokerage fees paid to an associate BN —BBEARKLERE 10 -

Rental income received from an RE—BEEEQATHEHSWA

associate 1,492 —

The above transactions do not constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors and the

chief executive officer, who are key management,
during the year was as follows:

LR ZEAERLETHRAE14ATR
EREZHERS -
TEEBEASHMH

FRHTESRITHRAR(RTEER
AB)ZBAEMT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Short-term benefits RERE R 45,890 43,545
Post-employment benefits BB E A 72 72
Equity-settled share-based payments LUREEE 2 IR 1,419 4,208
47,381 47,825

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(note 11).

The remuneration of executive directors and
the chief executive officer is approved by the
board of directors on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee having regard to
the duties and responsibilities of individuals and
market trends.

B AIEITAARI(FFET) ©

HITESRTRARCHMES IHESS
BHMEESSHBRZERSERALZ
BERBERDSEBZEAE -

ABHHI AR AT
—EN\FEH
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 47. Eﬁﬁkﬂ:?&%()

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Transactions with the directors and substantial HAQNGZEERFERREZRS
shareholders of the Company

248

(a)

On 17 March 2017, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, an
executive director, made a cash advance of
HK$10,000,000 to the Group for financing its
short-term funding needs. The cash advance
was non-interest bearing and unsecured. On
28 March 2017, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

On 27 October 2017, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
provided a personal guarantee to secure
the Company’s repayment obligations under
the loan of HK$200,000,000 granted by a
finance company to the Company maturing
on 27 April 2018. No consideration was paid
by the Company to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the
provision of personal guarantee. No security
over the assets of the Group was provided
for the personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei
Hong Wai. On 27 April 2018, the Company
repaid the loan to the finance company.

On 30 November 2017, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
provided another personal guarantee to
secure the Company’s repayment obligations
under another loan of HK$100,000,000
granted by a finance company to the
Company maturing on 1 June 2018. No
consideration was paid by the Company
to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the provision of
personal guarantee. No security over the
assets of the Group was provided for the
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong
Wai. On 1 June 2018, the Company repaid
the loan to the finance company.

On 11 July 2018, a cash advance of
HK$60,000,000 was made by Twin Success
International Limited (“Twin Success”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company
which is beneficially owned as to 50%
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai, as to 25% by Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 25% by
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. Each
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan are executive directors.
The cash advance was non-interest bearing
and unsecured. On 6 August 2018, the
Group repaid the cash advance to Twin
Success.
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47. MATERIAL RELATED i
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company (Continued)

(e)

On 19 July 2018, Twin Success made a cash
advance of HK$48,000,000 to the Group
for financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest bearing
and unsecured. On 24 July 2018, the Group
repaid the cash advance to Twin Success.

On 19 October 2018, Twin Success made
a cash advance of HK$25,000,000 to the
Group for financing its short-term funding
needs. The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 5 December
2018, the Group repaid the cash advance to
Twin Success.

On 14 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
made a cash advance of HK$10,000,000
to the Group for financing its short-term
funding needs. The cash advance was
non-interest bearing and unsecured. On 5
December 2018, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

On 29 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
provided a personal guarantee to secure
the Company’s repayment obligations under
the loan of HK$200,000,000 granted by the
finance company to the Company maturing
on 30 May 2019. No consideration was paid
by the Company to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the
provision of personal guarantee. No security
over the assets of the Group was provided
for the personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei
Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2018, the provision of
personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong Wai
remains in full force and effect.

BEARRZEBERFIERRZRS (#)
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. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company (Continued)

(i)

On 24 December 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
made a cash advance of HK$50,000,000
to the Group for financing its short-term
funding needs. The cash advance was
non-interest bearing and unsecured. On 4
January 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2018, the outstanding
balance of the cash advance is
HK$50,000,000, which is presented in the
“Amount due to a director” line item in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

All of the above transactions also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, these
transactions are fully exempt from the connected
transaction requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules under Rule 14A.90.

Transactions with the directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company

(a)

On 5 December 2017, Golden Stone as
vendor entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Xie Zhaobin,
a director of certain subsidiaries of Best
Volume, as purchaser relating to the sale
and purchase of 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Volume. The consideration
was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties to the
conditional sale and purchase agreement
with reference to the unaudited consolidated
net asset value of Best Volume and its
subsidiaries, the carrying amount of goodwill
on acquisition of Best Volume and the fair
value of the investment properties located in
the PRC at 30 June 2017. Upon signing the
conditional sale and purchase agreement,
Mr. Xie Zhaobin paid a refundable deposit of
HK$235,300,000 to Golden Stone.
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. MATERIAL RELATED PAR
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

As two of the relevant applicable percentage
ratios (calculated in accordance with the
Listing Rules) in respect of the sale and
purchase of 100% issued share capital of
Best Volume are more than 25% but all
ratios were less than 75%, the sale and
purchase of 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Volume constituted a major
transaction for the Company and was
subject to the announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As Mr. Xie Zhaobin was a director of several
subsidiaries of Best Volume, Mr. Xie was
a connected person at the subsidiary level
of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Therefore, the sale and
purchase of 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Volume also constituted a
connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Board had approved the conditional
sale and purchase agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.
In addition, the directors (including all
the independent non-executive directors)
had confirmed that the terms of the
conditional sale and purchase agreement
were fair and reasonable, the transactions
contemplated thereunder were on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, the sale and purchase of 100%
issued share capital of Best Volume was
exempt from independent financial advice
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the
Listing Rules.

The sale and purchase of 100% issued
share capital of Best Volume was approved
by the shareholders on 27 February 2018
and completed on 22 June 2018.

BEANTMBARZERZZRS (#)
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47. MATERIAL RELATED i
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

(b)

On 20 August 2018, Bayhood No. 9 Co.
as lender entered into a loan agreement
with Mr. Guan Jialin, a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, as borrower, and
Ms. Hao Yuhui, the spouse of Mr. Guan
Jialin, as guarantor relating to grant a loan
in the principal amount of RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to HK$28,532,000) to Mr. Guan
Jialin for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018. The loan is interest
bearing at 9.00% per annum, secured by
a real estate mortgage over a residential
property located in Beijing, the PRC owned
by Ms. Hao Yuhui (the “Property”) and
maturing on 23 August 2020. The terms of
the loan agreement were negotiated on an
arm’s length basis between Bayhood No. 9
Co. and Mr. Guan Jialin with reference to
terms and conditions of the loan agreements
entered into between the Group and its
money lending customers.

On 20 September 2018, Bayhood No. 9
Co., Mr. Guan Jialin and Ms. Hao Yuhui
entered into a supplemental agreement
relating to the amendment of the condition
precedent of the loan agreement dated 20
August 2018. Pursuant to which, the loan
agreement is conditional upon the real
estate mortgage over the Property having
been duly registered withit R FIEEERE =
E12F (Real Estate Bureau of Beijing Shunyi
District) (the “Real Estate Bureau”) by Mr.
Yuan Huixia, a legal representative and a
director of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, (as agent of Bayhood No. 9 Co.)
and Ms. Hao Yuhui.
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47. MATERIAL RELA
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

BEANTMBARZERZZRS (#)

Concurrently, on 20 September 2018,
Mr. Yuan Huixia executed an irrevocable
undertaking in favour of Bayhood No. 9 Co.,
pursuant to which:

(i)  Mr. Yuan Huixia shall, on behalf of
Bayhood No. 9 Co. and together with
Ms. Hao Yuhui, register the real estate
mortgage over the Property with the
Real Estate Bureau;

(i) in the event that Mr. Guan Jialin does
not repay the loan in accordance with
the loan agreement, Mr. Yuan Huixia
shall sell the Property on the instruction
of Bayhood No. 9 Co. and transfer the
proceeds in full to Bayhood No. 9 Co.;

(iii) in the event that Bayhood No. 9 Co.
proposes to change the mortgagee
of the mortgage over the Property
or terminate the mortgage, Mr. Yuan
Huixia shall execute all necessary
documents on the instruction of
Bayhood No. 9 Co. to effect such
change or termination; and

(iv) unless on the instruction of Bayhood
No. 9 Co., Mr. Yuan Huixia shall not
change the mortgagee of the mortgage
over the Property, terminate the
mortgage, or sell the Property.

As each of Mr. Guan Jialin, Ms. Hao Yuhui
and Mr. Yuan Huixia is a connected person
at the subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
the entering into of the loan agreement
(as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the directors of the HEAQAFMBRARZES 2R S (&)

subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)
Given that (i) the Board had approved BERONEESSCOHEERB R
the loan agreement (as supplemented FArxmERAEEFZT)RAEET
by the supplemental agreement with RETZXE  RHEE(EBE2
the undertaking) and the transactions BEIIATES)CEIXERD
contemplated thereunder, and (ii) the BZEREABBERARERR)Z
directors (including all the independent BRRBAFEE - HETRENTZ
non-executive directors) had confirmed RN —BREERRET L A
that the terms of the loan agreement BARPAREBRR2EREARZ - R
(as supplemented by the supplemental I RIFELETRAE14A101 5 >
agreement with the undertaking) were HIVA-E8GEACSEN PSS
fair and reasonable, the transaction ERA)ERRBETBER - BIHY
contemplated thereunder were on normal BERRBIBRRAENRE - R
commercial terms and in the interests of BEZHGR(EEETHEREAEE
the Company and its shareholders as a HR)BHEREABTLEWRE
whole. Accordingly, the entering into of F1AATET ZRMHHRE °

the loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with
the undertaking) was exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the
Listing Rules. The granting of loan under
the loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with the
undertaking) was only subject to the
announcement requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The loan agreement became unconditional EXxmBECRNR=-ZE—-—NEHA
on 26 September 2018 and the drawdown of “tTREBRABKRERERER =
the loan was made on 29 September 2018. E-N\FAAZTNARE °

At 31 December 2018, the outstanding RZEBE-NFE+=ZA=Z+—8"
balance of the loan is RMB25,000,000 ERcABEEBRBARY
(equivalent to HK$28,532,000), which is 25,000,000 7T (48 % 7 28,532,000
included in the “Other receivables” line item BIL) B AGREHBEMRRERR
in the consolidated statement of financial [EMEKFE |BEH HE_-S
position. The related interest income for the “NFE+ZRA=+—HLEFEZ
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted HEHEFE WA B AR 576,000 7T
to RMB576,000 (equivalent to HK$680,000), (F8E 1 680,000 T) » B 5t A&
which is included in the “Investment and EERRANRERAEMBA JE
other income” line item in the consolidated S

statement of profit or loss.

The directors confirm that the above transactions EERAZERFEEBETLTHRAUSE
have complied with the connected transaction TAAECZBERZHRE °

requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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49.

. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSA

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group acquired buildings and investment
properties at an aggregate consideration
including transaction costs of HK$352,277,000, in
which an amount of HK$128,800,000 was settled
by the proceeds of the secured mortgage loan
obtained from a bank (note 36).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and maintain
healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue of new shares or
redemption of existing shares as well as raise
or repay debts. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the gearing ratio between 20% and
40%. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, amount due to a director and
secured notes, less cash and cash equivalents.
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
includes share capital, retained profits and other
reserves. The gearing ratio as at the end of the
reporting periods was as follows:

49.
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2018 2017

—F-N\F  ZF—tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FBT

Total debt B 706,812 950,852

Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERBESEEY (140,628) (225,010)

Net debt BT 566,184 725,842
Equity attributable to owners of the RABEE NELERS

Company 2,655,704 3,266,389

Gearing ratio EEAELE 26.61% 29.11%
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50.

. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

On 25 August 2017, the Group issued secured
notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$300,000,000. Under the secured notes,
the Company covenants with the noteholders
that from the issue date and for so long as any
secured notes are outstanding, the Group will
ensure the consolidated tangible net worth of the
Group will not be less than HK$1,300,000,000.
Consolidated tangible net worth of the Group
means, by reference to an annual audited
consolidated financial statements or a semi-
annual unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Group, the aggregate of the
amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company and
the amount standing to the credit of the reserves
of the Group, but deducting any amount shown
in respect of goodwill or other intangible assets
of the Group.

The Company has complied with the covenant
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
At 31 December 2018, the consolidated tangible
net worth of the Group was HK$1,506,260,000
(2017: HK$1,981,285,000). At 30 June 2018, the
consolidated tangible net worth of the Group was
HK$1,851,511,000 (2017: N/A).

AR EE )
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1T 7~ % #2 %8 4 300,000,000 T MY #
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 50. €@TH
Categories of financial instruments SRMIAZER
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets TREE
Amortised cost HEH A 1,436,927 1,634,457
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFETTABRRZ
TRIEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 287,302 662,943
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost 5 )N 934,173 1,434,666

The Group’s major financial instruments include
